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Unit 1996 1997 1998 1999 Index

99/98

CZECH REPUBLIC %)
Installed capacity as of December 31 mw 14,937 15,073 15,293 15,267 99.8
Peak requirement mMw 10,814 10,814 10,149 9,926 97.8
Date of peal requirement 5. 1 et 10. 12, 1.2, X
Production of electrical energy GWh 64,257 64,598 65,112 64,308 98.8

CEZ, a.s.

Installed capacity as of December 31 mw 10,999 10,999 10,900 10,151 93.1
Production of electrical energy GWh 48,266 48,008 47,892 45,722 95.5

Production of heat TJ 16,447 15,112 14,292 13,174 92.2
Number of employees as of December 31 persons 11,280 11,157 10,314 9,266 #9.8

Earnings per CZK 100 share CZK/share 16.4 8.9 17.5 8.7 49.7
Current ratio 1 0.54 0.68 0.36 0.75 2.1

Debt to equity ratio 1 043 0.47 0.44 0.50 1.1
Return on equity (net) * % 10.99 5.49 9.99 4.61 0.5

" The shareholders’ equity value in the denominator is the median of the year-end values:




DEMAND FOR ELECTRICITY IN THE CEZ SHARE IN MEETING CZECH
CZECH REPUBLIC (TWh) REPUBLIC ELECTRICITY DEMAND (%) NET INCOME (CZK billions)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CZK millions)

1996 1997 1998 1999
Assets
Property, plant and equipment;
Plant in service 120,406 143,207 156,592 163,973
Less accumulated provision for depreciation 52,649 58,721 66,175 73,983
Net plant in service 67,757 84,486 90,417 89,990
Nuclear fuel, at amortized cost 4,721 4,599 4,519 4,914
Construction work in progress 77,114 74,880 81,337 91,460
Total property, plant and equipment 149,592 163,965 176,273 186,364
Investment in affiliate = = 4,893 5,351
Other noncurrent assels, net 1,226 1,737 1,819 2,911
Current assets:
Cash 2,222 4,097 1,007 4,357
Receivables, net 6,797 4,495 3,653 4,492
Materials and supplies, net 1,408 1,631 1,796 2,172
Fossil fuel stocks 924 1,227 1,284 797
Prepayments 1,309 570 747 615
Total current assets 12,660 12,020 8,487 12,433
Total assets 163,478 177,722 191,472 207,059
Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Stated capital 59,156 59,195 59,209 59,209
Retained earnings 33,994 39,250 49,600 54,735
Total shareholders’ equity 93,150 98,445 108,809 113,944
Long-term liahilities:
Long-term debt, net of amount due within one year 28,542 39,689 34,561 51,084
Accumulated provision for
nuclear decommissioning and fuel storage 14,155 15,664 15,974 16,272
Deferred income faxes 4,183 6.280 8,674 9,134
Total long-term liabilities 46,880 61,633 59,209 76,490
Commitments and contingencies
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans 10,154 3.204 2,704 2,804
Long-term debt due within one year 1,472 3,502 10,333 2,665
Acceunts payable 4,295 4,796 4,046 4,552
Accrued liabilities 7,527 6,142 6,371 6,604
Total current liabilities 23,448 17,644 23,454 16,625
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 163,478 177,722 191,472 207,059
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SELECTED DATA FROM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (CZK millians)

1996 1997 1998 19494
Total revenues 55,385 54,991 55,242 53,542
of which, e.g.: Sales of electricity 52,020 51,254 52,041 50,678
Total expenses 39,280 42,150 43,484 44,146
of which, e.g.: Fuel 12,735 13,228 13,220 12,856
Purchased power 7,427 7419 7,095 7444
Repairs and maintenance 3,945 3,869 4,634 4,233
Depreciation and amaortization 5,651 6,943 8,162 8,740
Salaries and wages 2,828 3,250 3,407 3,584
Nuclear decommissioning
and fuel storage 1,939 1,768 1,008 1,014
Income before other expenses (income)
and income taxes 16,105 12,841 11,758 9,396
Other expenses (income) 459 3,366 -2.073 3,646
of which, e.g.. Exchange rate losses (gains), net -22 2,182 -2,010 2,609
Equity in earnings of affiliate -1,275 -476
Income before income taxes 15,646 9,475 13,831 5,750
Income taxes 5,939 4,219 3,481 615
Net income 9,707 5,256 10,350 5,135
SELECTED DATA FROM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CZK millions)
1996 1997 1998 1999
Operating activities
Net income 9,707 5,256 10,350 5,135
Adjustments to reconcile net income (o net
cash provided by operating activities:
of which, e.g.: Depreciation and amortization 5,659 7,108 8,274 9,542
Amortization of nuclear fuel 1,389 1,353 1,453 1,467
Provision for nuclear decommissioning
and fuel storage 1,868 1,509 310 299
Equity in earnings of affiliate,
net of cash dividends -1,173 -325
Changes in assels and liabilities 217 4,066 2,456 611
Net cash provided by operating activities 18,766 19,001 21,620 16,946
Investing activities
Total cash used in investing activities -26,725 -23,353 -25,913 -22,310
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 35,722 19,730 16,239 42,994
Payments of borrowings -27,972 -13,503 -15,036 -34,260
Total cash provided by financing activities 7,750 6,227 1,203 8,714
Net increase (decrease) in cash -209 1,875 -3,090 3,350
Cash at beginning of period 2,431 2,222 4,097 1,007
Cash at end of period 2222 4,097 1,007 4,357
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JANUARY

e Extraordinary General Meeting of CEZ a. s.

o Second domestic bond issue repajd early (CZK 4 billion)

@ Sixth and Seventh domestic bond issues: floated
(CZK 4.5 billion and CZK 2.5 billion, respectively)

e Agreement signed with CEPS, a. s. concerning
cooperation in ensuring reliable operation of the
Czech Republic electrical power grid and the
fransmission, cress-border conveyance and supply of
electricity during the 1999 — 2003 period

FEBRUARY

e The two CEZ, a, 5. share issues (CZK 1,100 and CZK
1,000 par value) are merged into one and split into
shares with par value CZK 100

e (EZ a s Board of Directors decides to suspend
ongoing retrofit of TuSimice | and put the power plant
up for sale

MARCH

e Board of Directors approves new strategic vision of
CFZ. 2. 8.

e New note facility signed with Caska spofitelna,
Citibank, CSOB, and ING Barings

APRIL

e (EZ a s Board of Directors decides to purchase
shares and voting rights on shares in regienal electric
utility companies

MAY

e (Goyernment of the Czech Republic decides to
cofmplete construetion of Temelin Nuclear Rower
Station

o (ENTREL Council meets in Prague

JUNE

e New director appointed to run Construction of Temelin
Nuclear Power Station Division

e Annual General Meeting of CEZ, a. s.

e General Meeting approves new CEZ, a. s. Business
Plan through the year 2005

e [ourth domestic bond Issue repaid early (CZK 3 billion)

e FEight domestic bond issue floated (CZK 3 billion)

e Amendments to coal purchase agreements signed,
lowering prices on a portion of supplies to allow
electricity exports to be increased
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JULY

e Unit No. 11 in Melnil || Power Station refitted to burm
higher-heat-content coal

AUGUST
e Subsidiary company, EEPS, a. s., commences operation

e CEZ a s. Board of Directars decides to lerminate
retrofit of Tusimice | and not sell the power plant

SEPTEMBER

e Standard & Poor's affirms CEZ's "BBB4+ rating with
stable outlook

OCTOBER

» Moody's affirms Baal rating for CEZ, a. s.

e Third foreign bond issue floated (EUR 200 miflion)

e CEZ a. s opensnew representation office in Brussels
— {he "capital” of the European Union

e Bureau for Protection of Econemic Competition opens
atministrative proceedings for possible vioiation of
Section 9(3) of the “Act on Protection of Economic

Competition” in purchases of coal from Mostecks

uhelna spoleénost, a. s, in 1993

DECEMBER

First eurobond Issue repaid (USD 150 million)
Long-term agreement signed with Ceske drahy, the
state railroad operator, on the conveyance of basic
commodities (coal, limerock, ash) for GEZ, a. s,

Coal purchase agresments far the year 2000 signed
with Severoteské doly, a. 5., Sokolovska uhgln, a. 5.
and OKD, a. s,

Contractial relationshipwith Elekiramy Opatovice, a. 5.
on purghases of electricity terminated

Insurance policy acquired to cover [ability risks
arising from operation of Temelin Nuclear Power
Station

Preliminary shareholders agreement signed with
Vivendi-Dalkia, a. s. concemning the joimt venture
JVED, a. 5.

Sale of radioactive waste disposal site at Dukevany
Nuclear Power Station to the State [conditions set
forth in "Nuclear Act” fulfilled|
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THE STEPS | HAVE IN MIND ARE THE FOLLOWING: WE DOUBLED ELECTRICITY EXPORTS DURING THE YEAR,
WE ESTABLISHED A JOINT VENTURE WITH A FOREIGN COMPANY THAT THREATENED OUR OPERATIONS IN
NORTH MORAVIA, WE OPENED AN OFFICE IN BRUSSELS TO REPRESENT OUR COMPANY, AND WE REACHED
A COMPROMISE SOLUTION WITH DOMESTIC COAL SUPPLIERS AND DISTRIBUTORS. THE FACT THAT WE
WERE ABLE TO ANALYZE AND, MORE IMPORTANTLY, ADMIT TO QURSELVES THE CAUSES FOR THE
UNSATISFACTORY PROGRESS MADE TOWARD COMPLETING THE TEMELIN. NUCLEAR POWER STATION IS
SOMETHING THAT | CONSIDER AT LEAST AS IMPORTANT FOR OUR COMPANY'S FUTURE AS THE FACT THAT
WE MANAGED TO GIVE THE CONSTRUCTION WORK A NEW IMPULSE AND VIBRANCY THAT ARE A
PROMISING INDICATION THAT THE CURRENT TIMELINE AND COST ESTIMATES FOR COMPLETION WILL
TRULY BE MET.

AS | SEE THEM, THESE EVENTS (WHICH ARE NOT EVEN MENTIONED IN THE EDITORIAL SECTION OF LAST
YEAR'S ANNUAL REPORT) ARE AN INDICATION THAT LAST YEAR WE BEGAN TO REALIZE OUR NEW
BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY IN EARNEST. THIS PHILOSOPHY IS BASED ON.THE KNOWLEDGE THAT WE WILL NOT
BE ABLE TO AVOID THE PROBLEMS THAT HAVE AFFECTED EACH AND EVERY COMPANY MAKING THE
TRANSITION FROM A MONOPOLY OR MARKET DOMINANCE TO OPERATING IN A MARKET ENVIRONMENT;
AS ELECTRICITY PRICES ARE DEREGULATED AND OUR COUNTRY ACOEDES TO THE EUROPEAN UNION, WE
WILL BE FORCED TO MAKE A NUMBER OF UNPLEASANT, UNPOPULAR, AND CONTROVERSIAL DECISIONS AS
WELL AS FIGHT TOUGH BATTLES WITH DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN COMPETITORS, OPPONENTS, AND
DETRACTORS.

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, | AM CONFIDENT THAT WHEN YOU LOOK AT THE NUMBERS CONTAINED IN THE 1939
ANNUAL REPORT FROM THIS VANTAGE POINT, YOU WILL GET THE SAME FEELING OF MODERATE OPTIMISM
THAT IS FELT BY THOSE TO WHOM YOU HAVE ENTRUSTED THE COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT, | AM ALSO
CONVINCED THAT WITH YOUR CONTINUED SUPPORT WE WILL BE ABLE TO TURN THIS FEELING INTO
FURTHER GROWTH IN OUR COMFANY'S PERFORMANCE.

Theodor Dvorak
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THEODOR DVORAK

Born 1851, Chafiman of the Beard of Directors
sinee- 10 December 1989, Fiest Vice Chairman of
the Board af Directots from 5 January 1999 to
9 Decembier. 1995, Fxecutive Director for Asset
Management and Frocurament since 1 September
1998,

A graduate of the-Faculty-of Electrical Engineering
of the Technical University of Brno, Ovorak also did
post-gradudte:work in Nuclear Power Plant Opera-
tion at the raculty of Mechanical Engingering of
the Technical University. of Brno. Starting in 19786,
Dvofak worked for Elektroved Bratislava on the
construction of the Cebin, Brno = Bohunice and
Brio — Komarov substations and on the Otrakovies
heat plant. In 1880 he joined SKODA PRAHA,
whera he worked on the construction of power
plants i Dukovany, Vojany, Khulpa (Bangladesh)
and Umm Al Nar West (Abu Dhabi, United Arab
Emirates) in the Fower Plant  Running-In
Bepartment. After returning from abroad, Dvorak
waorked for SKODA PRAMA, a. 5. as Assistant Haad
of Marketing.

FRANTISEK HEZOUCKY |.

Born 1842 First Vice Chairman of the Board of
Dirgotors Since 100 Decamber 1999, Sacond Vice
Glaitman of the Board of Directors since 5 January
1999 to 9 December 1999, Fxgoutive Director of
the Temelin Nuclear Fower Station Censtruetion
Divistorr sipee: 10 June 1948,

A graduate of the Mechanical Engingering Faoulty
of the Czech Terhnical University, Department of
Thermal Erergy Equipment, Hezautky also’ holds
degrees. in Nuclear Engineering from the. Slavak
and Czech Technical Unjversities, In 1965 - 1978
Hezouzky worked -at the Jaslovske Bohunice
Nuclear Pawer Station as operator, block foreman,
shift engineering, head of the technical
development and operations planning department,
and head of energy start-up testing, In 1978— 1987
he worked at the Dukovany Nuelear Power Station,
where he held the positions Chigt Engineer for
Operating and Process Technology and Chief Start-
Up Enginaer for all four blocks. In 1887 — 1892
Hezoueky warkedl at the Temelin Nuclgar Power
Station-as Deputy Director, and in 1993 — 1997 he

GABRIEL EICHLER

Born 1850, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
from: 24 April 1994 ta § Japuary 1999,

PETR FISER

Boril 1964, Member af the Board of Directors fram
28 January 1988 to 5 January 1998

PETR KARAS

Born 1941, Chairman of the Board of Directars fram
19 Ogtobar 1992 to 5. January. 1999,

Chief Executive Officer of CEZ a. s from | May
1987 to- 29 Janvary 1898,

ANMUAL REPORT 1999 —

was a technieal consultant to Westinghouse. From
1887 Unfi| Jantary 1899 he was Chief Enginesar at
the Swiss company COLENCO. From February to
June, 1999, Heroligk) was advisor to the Chief
Exgeutive Officer of CEZ, a.-s. for the Temalin
Nuelear Fower Station,

STANISLAV SVOBODA

Born 1848, Member of-the Board of Directars from
& January 1839, Second Vice Chalrinan of the
Board of irectors from 15 February 2000 te
26-Aprll 2000, Chief Exetutive Officer of CEZ a. s,
fram 13 December 1999 to- 26 Aprl 2000,

Agraduate of the Electrical Engineering Faculty of
the Czech Technical University, where e
speeialized in economic, organizational and
management issues inenergy, Svoboda also holds
an MBA from Sheffield Hallam University, He has
tell years of work experience In operations and
maintenance: at the Tusimice |l and Chvaletice
Power Stations and another ten years at tha Power
Plant Start-Up Department of SKODA PRAHA, a 5.,
where he worked at power plants in Jaslovske
Bohuniea, Umm Al Nar West [Abu Bhabi, United
Arab  Emirates], Dukevany and. Zrenjanin
(Yugoslavia). Since 1993, Svoboda has been with
SKOOA PRAHA in division director capacities, flrst
at the Copstruction Division apd latet at (he
Fossil Energy Division. He was named CEO of
SKODA PRAHA in 1295, a position he held until
12 December 19899, He has bean a member of the
SKODA PRAHA Board of Directors slnea 1998, and
was Chalrman of the Board until 12 December
1998, Svoboda is also.on the Board of Directors of
SKODA-EXPORT, a. s

ZDENEK VORLICEK (4]

Barn 1941, Member af the Board of Directors since
& February 2000, Second Vice Chafrman of the
Board of Oiractors from 10 December 1999 to
14 Februaty, 2000, Member of the Board of
Directors from & January 1399 to 9 December 1999

A graduate of the Mechanical Engineering Faculty
of the Czech Technical Unlversity, whera he
specialized in turning and shaping machines,
Vorligek also did post-graduate work at the same
institution and received the title of Dacent (Senfor

VLADIMIR MENSIK
Born 1955, Member of the Board of Dirsctors from
29 January 1998 ta 5 January 1898,

ONDREJ SCHNEIDER

Barn 1964, Member of the Board of Directors from
28 Janbary 1998 to & Jantudry 1999,

— BOARD 0F DIRECTORS

Lecturer), First he-worked as a design angineer and
|ater a5 a professor at the Mechan|cal Engineering
Faculty of the Czech Technical University, [n 1987~
1886 he was a member of the Czech Parliament,
whata he sepved on the Ezanamy Gommittes of the
Chamber of Deputiss. Since August 1698 he
has been with the Czech Ministry. of Industry
and Trade as Deputy Minister for Eeonomic
Polioy. ‘Vorlicek is & member of the Academy: of
Selencds Grant Agehey, a regular guest of the
Govarnmant's Research and Davelopment Couneil,
the Ministry of Industry and Trade's delegate to the
Academic Assembly of the Academy of Seierces,
and a member.of the Ezonomic Policy Task Farca of
the Eoonomic and Social Alliance Councll,

MILAN CERNY

Born 1848, Meniber of the Board of Directors from
11 Decamber 19499 to 15 February 2‘096‘, Chatrman
of the Board of Directors and Chiel Executive
Officer af CEZ, a; s -from: & January 1999 to
10l December 1995,

Agraduate of the Faculty of Electrical Englineering
of the Czech Technical University, Cerny did post
graduate woek 4t the Czech Academy of Sciences
In theheavy currant fleld, specializing In electricity
genaration and distribution.  He also completed
a management colrse. at the University of
Cranlield in Great Britain, During his career to
date, Cerny has warked for Vystavba energatickyoh
zafizenl Praha, where he-helped build the Pacerady
Power Statlon, the energy research instituta
Vyzkumny Gstay eneraeticky Praha, and Engrgovad
Praha in R&D. Cernjalsaheld a diractor's position
at the Czech Academy of Seiences. From 1993 to
1996, Cerny was with the Czech Ministry of
Industry and Trade as Deputy Minister for Enargy

fter leaving public service, he went to wark for
CHEMAPOL GROUP as director of the strategy and
praducts division. Afterwards he warked as an
energy. industry consultant. During his career,
Cerny has served an the supervisory boards of GEZ,
Mostecka uhelnd spolednost, Severodeska
snergetika, Vodnl stavby Bohemia, Spolana, and
(30l and Country Club. He has also baen chairman
or vice chairman af the beards of Melantrich, a. s.,
C.H. €, & s, Omnipol, . s, C. R M., a8 and
Gas-Invest, a. s.

VIT STEPANEK
Born 1981, Member of the Board of Directars fram
28 Januvary 189910 5 Sanuary 1935,

JAN VACIK
Born 1951, Member of the Board of Dirgctors from
15 June 1994 to & Janvary 1999, Chief Exacutive
Officeriof CFZ a s from 29 January (998 to
5uanuvary 1994,




STANISLAV SVOBODA

Horn 1348, Member of the Board of Directors
fram 5 January 1993, Sesond Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors from 15 February 2000 to
26 April 2000, Chief Executive Officer of 0FZ a. s
fram 13 Dacember 1999 ta 26 April 2000,

Sae bio under Board of Directors.

THEODOR DVORAK

Borm 1951, Chairman of the Board of Diraelors
since 10 December 1999, First Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors from 5 Janyary 1999
to 8 December 1998, Executive Diractor for Asset
Managyement and Frovurement since | September
1995

See: bio under Board of Directors:

FRANTISEK HEZOUCKY

Horn 1942, Fiest Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors since 10 December 1899, Second Vice
Chairman pf the Board of Directors since
& January 1999 to 4 December 1999, Executive
Director of the Temalin Nuclear Power Station
Construetion Divisior since 10.June 1934,

See bio under Board of Directors.

JAN KRENK

Borm 1351, Executive Director for Production
singe 1 May 1997, named First Deputy CED on
It January 1999, Second Vice Chairman of the
Board' of Directors from 1 May 1334 to
22 February 1996, re-slected to the Board of
Diractors as Member on 24 July 1996, served
until 29 January 1998,

Krenk is a graduate of the Electrical Engingering
Facllty of the Czech Tachnical University, where
he studied Heavy Curent Engineering, and did
post-graduate wark in Steam Power Generation
at the Techmeal University of Filsen, Ih 1876 -
1982 Krenk held various operating posts at
the Chyaletice Power Station, In 14982 — 1992
he 'worked &t the Dukovary Nuclear Fower
Station, of which he was named director in 1990,
In 1993 — 1994 he was director of the Nuclear
Power Section and, later, the Division of Nuclear
Power Stations at CEZ, a. s, Krenk is a member of
the Board of Directors of the: Nuclear Hessarch
Institute in Re and & member of the Suparvisary
Boards of KOTOUC STRAMBERK, s r o. and
| & € Energo. Since 16 January 1999 he has been
a Supervisory Board member at CEPS, &, 5.
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PETR VOBORIL

Born 1950, Fxecutive Director of UEZ, & s. for
Economics: since 1 May 1897, named Second
Deputy CEQ an 11 Jantary 1999, acting CEQ of
CEZ a. 5. since 27 April 2000,

Voboril Is & yraduate: of the WMechanieal
Enginearing Faculty of the Czech Tachnival
University, where he studied work space
technology, and he did post-graduate work in
district heat development. In 1997 he attended
a management skills course at the IntefManager
European standard level. He first came 1o work
for Ceske anergetické zavady {the predecessor of
today's CEZ, a. 5.} in 1980 and spent the first ten
vears of his carear with CEZ iii operation cantrol
atid heat industry development. After 1890 he
waorked in various economic section posts, and
from 1 January 1895 to April 1998 he was
Director of the: Planning and Analysis Section




IVAN BATKA
Born 1966, Fxecutive Director of CEZ a. 5. far
Commerce singe 1. March 1999,

After graduating from the Economics of Foreign
Trade Faculty of the Upiversity of Economics,
Prague, Bafka worked for the Ligna forslgr trade
organization for two years as & sales assistant
From 1990 to 1897 he was Director of the Real
Estate Section of the Czech-American firm
CONEX, a s, where he was also responsible for
foreign direct investments in the Czech Republic
From 1992 until coming to CEZ Batka was
a private husinessman, Chairman of the Board
and CEQ of Praha 2000, a. s, Chairman of
the Board of Alivo, a. 5. and held board-lavel
positions: in a numbet of other corporatitns.
Currently he is Chairman of the Boards of Chemin,
a, 5 and LIN, & s: as well as Managing Dirgetor
of Londa, s. r. 0., all'of which do business in othet
areas than LFZ

IVAN CELIZNA
Born 1952 Executive Directar of (FZ, a. s for
Human Resources since 1 May 1997

A araduate of the Secondary Industrial School of
Mechanical Engineering. starting in 1971 Celizna
worked for the state enterprise Technoplast
Chropyné as an independent design engineer. He
accepted employment at the Chvaletice Power
Station in 176, where he worked in various
pasitions 1 continuous operations for 15 years
before becoming Chairman of the labor urion
organization in 1881, Between 1992 and 1993 ha
was also @ member of the Supervisory Board of
UEZ, electad by the company's emiployses. In
1983 he hecame Director of the Chvaletice Power
Statlon's Humman Resources Division, and in 19596
he was named Director of the Human Resources
Section al CEZ Headquarters. He is currently
Chalrman of the Supervisory Board of Wevikové
stietlisko energetiky, s. £ 0., @ position he has
held since 1986.
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JIRI RICHTER
Horn, 1947, Executive Director of GEZ a. s. for
Developmerit since T March 1998,

A graduate of the Nuclear Enginegting Facully of
the Czech Technical University specializing in
nuclear reactor physjes and technology, Richter
did post-graduate work at the same Faculty In the
area of experimental newtron physics.  Righter
gaitied ten years of professional experience
working for Energoinvest Praha, a projeot
engineering organization of Ceské enarpeticke
zavodly, where he dealt primarily  with
preparations for the construction of the Dukovany
and Temelin Nuclear Powet Stations. From 1983
until the establishment of CEZ, a. s in 1992,
Richier worked at the Headquarters of Ceske
energeticke zavody, where e dealt with
preparations for the Temelin Nuclear Powsr
Stalion projest, completion of the Dukovany
Nuctear Power Station project, and the: interim
storage facility for spent fuel. He also worked in
stabilization  of capltal ‘construction  and
preparations for & program to decrease air
pollation tenerated by coal-fired power plants. In
1982, Richter was named Director of the
Investment Section responsible-for preparing and
coordinating.  the Company's fossil  power
[nvestment program.



FORMER MEMBERS OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

MILAN CERNY
Barn 1948, Member of the Board of Directars from 11 Dacember 1999 to 15 Februaty 2000, Chairman of the Beard of Directors and Chief
Exeeutive Officer of CEZ, a. 5. from 5 January 1899 to 10 December 1339,

See bio under Board of Dirgetors,

LUDMILA PETRANOVA
BRarn 1948, Member af the Board of Directors from 22 Februgry 1996 to 29 January 19596, Executive Director of CE, a & for Commerce
from' 1 May 1987 to 28 Febriary 1999, and Director of the Evonomics and Finance-Section at CEPS. a. 5. since | March 1999,

A graduate of the Nuciear and Physical Engineering Faculty of the Czech Technical University, Petraniova warked for thirteen years as
a programme at Kaneelafské stroje. three years at a supplier organization for Stfedofieské energeticke zavody and, following the break-
up of that enterprise; as heat of the |T and organization section of PraZské energetické zavody, From 1993 to August 1994 she warked
for CEZ, a. 5. as director of the Change Management Saction, and from September 1994 to March 1588 she worked far Spofifelpl
rvestien| spoletnost as Marketirig Section Director. 1 1994 she joined the Board of Dicectors of Skio Union Teplice, a, s., of which she
was elected Chairperson in 1995, n 1994 — 1985 she was a member of the Board of Directors of Transakta, a. s. Starting in Decembe
1997 she has been a board member of Energovod, & 8., serving first on the Board of Birentors and ldter on the Supervisory Board. She
hvas been a Supervisory Board member for KOTOUC STRAMBERK, 5. 1. 0. sinve January 1998 and was a member of the Board of Directors
of Severoiesks doly, a. 8. from March 1998 to February 1998,

LADISLAV RAFAJ

Born 1943, Frecutive Directar of CEZ, a. s Construction of Temealin Nuclear Power Station Division from 1 April 1998 to 10 June 1939,

Rafaj I5 & graduate of the Mechanical Engineering Faculty of the Slovak Technical University in Bratislava, where he majored in power
angineering. In 1974, Rafa] completed postgraduate studies in nuclear power enginiegring at the Czech Technical University, After
university, he worked at thie Vojany Power Station for three years. In 1979 - 1981 heworked at the Jaslovskeé Bohunice Nuclear Power
Station and in 1981 — 1990 he was employed at the Niclear Power Research Institute in Trmava and at SKODA PRAHA, 4. 5., whera he
took part in the construction of the Machovee Niclear Powel Station. Rafaj became director of Mochovee in 1380, a position he held for
four years. In 1994, he accepted the director’s post at the Jaslovske Bohunice Nuclear Power Station. In the same year, he became
a board member of Slovenské elekiramy a. s.. where he alsa worked as Chiaf Direetor of Maintenance and Qparations until the eqnd of
1995, From 1896 16 1 April 1998 Rafa] was Assistant Deputy for Advancement of Nuclear Safety at the Jaslovske Bohunice Nuclear Fower
Station,

ALES TOMEC

Barp 1857, Member of the Board of Divectors from 22 Februaty 1996 ta 29 January 1998, Executive Dirgctor of CEZ, a: 5. Transmisston
Network Division from 1 May 1997 to 10 March 1999, Director Transmission Metwork Division from 11 March 1984 to 31 December 1999
and Chairman of the Board of Birectors and Chief Executive Officer of CEPS, a. s. since 11 March 1998,

Tomee Is a graduate of the Electrical Engineering Faculty of the Czech Teehnical University, where he studied elestric machinery design.
He:worked for two years al the SKODAEXPORT toraign trade organization. In 1883 he started working at the Control Center of Geska
snergeticke zavody, the predecessor of today’s CEZ. There Tomee progressed through a numbier of positions. Starting in 1981, he, held
a Ieadarship position at the Czechuslovak Statewide Control Center. Tomee was named Dirsetor of the Central Control Center in May,
1894, From February 1996 to January 1998 Tomec was-a Member of the Board of Directurs of CEZ a. s. and in April, 1996, he was
appolnled Dieector of the Transmission Network Division, Currently, Tomec heatds up the Steering Qommittee and is a member of the
Council of CENTREL, He'has been Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of CEZTel, a. s: since-Dctober 1999 and was President of COO
in 1987 — 1959:
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FRANTISEK BROZIK
Born 1955, Member of the Supervisory Beard sitice 5 January 1998, Chairman of the Suparvisery Board since 22 January, 1998,

A graduate of the Mantfactuling Economics Faculty of the University ol Ecopomics, Frague. BroZik is Vice Chairman of the Chamber of
Deputies of the Parliament of the Czech Hepublic. Before entering politics, Brozik worked in various economic positions at manufacturing
firms: Currently he is Vice Chairman of the Presidium of the National Property Fund, the institution he represents on the Supervisory
Board.

VACLAV KREJCI
Bom 1853, Member of the Supsivisary Board elected by employess from 23 February 1993 to 29 January 1998, re-glected to same
pasition on 6 April 1998, Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 22 January 1999,

A yraduate of secondary industrial schuol of chemical technology, Krejél has seven years of experience werking for Chemicke zavody Litvinoy,
Since 1982, he has worked at the Dukovany Nuclear Power Station, where he is currently Head of the Internal Communication Department.

VLADIMIR LASTUVKA
Born 1943, Member of the Supervisory Board since 5 January 1999,

Ladtlvka is a graduate of the Technical and Muclear Physics Faculty of the Czech Technical University in Nuelear Physics, where he
majored in Nuclear Physics. His past work experience inclutles a stint at the Jaslovske Bohunice Nuclear Power Station. Currently, he is
& membar of the Czech Parliament’s Chamber of Deputies, a member of that body's Forelgn Affairs Committee and Vice Chairman of the
Committee for European integration, Lastlivka represents the National Property Fund on the CEZ Supervisary Board.

MICHAL PROCHAZKA
Born 1987, Member of the Supsrvisery Board since 22 June 1999,

A gradvate of the Faculty of Manufacturing Economics at the University of Economics, Prague, Prochdzla passed the Bankruptey
Administrator exams and is a licensed participant in the financial and capltal markets (Frague Stock Exchangel as well as a Nowel data
netwerks administrator. After university, Prochdzka worked as a sales assistant al the Keramika Forgjgn Trade Organization and later,
until 1998, he passed through a number of management positions in investment companies. Currently he is advisor to the Depoty Minister
of Finance for pricing methods and regulation, the instrance industry, the financial markets and banking. He'is Vice Chairman af fhe
Supervisory Board of Strojimport, a. s, and a member of the Supervisory Boards of Nova Huf, &, 5. and Hotelinvest, a. 5, He represants
the National Property Fund an the CEZ Supervisory Board.

JAN SEVR
Borpy 1847, Member of the Supervisory Board elected by employees from 23 February 1993 to 28 Janvary 1998, re-alected to the same
position on 24 June 1999,

A graduate of secondary industrial school of fmechanical engineering, Sevr has worked at the MElnTk Power Station since 1966, where
he currently heads up the shift operations management department,
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KAREL SPACEK
Horm 1830, Member of the Supaivisory Board since January 5, 1999,

Spatek i a finance and statistics graduate of the University of Economics, Prague. In 1987, hie was named Docent of the University of
Economics; Prague, for the finance ared. Spacek worked at the Ministry of Finance in budgeting unti] 1990, From 1980 to 1992 he was
Minister of Finance, after which he served in a number of senior positions as well as teaching. Currently, Spagek is Deputy Minister of
Industry and Trade in charge of the Mitistry’s budget and suppart for smiall and mid-sized businesses. He reprasents the Nalional Property
Fund on the CEZ Supervisory Board,

JIRI SVAMBERK
Born 1844, Member of the Supervisory oard elected by employess from 23 Febryary 1993 to 29 Janyary 1998, re-glscted to same position an
& April 19498,

A graduate of the secondary industrial school of mechanical engineering, since 1962 Svamberk has worked at the Tisova Power Station,
where he currently heads Up the human resources department.

JIRI TRESNAK

Horn 1838, Member of the Supervisary Board since & January 1898,

Trenak is a graduate of the secondaty industrial schaol of ehemistry, He worked at the Mainik Power Station starting in 1960, In 1974
he joined the power plant construction enterprise Vystavba elekirdren, where he worked on a number of plant projects both in
Czechoslovakia and abroad. In 1990 he returned to Mélnik Powar Station and became an employes of CEZ, a. 5. Currently he is 8 member
of the project team in chiarge of dasulfurizing the Malnfk Il and 1| power stations. Treshak reoresents the National Property Fund on the
CEZ Supesvisory Boatd,

LUBOS ZiKA
Born 1954, Meniber of the Supervisory Board since 22 June 1999,

A graduate of the University of Economies, Prague, Zika also attepded several short qualification coyrses and passed the brokerage
exams. After completing his studies in 1989, he worked al the Kladno — based enterprisa Wstavba kamenouhelnyeh doll as head
of information system methodalogy. In the years that followed, he worked as deputy director for economic-and technical services at
DUNZ Kladtio, as a section director for Xerox, as securities section ditector for Raxer —a member of the Prague Stack Exchange and
a Hank Xerox-authorized dealer —and as director of Z-Broker, a securities trading firm. In March 1999 he was appointed to his present
position of advisar to the First Deputy Chairman of thie National Proparty Fund.

Biographies of CEZ Supervisory Board members who were remaved from office at the extraordinary shareholdar meating of & January
1999 and were nat elected to the new Supervisory Board cah be found fn the 1998 Annual Report. This applies to the follewing
Supervisary Board members:

IVAN NOVAK, LADISLAV PETRASEK, JOSEF PETRIK, JIRI VOJTA.
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COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS

The total registered share capital of CEZ, a. s. as of year-and 1999 was CZK 53.209 billion, of which CZK 59.195 billion

was officially registered in the Commercial Register.

As of 19 Jantary 2000, CEZ a. s. had 154,438 shareholders, down 13,070 from the same date of the previous year.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
at 30. 12. 1998 © at 16. 6. 1999 * at 19. 1. 2000 *'
National Property Fund 67.57% 67.60% 67.60%
Other legal entities 29.44% 29.62% 29.86%
Total legal entities 97.01% 97.22% 97.46%
of which: domestic 73.26% 70.66% 69.80%
foreign 23.75% 26.56% 27 66%
Total natural persons 2.99% 2.78% 2.50%
of which: domestic 2.83% 2.62% 2.39%
foreign 0.16% 0.16% 0.15%

» Amatint determined as of the date of-Annual or extraotdinary Genaral Meeting

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE AT 19 JANUARY 2000

T Six legal entities besides the National Property Fund own

Other legal entities
29.86%

, T—
Natural persons
2.54%
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stakes in excess of 1%. As of 19 January 2000, foreign

Natioral Property Fund gntities (both legal entities and natural persons) owned
B7.60% nearly 28% of CEZ, a. s, Other than the National Property
1 Fund, It was not determined from the shareholder list

generated by the Securities Center that any other person’s
share in General Mesting voting rights exceeded 10%.



Share price (CZK)

800
700
600
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300
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE BY NUMBER OF
SHARES OWNED AT 19. 1. 2000

Number of shareholders
154,351
49

Number of shares
1 - 100,000
100,000 — 500,000
500,000 — 1,000,000 14
1,000,000 —10,000,000 20
over 10,000,000 4]
Total 154,439

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE BY SIZE OF STAKE
AT 19. 1. 2000

% of registered capital  Number of shareholders
<=1% 154,432

>1% and <= 2% 3
>2% and <=3%

>3% and <= 4%

>4% and < =5%

>5% and <= 10%

>10%

Total 154,439

® No shareholder dividends were paid in 1989,

® One Annual General Meeting and one extraordinary
General Meeting were held in 1999.

The extraordinary General Meeting, which was held on
5 January 1999, was convened by the Board of Directors
at the request of the majority sharehoider, the National
Property Fund. The General Meeting removed from office
the members of the Board of Directors and Suparvisory

Board elected by the Genetal Meeting. Subsequently, it
lowered the number of Board of Directors members from
7 to 5 anhd elected new members of the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board,

The Annual General Meeting, whieh was held an
22 June 1999, approved the financial statements and
earnings allocation for 1898 as well as the actions taken
by the Board of Directors in providing documentation to
the independent team in charge of assessing the
completion of the Temelin Nuclear Power Station. It

further approved the remuneration of the members of the:

company’s boards, the Business Plan through 2005, the
passibility of selling the TuSimice | Power Station and
the purchase of enriched uranium. Lastly, the General
Meseting increased the number of Supervisory Board
members.

® A [awsuit brought by one of the shareholders called jnto
doubt the validity of the extracrdinary General Meeting
(5 January 1999) and theraby that of the Annual General
Meeting (22 June 1999) as well. In order ta pul the
rompany back on sound legal footing in the interests of
shiareholders and third parties alike, two members of the
Supervisory Board convened an extraordinary General
Meeting in accordance with the Commercial Code. This
General Meeting, which took place on 25 January 2000,
upheld the resolutions of the two General Meetings held
in 1999, The coal purchasing issue was put up for
discussion again, and it was concluded that clear
economic eriteria must be applied to the coal supplier
selection process in the future. The Gepsral Meeting
also approved the Board of Ditector’s proposal
concerning sponsorship donations in 2000,

CEZ SHARE VALUE ON THE PSE AND THE PX 50 STOCK MARKET INDEX, 1999

NED Feh. March
B 1st issue —CZK 1,100

Apr. May June

2st isstie = CZK 1,000

21

July Aug. Sept. Oct:. Nov. Dec.

PX 50 index

Merged issue post-split = CZK 100

540
500
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340
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ISSUED SECURITIES — TYPES AND AMOUNTS

Salomon Brothers

Type of ISIN Issue Interest  Maturity Form Face Volume Manager Early
Securities Date Value Repayment
15t share C50008441952 6. 5. 1992 % X registered  CZK 1,100 CZK 56.9 billion x X
issua ! 1o bearer
251 share (20005104350 8. 8. 1994 % X registered  CZK 1,000 CZK 2.3 billion X X
issug " 1o bearer
Share CZ0005112300 15. 2. 19393 X X registered  CZK 100 CZK 59.2 billion % X
split ? 1o bearer
15t bond CZ0003500181 25. 6. 1993 16:50% 1598 certificate £ZK 10,000 CZK 2.1 billion  Ceska spofitelna 26, 6. 1996
issue
2nd bond CZ200063500233 27.1.1994 14 3/8% 2001 certificate  CZK 10,000 CZK 4.0 billion  Ceskd spofitelna 27.11.1889
issue
3rd bond CZ0003500423 6. 6, 1995 11.30% 2005 registered  CZK 10,000 CZK 4.0 billion ABN-AMRO frain 6. 6. 2000
issue to bearer to 6. 6. 2004
4th bond CZ0D03500654 27. 6. 1996 10.90% 200 registered.  CZK 10,000 GZK 3.0 billlon  Komeréni banka, 27.6. 1899
issua 1o bearer ING Baring
Capital Markets,
Ceskd spofitelna
5th bend CZ0003500662 27.6.1936 11 1/16% 2008 registered  CZK 10,000 CZK 3.0 billion Ceska spofitelna, from 27. 6. 2008
lssue to hearer Komeréni banka,  to 27. 6. 2006
ING Baring
Capital Markets
Bth bond CZ0003501068 26119849 810 2009 registered  CZK 1,000,0000  CZK 4.5 billien ING Baring X
Issue coupan” 1o bearer Capital Markets
751 bhopd CZ0003501058 26 1, 1999 9.22%" 2014 registered  CZK 1,000,000 €ZK 2.5 billion ING Baring X
issue to hearer Capital Markets
Bth bond CZ0003501090 7. 6 1994 8.3/4% 2004 registered  CZK 10,000 CZK 3.0 billion  Ceska sporitelna %
issue to bearer
15t Furobohd ] 15. 12 1994 8§ 7/8% 18499 registered  USD 10,000 USD 158 million J. B Morgan x
18508 to bearer
2nd Eurobond ¥ 20.10. 1999 7.25% 2006 registerad  EUR 1,000 EUR 200 million Credit Suisse X
Issue to bearer ~ EUR 10,000 First Boston
EUR 100,000
Yankee bonds " 17. 7. 1897 T1/8% 2007 registered  USD 1,000 USD 200 million ©  J. B Morgan. X
to bearer Merrill Lynch,

" Face value at time of isste CZK 1,000, by decision of the shareholder meating of September 20, 1993 raised to CZK 1,100 Number of shares issued: 57,731,161,
‘I The number of shares issued before and after the registration of Privatization Project supplements was 2,290,665 and 2,304,569, respectively.

4 |ssuad through CFZ Finance B! V.

4 USD 22 million bolight back by issiser i 1998.
“Yield is the difference between value of bond at issus [CZK 1.9 billion) and face value (CZK 4.5 billion).
“ Starting in 2008, the honds will bear interest at a variable rata defined as CPl + 4.2%.

"' As of February 15, 1989, the fitst share issue |CSU0DB441852) and Second share issue (CZODO5104950) ware split into shares with face vallie of CZK 100

{CZ0005112300). _
Numbers of shares outstanding before and after the increase in capital stock are 591,949,421 and 592,088,461, respactively.

Unpaid amount of shares issued: 0.
The company has not issued any convertible honds.
Under the isstie conditions, the bonds are not guaranteed by the State or by any bank.

The last eolumn of the table above shows the dates when the debtor (i.e. CEZ) has the option to repay the bonds early. Provisions giving the creditar
an early repayment option are contained in each domestic bond issue agreement except the last three. These options are exercisable in the event

the debtor is-not able to secure a minimum instalted capacity of 7,500 MW.
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RATING

In late September, Standard & Poor’s affirmed CEZ's “BBB+" rating with a stable outlook ard in early October Moody's left
CEZ's rating unchanged at “Baal”. These ratings reflect CEZ's market position in the Czech Republic and its stable
operating performance. They also take into account weaknesses such as the opague regulatory environment, the fact that
electricity pricing reform has taken longer than originally anticipated, the lacklustre performance of the Czech economy,
‘and-defays in the construction of the Temelin Nuclear Power Station.
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“FOR ME, CEZ IS A MODERN ELECTRIC COMPANY.
MODERN IN THE SENSE THAT IT IS CAPABLE OF
SUCCESSFULLY MARKETING ITS PRODUCT.”

(STANISLAV SVOBODA, CEO OF CEZ, a. s. FROM 13 DECEMBER
1999 T0 26 APRIL 2000)

BUSINESS CONCEPT

The concept of CEZ's business activity drafted in 1995 gave direction
to the company’s operations, gave management and employees alike a
firm idea of the company's basic focus in the changing entrepreneurial
environment, and set the stage for the company's leng term growth and
development.

This key document fooused on improving the company's credibility and
ensuring that it is perceived as an ethical, financially healthy and
reliable partner that is radically reducing the negative impact its
operations have on the environment.

Twa significant changes took place in the second half of the 1990s:

@ The Czech economy dipped into a recession, accompanied by a decling
in demand for electricity;

e "Eiropean Parliament Directive No. 96" concerning common rules for
the internal electricity market was passed and came iito force in
February 1999 aiming to gradually introduce competition into the
market for electricity generation and distribution in the EU.

The upcoming period will require CEZ, a. s. to undergo fundamental changes-as it remakes itself into a company capable
of withstanding competition in the national electricity and heat markets as well as in the ever more agaressively
competitive environment of the Europsan Union electricity market, ‘

The business plan approved by the General Meeting of CEZ, . s. on 22 June 1999 sets forth the assumptions, goals, and
development initiatives by which these changes will take place.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT GOALS THROUGH 2005

The principal business of CEZ a. s, is the generation, purchase, and sale of electricity. This is given by the company's focus
tuntil now and by the fact thal it has positioned ttself to enjoy a long-term sustainable competitive advaritage over existing
and potential competitors. The accounting-purpose and managerial separation of electricity generation from the other
businesses will allow us to do business on the electricity market more efficiently and more transparently.

|

CEZ, a. s. also has secondary businesses that support the primary business with the goal of increasing the efficiency of i

prifary energy use and reducing electricity and heat generation costs:

o Supply of thermal eneray generated at CEZ, a. s. co-generation plants; CEZ, a. s. will continue to supply heat to the ﬂ
locations it currently supplies, sinee this activity gives the company a competitive advantage and CEZ, a. s. is interested i
in selling heat in other locations where analysis shows there to be potential demand for district heat service and
confirms that CEZ involvement would be advantageous from-a business perspactive; i

@ [rading in by-products of electricity and heat generation processes with regard to making effective: economic use of
these commodities.

The CEZ, a. s. Business Plan also sets forth goals for tertiary businesses which are to be one of the tools for mitigating
risk and a means of developing and achieving a higher degres of utilization of the material and intellectual potential of
the copipany and its employees.
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In carrying out the Business Plan through 2006, CEZ, a. s.

will concentrate on the following strategic goals:

1.To complate and put into safe and relisble operation
the Temelin Nuclear Power Station and create
conditions for modernizing the Bukevany Nuclear
Power Station wWith the goal of adding another
approximately 10 years to its useful life while at the
same time complying with Czech legislation and
international safety recommendations for the
facility's operation;

2.To optimize the structure of coal-fired power plant
generation capacity through a program of advanta-
geoys purchases and/or aoquisitions combined with
the sale of all or part of cartain facilities;

3.To adapt in a flexible and timely manner to competitjon
for good business opportunities in the construction of
new electricity and heat generation facilities both
independently and in cooperation with other market
players;

4.To fncrease the efficiency of energy transformation
processes at CEZ power stations;

5.7 actelerate preparations fof doing busitiess in the
emerging competitive environment in the demestic and
European electricity markets;

6.To implement & system of safety management and
anvironmental protection;

7.To put in motion business: processes that mave the
company toward more goordinated decision-making,
useful concentration of functions and. bringing abiout
a marked increase in the compary's market focus;

B.To make operafing cost and investment spending
management more effective;

9.To give emplayees the training necessary o prepare
them for doing business ina competitive environment,
using effective human resource management processes;

10.To support the fulfillment of the Effective Interndl
Commuriieations Program,

The company's developmental stralegies are supported by
a Change Program that focuses on preparing the company
for fundamental changes in the external enviranment as
the electricity market is gradually liberalized.

QUALITY SYSTEM

One of management's priorities is ensuring the safe and
reliable. operation of generation equipment while
minimizing negative environmental impacts. Therefore, in
conjupetion with the company's implementation of
a system of integrated management of quality,
environmental issues and safety, the company updated its
(Quality Policy and at the same time issued its Safsty
Policy and Enviranmental Policy documents.

The implementation of the above mentioned Folicies will
gradually prepare all CEZ, a. s. power stations for
certification under the CSN EN 1SO 14001 standard
[Environmental Management Systems). The first greup of
power stations is slated to indergo certification in 2080.

The process-oriented management model currently being
implemented makes use of the recommendations of the
CSN EN 1SO 9000 and 14000 standards. In the nuclear

ared, the model respects the recommendations of the
International Atomic Energy’ Agency and applicable
legislation, especially the Czech Republic’s “Nuclear Act”,

SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors, in cooperation with the
Supervisory Board and other levels of management, is
systematically developing the compaiy's system of
internal control, consisting primarily of risk management
and risk control, flows of communication and information,
effectiveness monitoring of the management and control
system, and the creation of a environment compatible
with and conducive to the entire spectrum af control
dctivities and procedures.

The company's internal audit department is focused on
maritoring the effectiveness of the internal control
system. Work performance and measujes proposed to
correct shortcomings and points of ‘weakness ar
increased risk are regularly discussed by the Board
of Directors’ Audit Committes, together with the
comprehensive verification activity of the company's
external auditars, Arthur Andersen Ceska republika, k. 5.

This alfows hoth the statutory body and executive
management to focus: the internal control system an
assessing the risks ensuing from the internal environment
and the company's own activities. Priority is given to
ensuring that all the company's assets are protecied at
a level that complies with internationally recegnized
standards.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

CEZ, a. 5. reqularly analyzes the risk exposure of its debt
portfolio and its income and spending in' foreign currencies
with: regard to movements in currency exchange and
interest rates. By actively hedging potential financial risks,
the company keeps the overall risk exposure of its foreign-

scurrency liabilities within set limits.

With the goal of increasing transaction safety, all foreign
currency payment functions were transferred from the
organizational units to Headquarters. Currently a similar
measure is being considered for payments in the domestic
currency.

CEZ's overall indebtedness, excluding provisioning, in
domestic and foreign currencies advanced 1o 35.2% from
fts 1998 value of 32.8%. Thanks tol aetive hedging
throughout the year, the ratio of long-term borrawing jn
foreign currencies to overall long-term debt was 29% as

of 31 December 1989, as opposed to 63% before hedging,

while a year earlier this ratio was 40%, or 57% before
hedging. In 1999, CZK 20.7 billion in long-term currency
hedging transactions and CZK 9.5 billion in long-term
interest rate swaps were realized.

In the area of short-term hedging of foreign-currency
expenses and jncome, the company began to use options
strategies in addition ta forward transactions.
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INSURANCE

(EZ, a. s. carries property and casualty insurante covering
all material risks. The insurance is designed to cover
catastrophic risks in particular.

Insurance policies cover primarily the property risks at the
Bukovany Nuclear Power Station and at the fossil and
hydre power stations. The company also carries a policy
that covers the Temelin MNuclear Power Station
conslruction site.

The company also carries casualty insurangce that covers
third-party liability in conjunction with the “Nuelear Act”,
For example; this category of insurance protects the
company from liability

o for "nuclear” damages in conjunction with the transport
of fresh nuclear fuel to the Dukovany and Temelin
Nuclear Power Stations and the storage of nuclear
material in the Temelin Nuclear Power Statien
compound;

» for "nuclear” damages caused by the operation of the
Dukovany Nuglear Power Station.

In conjunction with preparations for trial operation of the
Temelin Nuclear Power Station, negotiations were held
with the company's domestic insurer (the Office of the
Czech Nuclear Pool) and with representatives of foreign
insurers concerning the preparation of risk inspections
and insurance policies to cover praperty and liability for
"nuclear” damages at this facility. In accordance with
"Nuclear Act” requirements, an interim insurance poliey
covering liability risks from the operation of the Temelin
Nuclear Power Station was signed in December 1993 and
will take effect on the day when fuel is loaded into the
reactor. The- final language of the insurance contract
will be finalized in negotiations among CEZ, a. s,
\Westinghouse, and the insurer prior to the date for
loading fuel into the first reactor block.

IT DEVELOPMENT

CEZ, a. s. traversed the Y2K calendar rollover prablem-
free, providing for the generation and supply of electricity
ard heat without interruption. Approximately CZK 90
million was spent on Y2K preparations, of which nearly
70% was spent on power station control and ancillary
systems. Planned shutdowns of generation equipment
were held to carry out the necessary adjustments and
tests, ensuring that there was no impatt on supplies of
electricfty and heat throughout the entire year.

In the finance area, an upgrade of the CODA accounting
system was installed, allowing for centralized data
processing, Work on the ISE Project (power station
information system) went forward with the installation of
the first three modules at two power stations for operational
testing, Work is also progressing on unifying the materials
inventory. numbering system [now nearly 80% complete),
a jobwhich must be finished before further ISE modules can
be installed. Attention was also pajd to information flows
in payments (centralized processing of international

payments using new SW format) and electronic data
exchange with banks (EDIFACT format). A new system
(C2000 Central) was put into operation for processing
documentation and invoicing large-volume customers.

In the course of the company’s efforts to unify the
company's IT infrastructure, & major step was taken
towards increasing the system's operational security.
A unified backup system was implemented in 1999 at
gight organizational units, with the remainder of the
implementation completed in early 2000.

DEVELOPMENT OF
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
INFRASTRUCTURE

In 1999, CEZ, a. s. completed a substantial portion of the
telecommunications infrastructure roll-out pragram. The
remainder will be completed in 2000,

The Synchrenous Digital Hierarchy (SDH) was completed and
put into operation and over 260 km of cable was installed in
the fiber network. At present approximately 2,400 km of fiber
cables are in operation (out of a the target of 2,500 km).

In Detober 1999 the company took a step toward fulfilling
CEZ, a. s. strategy and transformation goals by
establishing the subsidiary telecommunications company
CEZTel, a. 5., which is 100% owned by CEZ, &. s. The
newly established company's primary business will be to
provide telecommunications services to CEZ, a. s. and
CEPS, a. 5. Any remaining telecommunications capacity
will be sold on the open market.

COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY

As it worked toward fulfillment of its long-term
communications strategy in 1999, CEZ, a. s. endeavored
to be perceived by the public as a strong, modern,
dynamic and competitive Czech company of European
caliber and as a credible firm striving to build
a conscientious relationship to nature and the
envirohment.

(EZ, a. 5. was awarded first prize in the “Paegas Signum
Temporis 1999 — Openness in Informatien: Disclosure
Award”, This award is-given to the company that enjoys
the highest overall trust of the prefessional community,
providing high-quality, up-to-date information about itself
and presenting itself in the media with the same degree
of responsibility. The company's willingness to disclose
information was also demonstrated by the fact that CEZ's
annual report took second place in the “Apnugl Report of
the Year 1998" compétition, placing first in the categories
"Cantent”, and “Energy Sector”. This strategy also
includes publishing quarterly financial reports. The
company also received recognition for its efforts in the
form of rankings performed by the CZECH TGP 100
Association. CEZ, a. s. placed third in the categery 100
Most Admired Companies in the Czech Republic in 1999°
and ranked second in the categary "100 Biggest
Compariies in the Czech Republic in 1998".
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Alsa cantributing to better internal communications &t
the company was a change in the cortent and format of
the manthly CEZ Bullgtin

The campaign “We have o secrets - come and see for
yvaursell” had the goal of publicizing the company’s five
information centers,  Visitorship lo the eenters rose by
around 50% over the: previous year. A travelling exhibit -
another part of the campajgn - spent time in 23 Czech cities
to help children and young people leam aboul nuclear
energy and point aut its advantages and drawhacks.
surveys organized by STEM demonstrate that the Czech
public has a positive opinion on the completion and
commissioning of the Temalin Nutlear Power Station

SPONSORSHIP DONATIONS
[—

g Health car
1 galses CZK VB milllon (285}

Thi enwironmeant 0ZK 173 million

(28%)
Edlcatiaon, the 56
GZK6.3 million (10%:)

=l

Other CZK 5.3 milliay

8%

PUBLIC APPROVAL OF COMPLETION OF TEMELIN NUCLEAR POWER STATION (%)

3/83 4/94 11/84

11/95

3/95 3/96

The cansullation services offered free of charge by the
CEZ Energy Consulting Center are sought after. The
campaign “Ouradvice isn't expensive - it'|l teach you how
to save” helped increase visitorship to the Center by
20%: A total of 5,800 visitors received advice on how to
save on their electric bills

CEZ, a. s. is the only industrial corporation in the Czech
Heoublic: to actively support education and science
in technlcal fields. In 1999 CEZ a s. donated aver
360,000 ipfermational and educational publications to
approdimately 4,000 schools

SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM

The 1999 budget for the sponsership program was CZK
100" million, Due to an amendment to the Articles of
Association passed by the General Meeting in June 1999
giving the General Meeting authority over the
sponsorship program, only CZK 628 million of this
amount'was actually spent
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The amount expended oh eentrally managed sponsarship
actiyities [for example, support for the Dlga Havlova Good
Will Committee, the Czech Wind Energy Association, the
Mato| Faculty Hospital, the.Prague Optomoloyy Clinie, and
a number of other organizations) was CZK 17.8'milljon

The CEZ sponsarship program puts special priority on
smaller-scale activities that support the regians In which
the company operates power generation facilities, This
area recelved CZK 45 million, This part of the program
supports health a@nd secial care, education pragrams,
programs for primary schools, secondary schools and
universities, energy corservation projects and alternative
efjergy solrces, as well as.a host of other activities
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“ONLY LOW COSTS OF PRODUCTION LEAD TO THE COMPANY'S

LONG-TERM COMPETITIVENESS."
{JAN KRENK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CEZ a. s. FOR PRODUCTION)

PRODUCTION BASE

The primary busingss of CEZ, a. 5. is the gengration of electricity in coal-fired,
nuclear and hydro plants. The:loeations of the company's generation facilities
and the proportions of the various facility types in total installed capacity at
31 December 1998 and 1999 can be seen in the graphs on this and the
following pages.
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CEZ INSTALLED POWER GENERATION CEZ INSTALLED CAPACITY BY TYPE OF
CAPACITY GENERATION FACILITY AT 31 DECEMBER (MW)
. 31 DECEMBER 1998 1998 1999
{ Coal-fired power stations,
‘ L— desulfurized 6,517 6,517
oal-fired powet stations, - :
desulfurized B0% Coal-fired power stations,
[ non-desulfurized 750 0
Goal-fired power stations, Hydro power stations 1.872 1,873
noft-desulfurized 7% Nuclear power station 1,760 1.760
=] : Solar and wind power stations ] ]
Hyfo power stations; 7% Total installed capacity 10,900 10,151
- i accardance with "Clean Ajr Adt " requil this “non-desutfirized”

Nucleat powir station 16% 2 :
I ganeration capacity was shut down as:af 1 Jdanvary 1399,

31 DECEMBER 1999

Coal-fired power stations,
desulturized 644

{—

Hydiro power stations 19%

Nucleal puwer station 17%

FOSSIL POWER STATIONS AT 31 DECEMBER 1999

Power station Type of fuel  Installed capacity (MW) Put into operation Desulfurized
Melnik Il (Unit No. 9,10)  brown coal 2x 110 1971 1998
Melnik Il (Unit Na. 11) brown coal 1 x 500 1981 1998
Tisova | brown coal 2% 851 »50; 1 x12 1959 — 1960 1996 — 1997
i Tisova Il brown coal 1x 100 1961 1997
Poriti Il black coal 3 x 55 1857 — 1968 1896, 1998
hrown coal
Nachod *' brown coal bl X 12 1950, 1969 1997
Dvdr Kralove = brown coal 1x631x12 1955, 1963 1997
Detmarovice . black coal 4 % 200 1975 - 1976 1998
Chvaletice brown coal 4 x 7200 1977 - 1978 1997, 1998
Ledvice | brown coal Z2x110 1966 1996
Ledvice [l brown coal 1% 110 1968 1998
Tusimice |l brown coal 4 x 200 1974 - 1975 1997
Poterady brown coal 9 x 200 1970 - 1971, 1977 1994, 1996
Hodonin lignite 1x50; 1 x55 1954 — 1958 1996 — 1997
Prunefay | brown coal 4% 110 1967 — 1968 1995
Prunérov || brown coal 5x 210 1981 — 1982 1996
Fossil power
stations total 6,517

“ District-heat plants are'part of the Foilei organizational unit and emissions limits are complied with by buming low-suffur fuels and
use of natural gas as a supplementary fuel,
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NUCLEAR POWER STATIONS

AT 31 DECEMBER 1999

Nuclear power Installad Fut into
station in operation  capacity (MW) pperation
Dukovany 4 x 440 1985 — 1987
Nuclear power

station total 1,760

Nuclear power station Installed Commissioning
under construction napacity (MW) planned for
Temelin 2 %.1,000 Unit No. 1 = 2001

Uhit No. 2 — 2002

HYDRO POWER STATIONS AT 31 DECEMBER 1999

Run of river and Installed Put into
resemvoir hydro capacity (MW) operation
power stations

Lipna | 2 x 60 1959
Lipno Il 1 %5 1887
Hnévkovice 2448 1992
Kofenske 2x13 1982
Orlik 4 x 91 1961 - 1962
Kamyk 4x10 1961
Slapy 348 1954 — 1955
Stéchovice | 2x11.25 1943 — 1944
Vrané 72 %694 1936
Stvanice ™ 3x1.B9 1987
Mohelno 1 %1.2; 1% 0:66 1877; 1999
Zalina 2 x 0.315 1994
Total 728

Pumped storage
hydra power

stations

Stechovice Il 1 %45 1947 — 1948
Dalesice 4x1125 1978
Diouhé Strang 2 %325 1996
Total 1,145

Pumped storage
hydro power
stations total 1.873

*ULintil 29 Febitiary 2000 CEZ o, 8, was only the operdtty, not the owner
af this power station. Effective 1 March 2000 the pawer statian is
aperated by its ownet.

WIND POWER STATIONS AT 31 DECEMBER 1999

[nstalled Put into

capacity (MW) operation
Mravenetnil 1x0.220 1998
(Jeseniky) 1% 0315

1'% 0.630
Wind power 1.165

stations total

SOLAR POWER STATION AT 31 DECEMBER 1999

Installed Put inta
gapacity (MW) operation
Mraveneanik 1x0.01 14998
(Jesanily)
Solar power 0.01

station total

PROCUREMENT OF FUEL FOR CEZ, a. s.
FOSSIL POWER STATIONS

Most fuel supplies for CEZ's fossil power stations were
procured under mid-term framework purchase agreements
with major suppliers (Severoteské doly, a. s, Mostecka
uhelnd spoletnost, a. s., Sokolovskd uhelnd, a. s.. and
0KD, a. s.). Specific supply conditions were set forth i
annual purchase agreements. This allowed us to build
lorig-term partnership relationships with coal comparies
while at the same lime reacting to developments in the
Czech sconomy, In addition to the medium term
agreements mentioned above, CEZ, a. s. also has a long-
term framawork agreement with Severoteske doly, a. s.
conceming supplies of coal until the year 2015

As a result of the stagnating economy and increased

electricity generation by independent producers, 1998

saw electricity generation at GFZ facilities fall short of
btth plan and actyal figures from past years. This made it
clear as eatly as the first quarter of 1999 that it would not
be possible to absorb: the entire contracted-for volume of
coal from all suppliers. CEZ, a. s. reacted to this situation
by increasing electricity exports: in cooperation with
several coal companies. At mid-year amendments were
signed 1o the agreements with OKD, a. s., Severoteske
doly. a..s. and Spkofovska uhelng, a. s. setting forth lower
prices for @ portion of the contracted-for coal velume,
allowing us lo increase electricity exports.
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The only major supplier with which the company was unable
to come to a similar agreement was Mostecka uhglng spo-
lecnost, a: s. The application of economiic effectiveness
criteria led to lower utilization of coal fram this supplier,

fn Detober the Bureal for Protection of Econorie
Competition commenced administrative proceedings on
allegations that the decrease in' coal purchases from
Mostecka uhelna spolegnost, a. s. in 1999 was in violation
of the "Act on Protection of Economic Competition”.

A decision of this Bureau issued in January 2000 ardered
CEZ, a s, to pay a fine of GZK 10 million pursuant to
Section 9(3) of the above mentioned Act for abuse of its
dominant position in the ralevant market for brown coal for
use in the generation of electricity. In February 2000
CEZ, a s. appealed this decision to the Bureau for
Protection of Ecanomic Compatition. In case of failure the
company intends to request the appropriate courts to
review this decision to determine its legality.

If the loss of domestic market share had not been made
up for by increased electricity exports, the amount of
glectricity generated in CEZ fossil power stations would
have been 3.8 TWh |ess:

With regard to unfavorable developments leading to lower
extraction of brown eoal fof use in power generation in the
Czech Republic, a numiber of negatiations were held with
suppliers to ensure both their economic stability and
a viable price for CEZ, a. 5. in 2000 and future years. After
complex negotiations a compromise solution was reached
and in 1999 purchase agreements were signed for 2000
with Severoteské doly, a. s., Sokolovska uheln, a. 5., and
OKD, a. s. Ah agreement with Mostecké uhelnd spo-
leénost, a. . was signed in February, 2000.

In addition to the companies aiready mentioned, fuel supply
purchase agreements were also signed with the companies
Lignit Hodonin, s. r. v. and Gemec, s. 1. 0. in 2000.

ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION IN THE CZECH REPUBLIC

COMPARISON OF GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT WITH ELECTRICITY
CONSUMPTION IN THE CZECH REPUBLIC (1990 = 100%)
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75
1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

Gross demestic product I Elsctricity consumptivn [exeluding households)

N Holseholds

Tatal electricity cansumption

(e ahove graphiinclides newly-published (Marofr 2000) Cravh Statistical Offics numbers on gross domastic prodliet wiich, dug o & ¢hanga in
metfiodafngy, differ substantially from numbars pulilishedin past years
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The transformatior) of the Czech economy continued in ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION IN THE CZECH
1999, At the same time, the country's problems with REPUBLIC OVER TIME (GWh)

incemplete restructurings and privatizations persisted. In

the first quarter of last year GOP contracted by 4.5% 60,000
compared with the same period a year earlier. This was

followed by moderate economic growth starting in the 55.000
secand quarter, diiven primarily by exports of goods and i
services and accompaniad by growth jn both public and

private consumption, Even so, gross damestic product fell 50,000
0.2% overall for the year,
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54,146
53,163
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50,837

Declining performance of the economy, ongoing changes 45,000

in its structure, and the population’s reaction to'electricity

price hikes in 1998 caused a further decline in electricity 40,000

consumption, which in 1989 retreated to pre-1985 levels.
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1990/ 199) 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 {998
CONSUMPTION AND GENERATION OF ELECTRICITY OVER TIME (%)

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
Year-on-year electricity 99.2 103.2 105.8 103.8 48.2 982 97.4
demand index
CEZ, a. s. share in meeting 74.3 137 76,9 80.0 8.2 76,4 72.9

electricity demand in Czech Republic

Year-on-year index of elgciricity generated

— in Czech Republic 99.3 89,7 103.6 105.6 100.5 100.8 98.8
—alCkZ a. s 97.4 91.7 102.2 104.] 99.5 99.8 95.5

The impact of lower electricity demand was partially mitigated by electricity exports exceeding imports. Overall, electricity
imports o the Czech Republic increased by 17.5% over the previous year (imports by CEZ, a. s. inereased by 7.6% only), while
overall exports rose by 26,0% (exports by CEZ, a. 5. increased by 28.2%), Czech Republie electricity generation fell for the
fitst time since 1994 by 1.2% on'the previous year,

CZECH REPUBLIC — ELECTRICITY EXPORTS AND IMPORTS (GWh)

19493 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 Index

99/98

Import 903 1,583 21539 3.090 2,565 2,069 2431 117:5%
Export 3,007 2,038 2,121 3,093 3,153 4,530 5,107 126.0%
Halance -2,104 -445 418 3 -1,188 -2.461 -3,276 133.1%

Transit 5,096 3,396 2,421 3,238 2.895 2,604 1,968 15.6%
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ELECTRICITY GENERATION

INSTALLED CAPACITY OF GENERATION FACILITIES AND GENERATION OF ELECTRICITY IN THE CZECH
REPUBLIC AND AT CEZ, a. s.

Units 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998

Czech power system - 9,288 9632 10415 108)4 10814 10,149
annual peak |oad

Czech power system
annual peak load
adjusted to normal
temperature dnd 50 Hz

Czach power system MW 14,227 13,826 13,793 15,07 5, 15,267
installed capacity
al 31 Deeember 1999
MW 10,655 10,235 10,184
% 4.9 74.0 7138

Total electricity GWh 58882 58,705 B0,B47 B4,257 64,598
generated in the

— GWh__4bA45_ 45377 46,361 AB766 48008 47,892 45722 955 %

% 78,9 773 76.2 75.1 74.3 73.6 i X

In 1888 the installed capacity of generation solirces in the Czech Republit declined by 0.2% on 1998, Overall electricity,
generation at all sources in the Czech Republic declined by 804 GWh (1.2%). However, generation by CEZ, a. s. decliped
by 2,170 GWh (4.5%), while generation at other sources increased by 1,366 GWh (3.8%), resulting in a fall in CEZ's share
in overall Czech Republic electricity generation from 73.6% to 71.1%.




ELECTRICITY GENERATION IN THE CZECH ELECTRICITY GENERATION AT CEZ, a. s. (GWh)
REPUBLIC (GWh)
70,000 60,000 er 8888
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CEZ a. s. ELECTRICITY GENERATION BY SOURCE
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|

Hydro powsar stations 3% ]:l
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Nuclear power station 28%
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Dasulfurized fossi|
power stations 54%
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I
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(GWh] 1998 1999
Fossil power stations, desulfurized 25,949 30.887
Fossil power stations, non-desulfurized 71,396 0
Hydro power stations 1,369 1,478
Nuclear power stalion 13,178 13,357

CEZ, a. . power generation total 47,892 45,722

In 1999 CEZ, a. 5. produced electricity using environmentally friendly sources only. With the completion of
its generation plant environmental compliance pragram (desulfurization, fluidized-bed boilers), CEZ, a. &
met “Clean Air Act” requirements on time,

By completing planned repairs early and minimizing the failure rate, the company was able to generate more
electricity in the Dukovany Nuclear Power Station. Powar generation at this facility in 1999 was 13.4 TWh,
arecord.

COST OF ELECTRICITY AND HEAT SUPPLY

Despite @ number of measures (focused primarily on reducing energy consumed per unit of fuel, work force
cuts, ete.) the cast of electricity and heat supplied by CEZ, a. 5. has exhibited a general growth trend over
the past few years. The reasons for this are the following:

e across-the-hoard inffationary growth in the prices of basic inputs (especially services),
e inclusion of cast of provisianing for future decommissioning of nuclear facilities,
e growing fixed-asset depreciation charges as major construction projects are completed,

@ the systematic roll-out of new technelogies in operations, focused on protecting the environment [e.g.,
flue gas desulfurization and dry removal of ash and desulfurization process waste at fossil power
stations).




EFFICIENCY INDICATORS AND FAILURE RATES

The: heat rate at the fossil plapts was reduced to its lowest level yet, despite an increase in on-site electricity
gonsumption by add-on flue-gas cleaning technology and the processing of waste products. The record-low heat rate at
the fassil plants was achieved through step-hy-step modernizations of various. technologies, betier sealing of the air-
intake and flue-gas exhaust tracts and fittings. Greater utilization of high-efficiency sources (the Melnik Il and Détma-
foviee Power Stations) and increased electricity exports in the second half also centributed to the decline.

The heat rate at the Dukovany Nuclear Power Station amounted to ts lowest valtue in the histary of the facility. This
achisvement was due maiply to the revamp of the condensation section of Unit No, 1

DEVELOPMENT OF HEAT RATE AT COAL-FIRED POWER STATIONS AND THE DUKOVANY
NUCLEAR POWER STATION (GJ/MWh)

13.00
12.50
12.00
11.50
11.00
10.50

10.00
1983 1984 1885 1996 1997 1998 1999

Coal-fired power stations Dukovany Nuelear Power Station

The lowest ever network control failure rate in CEZ, a, s. history was achieved at the coal-firad power stations; thanks
primarily to batter repairs and maintenance |eading, amangst other achievements; to'the reliable eperation'of the 500 MW
unit at the Melntk Il Power Station thanks to an evaporator weld repajr during the course of routine preventive
maintenance, The network control failure rate for the-hydro plants did not exceed 1% of maximum capacity, The lang-term
tailure rate of generation units at the Dukovany Nuclear Power Station is less than 1% of maximum capacity, making it
ane of the most reliable nuclear power stations in'the entire world,

e

NETWORK CONTROL FAILURE RATE AT COAL-FIRED, HYDRO PLANTS AND DUKOVANY NUCLEAR
POWER STATION (% OF THEORETICAL MAXIMUM CAPACITY)

1993 i 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 [

Coal-fired power stations I Hydro power stations Dukovany Nuglear Power Station
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L)

UNPLANNED FAST AUTOMATIC REACTOR
SHUTDOWNS AT DUKOVANY NUCLEAR POWER
STATION COMPARED WITH WORLD AVERAGE

0.9

0.6

0.3
m@ge In 1988, for the first time since the Dukovany
Nuclear Power Station was put into operation,
i ] there was no fast unplanned automatic

0.0 Dukovany Nuclear Power Station reactor shutdown at any of the units.

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
Nare: Warld average figure for 198915 preliminary

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
DUKOVANY NUCLEAR POWER STATION

Shutdowns of three units were carried out in 1999 to replace fuel and perform annual inspections and preventive
maintenance. The fuel replacement shutdown of Unit No. 1 was extended to accommodate the four-year inspection as well,

COAL-FIRED POWER STATIONS

As the intensity of repairs and overhauls of generation units was lower than in previpus years, aggregate shutdown times
were much shorter. Four overhauls were completed (Potierady — Unit No. 8, Ledvice — Unit No. 3, Détmarovice — Unit No. 2
and Prunefov —Unit No. Z1) as well as some above-standard routine repairs (Tusimice || = Unit No. 24 and Mélnfk 11l = Upit
No. 11). In addition, four overhauls were performed on busbar-connected units, the most important of which was the first
overhaul of Fluidized-Bed Boiler No. 11 at the Tisova Power Station.

HYDRO POWER STATIONS
Turbogenerator No. 3 at the DaleSice Power Plant was overhauled during a shutdown that was completed 29 days earlier

than plan, Also, cantrol systems were modernized at the Orlik Power Station, Further, all "black start” tests were
completed at selected sources inthe Czech Republic Power System.
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WEEKLY PEAK LOADS (MW)
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“CEZ WANTS TO BE BOTH A PRODUCER AND A MERCHANT,
WHILE MAINTAINING PRESENT GENERATION CAPACITIES.
WE WILL APPLY A MORE FLEXIBLE TRADING POLICY
TOWARDS DISTRIBUTORS. WE WOULD LIKE TO INCREASE
THE MARKET SHARE OF OUR ELECTRICITY UP T0 70%. MOST
OF OUR GENERATING SOURCES ARE CAPABLE OF
COMPETITION IN THE LIBERALIZED EUROPEAN MARKET

AS WELL."
(IVAN BATKA, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CEZ, 3. 5. FOR SALES)

ELECTRICITY TRADE

In 1999, demand for electrigity fell by 1,359 GWh (2.6%) from 1988

and reached the level of 50,837 GWh. This decline was caused by

a combination of the following factors:

®a decline in household demand by 2.7% brought about by energy
saving measures, e.g. a slight migration away from electric heat;

e a'4.6% decling in industrial consumption, partially offset by a 3.7%
increase in-smal| business consumption.

The decline in elestricity consumption in 1999 is illustrated in the graph

below, shewing the weekly peak loads on the Czech Republic Power System

in the years 1989, 1998, and 1989, As the graph shows, the peak load in

1999 was higher than in 1998iin 17 weeks, while in the remalning 36 weeks

the load was lower.

28 25 27 29 81 33 3 87 49 49 '51 &3
[ 1998 1999

17 19 21 41 43 45 47
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The peak load for the entire year was 8,926 MW and was achieved an 1 February 1899 at 13:00. This year's peak was
223 MW lower than in 1988, The following graph shows the load diagram for that date comparad with the peak load dates
in 1989 and 1998.

LOAD DIAGRAM FOR DATE OF ANNUAL PEAK LOAD (MW)
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CEZ ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT AND SUPPLY

1958 1999 Index 399/98
(GWh) (GWh) (%)

Procurement:

Generated in-house 47,892 45,722 95,5
Purchased from independent producers 3,963 4,034 101.8
Purchased from industrial power plants 841 881 104.8
Purchased from regional electric utilities 77 52 675
[mport 958 1,031 107.6
Total 53,731 51,720 96.3

Supply:
Sold to regional electric utilities 43,591 40,488 92.9
Sold directly to end users 146 BR 60.3
Sold ta CEPS, a. s. to cover losses in the
transmission system (starting 1 August 1999) 0 298
Export 4,447 5,695 128.2
Total sales 48,179 46,569 96.7
In-house consumption 4,127 4,664 98.7
of which: for generation of electricity 3,787 3.642 96.2
for pumping at pumped
storage hydro power stations G4 716 109.5
ather in-house consumption 286 306 107.0
Losses in CEZ networks (up to 1 August 1999) 825 487 59.0
Total 53,731 51,720 96.3

The share of CEZ, a. s. in meeting averall demand for electricity in the Czech Republic declined from 76.4% in 1988 to

72.9% in 1998. This was due mainly to an increase in the amount of electricity purchased by regional electric itilities from
non-CEZ sources (other domestic praducers and import) from 11.4% to 15.7%. Electricity imports by importers other than
CEZ, a. s. (approximately 58% of total electricity imported into the Czech Republic) remained at more or less the same
level all year long, despite the avajlability of sufficient domestic generaling capacity.

CEZ ELECTRICITY SALES, BY DESTINATION

1998

Ditect purchasers 0.3% > \ R Direct purchasers 0.2%
~ 145 Gl I 4 S\ -saGWh

[ i |:|
Export 9.2%: | Export 12.3%
~ 4,442 GWh o . —5,695 GWh
] o AN Y
Regional electric utilities . 4 Regional elgetric wilives
A0.5% — 43,591 GWh ; - - 67 .54 — 40,468 GWh

The bulk of the electricity procured by CEZ in 1998 (B7.5%) was sold te the eight regjonal electrie utility companies which
supply electricity to end users throughout the Czech Republic. The rest was exported (12.3%) or sold directly to end users
{0.2%). Significant growth in exports was achieved during the year, but this only partially made up for the decline in
electricity sales to the regional utilities.
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SALE OF ELECTRICITY TO REGIONAL ELECTRIC
UTILITY COMPANIES IN 1999

Sales to individual regional electric utilities vary widely in
conjunction with a number of factors, the most important
of which are:

e the presence of large-volume customers (mainly indu-
strial companies) in a particular region;

® population;

e purchase of electricity frem other suppliers {imports,
independent producers).

SALE OF ELECTRICITY TO REGIONAL ELECTRIC
UTILITY COMPANIES IN 1999 (GWh)
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The negotiation of 1999 eleciricity supply contracts with
the regional electric utilities was complicated by the fact
that the Czech Ministry of Finance did not estabiljsh the
final prices applicable to these supplies until late
December, 1998. These prices (regulated by the Ministry
of Finance} were made official by the Ministry's
Assessment No. 02/1999 which took effect as of 15
January 1999, No changes in pricing occurred during 1998,
as the increase In household prices originally planned for
mid-year 1999 (another step in electricity pricing reform)
was postponed ta 1 January 2000.

The prices at which CEZ, a. s. sells electricity to the
regional electric utilities have been regulated by the
Ministry of Finance since 1995. During 1995 — 1896 they
were set forth as average prices in CZK/MWh. In 1997
the company succeeded in getting this simple
“commodity” price divided into two components:
a capacity component and a time-differentiated
component for electricity actually supplied. |n 1998 the
following additiopal price components were separated
out: transmission fee, network control services fee, and
fee for system services, For 1999, in the interests of
achieving the same electricity prices for all the regional
utilities, the prices for capacity were unified and a "tariff
correction” factor was set up to make up for the
differences between the average end-user prices charged
by various regional utilities,
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SALES OF HEAT

(GEZ, a. s. produces thermal energy-at all of its fossil and nuclear plants, as follows:
District-heat networks operated by CEZ, a. 5. Power Stations: Tisovd, Mélnik, Chvaletice,
Poiiél, Hodonin, Détmarovice
Heat Plants: Dyiir Kralové, Nachod
District-heat networks operated Power Stations:  Prunéfoy, TuSimice; Ledvice, Temelin

by other business entities
Direct (for in-house consumption and for outsida Power Stations: Poterady, Dukovany
customers |ocated within power station compaunds

CEZ, a. s. also purchases heat pradiiced at the M&Infk | Power Station for further sale from Energotrans, a. 5., In which
CEZ a. s. has-an equity helding.

Silpplies of heat by CEZ, a. s. to outside customers were 6.6% lower than in 1988, Given that the number of customers
remained practically unchanged, lower heat sales were caused by declining demand for distriet heat on the part of both
households and businesses, especially in industry. [n certain localities an increase in average outdoor temperatures (by
0.2 degrees Celsius caompared with the previous heating season) was a factor as well.

CEZ HEAT PROCUREMENT AND SUPPLY

1998 1999 Index 99/98
(TJ) (TJ} (%]

Procurement:
Generated in-house 14,292 13,174 922
Purchased from other producers 679 669 98.6
Total 14,971 13,843 925

Supply:

Sold to district-heat ulilities 4,061 3.530 B6.9
Sold to distributors 2,105 2,121 101.1
'Sold to other customers 4,947 4,723 95.5
Export 160 150 93.8
Total sales 11,2713 10,530 93.4
In-house consumption 2217 1,941 B7.6
Useful supply 13,490 12,472 92.5
Losses in CEZ natwerks 1,481 1,372 926
Total 14,971 13,843 925
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Almost all useful supply of heat (95%) comes from
combined-cyele units. The amount of electricity generated
by these wunits (1,377 GWHh) was only 4.5% of total
electricity generation at coal-fired power stations;

CEZ's share of total heat supplies in the power station
and heat plant category (including industrial plants) i the
Czech Republic is about 11%, making CEZ, a. 5. one of the
three largest heat producers in the Czech Republic.
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The jaint-stock company CEPS, a. s., which was established in October, 1988, as a 100% subsidiary of CEZ, a. s.
pommencet operations on 1 August 1998, The establishment of CEPS also led to the winding up of the Transmission
System Division.

The printipal businesses of CEPS, a. s. are the transmission of electricity, the operation, maintenance and development
of the transmission system, real-time network control of the Czech Republic Power System, daveloping defensive and
renewal plans, and completing preparations for power system operation at given time intervals. It takes care of the
technical aspeots of running system services such as capacity and frequency regulation, voltage and reactive current
requlation, as well as managing necessary reserve capacity.
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DESCRIPTION OF TRANSMISSION SYSTEM PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The CEPS transmission system is-a subset of the Czech Republic Power System which interconnects all significant grid
participarts and provides for the bulk of foreign cooperation. The CEPS transmissian system consists whally of 400 kV and
220 kV equipment, including 37 substations, 30 transfarmer stations, 2,909 km of 400 KV line and 1.440 ki af 220 kV Jine.
The transmission system alsa includes two 110 kV substations and 134 km of 110 KV lines used to convey output from CEZ

power stations.
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Line in Double Over double Total
operation Length (km}

400 kV 514 g 2,909
220 kV 1,440

110 kv ' 84 134

Transformers Number [pcs) Capaeity [MVA) Substations Number (pcs)
A00/220 kv 4 2,030 400 kY 23

400/110 kv 40 10,720 220 kY 14
2201110 kV 2] 4,200 110 kY. 2

TRANSMISSION SYSTEM OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

In comparison with 1988 there was a 7.7% overall decrease In the number of failures. A total of 120 failures were
recorded in 1999.(77 line failures, 39 transformer failures, and 4 substation field failures). 45 of the failures were causad
by events aceurring in non-CEPS/CEZ equipment and the rémaining 75 failures were caused by breakdowns of equipment
owned by CEPS, a. 5. The most serious failure resulted from extensive damage to the tertiary output of a 400/110 kV
transformer at the Krasikov Transformer Station (5 October 1999) caused by external factors. In addition fo the above,
b4 malfunctions were observed, none of which caused any immediate black-outs.

In 1989 a new phenomenon began to exert-a negative influence on the reliability of the transmission system; the growing
frequency of grounding cable theft, especially on lines under the operational management of Transmission System North.
A'total of approximately 15 km of grounding cable was stolen in 1999,




POWER GRID CONTROL

During the vear qualitative indicators of electricity: supply from the transmission system were' maintained within
prescribed limits. No failure that occurred was observed to have any influence on reliability of electricity supply and
compliance with safety regulations,

Control systems and procedures were put in place to ensure:a smoath Y2K roll-over. The arrival of 1 January 2000 did not
cause any problems. in grid control

SYNCHRONOUS COOPERATION WITH UCTE

Synchronolis cooperation with UCTE took place in accordance with operating recommendations. CEZ, a, s, turned over its
positions in UCTE and CENTREL bodies to CEPS, &. s, which |3 gradually taking over the role of System Operator In
acoordance with the electricity market |iberalization process in Europe

CEPS, a. s, held discussions with neighboring power grid erganizations to identify free cross-border transmission capacity
This contributed significantly to increasing the possibilities for cross-border electficity trade

In accardance with the implementation of "Eufopean Parliament Directive No, 98" setting forth eleetricity market
gonditions, GEPS, a. s. got invelved in an international group for coordinating the Implementation of the new rules: for
operating the crass-barder transmission netwark as part of [nternational interespnection; with a focus on managing
exchanges of electrieity over cross-border transmission lines.

FREQUENCY DEVIATION FROM NOMINAL (50 Hz)
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Line frequency is a parameter of all the grids interconnected by UCTE as:a whole. Thus, the largest grids:(France, Germany,
ete.) have the greatest influence on the frequency value. The Czech Republic Power System, though properly managed,
has no significant influence on the everall frequency value. S
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“AMONG THE FACTORS SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE FUTURE
OF TEMELIN ARE THE CONCLUSIONS OF 15 INTERNATIONAL

OPERATIONAL SAFETY THAT HAVE VISITED THE POWER
STATION SINCE 1990, INCLUDING AN AUDIT PERFORMED BY
HALLIBURTON NUS IN 1991 AND 1992. EVEN THE AUSTRIAN
CONSULTING FIRM ENCONET, WHICH ASSESSED THE
PROJECT IN TERMS OF COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN EASTERN
AND WESTERN TECHNOLOGIES, AFFIRMED IN 1998 THAT
ONCE ALL CALLED-FOR PROJECT MODIFICATIONS ARE
IMPLEMENTED, THIS POWER STATION WILL BE MUCH SAFER
THAN THE MAJORITY OF NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS
CURRENTLY IN OPERATION, AND THAT THE MODIFICATION
PROCESS WAS CARRIED OUT IN A WAY THAT IS COMPLETELY
STANDARD IN WESTERN COUNTRIES.”

(FRANTISEK HEZOUCKY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CEZ a
CONSTRUCTION OF TEMELIN NUCLEAR POWER STATION DIVISION)

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT, MODERNIZATION
AND DEVELOPMENT POLICY OBJECTIVES

Currently the primary focus of the development program is on
CEZ's nuclear plants. The priority is ta complete the construction of the
Temelin Nuclear Power Station, and the progress made in 1999 puts us
on track to fulfill the goals set for 2000. In May 1999 the Gavernment of the Czech Republic decidad 1o complete the
Temelfn Nuclear Power Station in time for fuel to be loaded into Unit No. 1.in the summer of 2000 and approximately
15 months later, in Unit No. 2 as well, with the total cost of the project not to exceed CZK 98.6 billion. A number of
measures, including persennel measures, were taken to ensure that these conditions are met.

Due attention is also being given to the Dukovany Nuclear Fower Station, whichis a reliable antd sconomical generating
tacility. The proaram for harmonizing this plant with operating and safety practice standards for puclear power statiens in
the European Union is clearing the way for the continual long-term, safe and economical operation of this key generation

CONTROL AND VERIFICATION MISSIONS FOCUSED ON
tacility. |

For the fossil plants, 1999 was a period of stabilization focused on resolving remaining issues related to desulfurization
and the migration to fluidized-bed boilers.

and reliability of power generation units. This includes lowering plants’ own consumption of electricity and reinforcing the
dynamic characteristics of generation units to the extent and at the level necessary for synchronous operation of the

Innovation policy is focused on making adjustments to technologies with the aim of inereasing the production efficiency ’
Czech Republic Power System together with UCTE, the Western European power system. ‘

1899 saw the continued roll-out of innovative technologies in the waste processing area, the most important of which was
the conversion of ash removal from the hydraulic float technique to dry removal, allowing waste materials to be re- |
processed [nto materials better suited for disposal. |

|
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Wark began again on optimizing the company's partfolio of power generation facilities in conjunction with the
comimissioning of the Temelin Nuclear Power Station and preparations for competition o the open electricity market with
the aim of finding s model for gradually replacing existing production capaeity with madern technologies.

A decision of the Board of Directors dated 18 February 1999 suspended the retrofit of the TuSimice | Power Station. This
affected 1999 samings by increasing costs by a total ef CZK 946 million.

During 1999 CEZ, a: s, held negotiations with Vivendi-Dalkia, which culminated in December 1999 with the signature of
a Letter of Understanding concerning the joint venture JVCD, a. s, the purpose of which is to obtain-optimum advantage
from the heat and electricity supply businesses of both companies in the region of Narth Moravia, This will entail building
a new hot-water line connecting the Détmarovice Power Station with the Karvina Heat Plant district-heat network and
upgrading the heat generation equipment of the Détmaravice Power Plant,

[CZK billign) Expended Program Budget

Investment category 1993 1994 1995 1996 1957 1998 1999 1993 - 1999 2000

Nuclear power 9.5 8.9 6.6 8.6 7.0 10.1 11.3 62.0 12.5

of which: Temelin B4 8.1 55 7.7 6.1 9.3 10.3 55.4

Enviranment 4.7 6.2 97 6.9 64 3.0 08 37.2

of which: desulfurization 3.3 48 69 4.2 34 1.1 0.3 245
fllidized-bed boilers 0.4 0.8 2.3 2.2 1.8 0.8 0.1 8.4

Waste treatment 0.8 1.7 1.8 2.1 1.4 0.6 0.4 8.8

Coal-fired power stations 0.9 2.0 3.5 23 1.7 1.8 1.1 133

District heat 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.9

Hydro power stations 1.7 1.0 0.9 03 0.1 01 0.1 42

Transmission system 1.1 1.4 1.5 1.1 1.1 113 09 8.4

Other investments 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.9 1.1 1.2 14 6.2

Payments for nuclear fuel 1.8 1.4 Z.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 18 121

Capilalized interest 0.0 09 20 28 29 3.0 3.4 15.1

Total 21.0 24.1 28,8 271 234 22.5 213 168.2




TEMELIN NUCLEAR POWER STATION

The work accomplished during 1989 gives realistic
prospects for meeting of contractual deadlines for Unit
No. 1, .e. installation of fuel by September 2000 antd
putting the unit into commercial operation by May 2001
As of year-end 19989 total expenditure on the project was
CZK B0 billion, in the following structure;

— Unit No. 1 CZK 31 billion,

— Unit No. 2 CZK 28 billion,

— Equipment cammon to both unfts CZK 21 billion.

Thus, CZK 18.6 billion of the total project budget of CZK
98.6 billion remains to be spent.

* UNIT NO. 1

Following the completion of containment integrity tests in
late 1998 and early 1999, work at the site began to focus.
more on start-up related activities and less on
construction/assembly work, most of which is now complete.
A number of tests were conducted in accordance with the
start-up timeline, focusing on unit contral room technology,
the control system, electrical systems, and mutual
Interconnection of varipls systems. Tests of the main
circulating pumps were followed by pressure, strength, and
leakage tests of the primary and secondary cycles.

e UNIT NO. 2

In addition to the ongoing construetion/assembly of the
primary cycle, reactor assembly for testing, commencement
of cabling work, and other activities, a significant amount
of preparatory work was conducted leading up to the
installation of technological equipment. The installation
of the 6 kV and 0.4 kV substations was alss completed,

» SIMULATOR

In September, four months early, the simulator was

transperted from ORGREZ SC, a. s. to the Temelin Nuclear
Power Station compound, and its individual compenents
were put into operation. The processing of testing the
simulator's systems began in Octoben Operator training

was commenced in December, after permission was

received from the State Nuclear Safety Agency.

DUKOVANY NUCLEAR POWER STATION

The key plant modernization projects currently under
preparation or completed are as follows:

e SECURITY SYSTEM POWER SUPPLY PROJECT

This project involves a complete evethaul and upgrade of

the systems for providing power to those systems that
must be in operation continually without interruption, The
goal of the project Is to improve safely and lower
maintenance costs.

® CONTROL SYSTEMS UPGRADE

Late in the year the first round of the tender for selecting
a cantractor to upgrade the systems for ensuring nuclear
safety, the reactor output control systems, and infarmation
system was completed, The second round is plannad for
2000. Commencement of realization on Unit No. 3 is
planned for 2002.

* CONDENSER UPGRADE

The purpnse of the condenser upgrade is to remove
copper allays from the secandary cycle (brass condenser
pipe bundles will be replaced with modules fitted with
titanium pipes), enable the acidity of the secondary cycle
to be lowered, and thereby lengthen the useful life of
related equipment, especially the steam generators, The
upgrade project will also include replacing condenser
water chambers, centinual cleaning of condenser pipes,
and a system for taking condensate sampies. In 1999
candensers were installed on both turbines in Unit No. 1,

FUTURE SPENT NUCLEAR FUEL
STORAGE

During 1983 the Ministey of the Environment assessed, from
the perspective of the "Act on Assessment of Environmental
Impacts”, a study submitted by CEZ of the environmental
impact of the interim spent nuclear fuel storage facility for
two possible alternatives for the facility's location and
design:

. Location inside of the Dukovany Nuclear Power Station
compound, the facility would store spent fusl from
Dukovany anly. In late 1999 the environment ministry
issued a consenting apinion, and the State Niuclear
Safety Agency issued a facility location permit
pursuant to Section 9 of the "Nuclear Act”.

2. At the Skalka location for spent nuclear fuel from both
the Dukovany and Temelin Nuclear Power Stations. In
late 1999 the Ministry of the Environment issued
a dissenting opinion. In January, 2000 the State
Nuclear Safety Agency issued a facility location permit
pursuant to Section 9 of the "Nuclear Act” and
requested that the environmental ministry, change its
opinion. In February 2000 the ministry reaffirmed its
negative apinion,

In 1999, CEZ, a_ s. commenced round two of the tender for
selecting a contractor lo build spent fuel storage
containers to hold spent fuel from the Dukevany Nuclear
Power Station at the storage facility to be commissionad
in 2005,

Preparations of a storage facliity at the Temelin Nuglear
Power Station for storing spent fuel from this facility will

begin once the station's Unit No. 2.is put Into operation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTMENT

In 1989 the company finalized (ts program of
desulfurization and fluidized-bed boilers installation.
Environmental investment went on with the conversion to
dry conveyance of ash for storage or further processing.

e TUSIMICE POWER STATIONS
Warranty operation of fite-gas desulfurizing equipment
at the Tusimice Il Power Station commenced in December

(from 1997 to December 1998 the equipment was

operated by the supplist).

* TISOVA POWER STATION

Following the correction of reported flaws in fluidized-bed
boiler no. 2 and the stabilizer production facility, the entire
power station was converted ta dry ash conveyance.

e CHVALETICE POWER STATION

Desulfurization equipment was in warranty operation,
during which flaws were reported and corrected. The
construction of the Ash Materials Disposal facility ran
into. complications caused primarily by the general
contractor (Transporta Chrudim) being deelared bankrupt.
The Bankruptey Administrator terminated the contract.
Thanks to timely intervention by the investor, barnk
glarantees were transferred to CEZ, a. s. and will be used
to complete the construction in 2000 without any cost
overruns. | 1999 the new Wastewater Treatmeni Plant
was pul into operation.

» DETMAROVICE POWER STATION

The desulfurization equipment has been in warranty
operation since August 1998. However, financial matiers
with the supplier have not been closed. The remaining
funds will be released when reported flaws have been
corrected.

o MELNIK POWER STATION

Operation of the desulfurization equipment Is belng
stabilized and reported flaws are being corrected. The
bulk of the "Melnik Power Station Ash Removal and
Distribution” was put into operation. In December 1899
a use permit was issued for the new belt conveyor,

e LEDVICE POWER STATION

The process of optimizing the new: fluidized-bed Loiler
No. 4 was completed and warranty measurements were
conducted in November, 1993, A use permit was issued
for the completed “Internal Ash Removal™ project. In the
"External Ash Removal” project remaining warranty tests
ware conducted and defect reports made during the
warranty period were dealt with,

* PORIC/ POWER STATIONS

A use permit for the new fluidized-bed boiler No, 8 was
issued in March. Necessary measures were laken to
reduce dust generation in fuel handling at the Dvir Kralove
Heat Plant, which is located in a built-up area of town.

OTHER CAPITAL SPENDING PROJECTS

* REPLACEMENT OF POWER GENERATION UNIT
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Control system replacement was completed on units at
the power stations Prunéfov (unit no. 21) and Détma-
rovice (unit no, 2, One portion of the control system at
the Orlik Power Station was successfully upgraded and
a similar upgrade was commenced at the Slapy Power
Station.

e TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM

1999 saw the completion and commissioning of SDH
transmission system techinology ant the addition of
another 250 km of fiber to the network, Currently around
2,400 km of fiber-are in operation, The target, which will
be achieved in 2000, is to operate & telecommunications
system based on a fiber netwark over 2,500 km in length.

* TRANSFORMER STATIONS

The muost significant completed projects (up until when
CEPS, a. s. began operations, i.e. 1 August 1999) are the
traristoririer at the 400/110 kY substation in Chodoy, the
control system al the Kotin substation (significant for
connecting the:Temelin Nuglear Fower Station to the grid)
and the renovation of the NoSovice transformer station,
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CEZ, a. s.— A COMPANY THAT GENERATES
ELECTRICITY IN AN ENVIRONMENTALLY
FRIENDLY MANNER AND AT COMPETITIVE
PRICES, AS WELL AS PROVIDING OTHER
RELATED SERVICES.







“OUR GOAL IN ALTERNATIVE ENERGY SOURCES IS TO TEST
NEW GENERATION TECHNIQUES AND UTILIZE THE
EXPERIENCE AND INFORMATION GAINED FOR THE
BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC TO ALLOW PEOPLE TO MAKE
MORE AND BETTER USE OF ALTERNATIVE SOURCES. THIS
IS NOT BUSINESS IN THE NORMAL SENSE OF THE WORD,
BECAUSE GENERATING ELECTRICITY FROM THESE

SOURCES IS STILL FAR FROM PROFITABLE."
(JIRT RICHTER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CEZ, &, 5. FOR DEVELOPMENT)

CEZ ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGY

CEZ's approach to the environment was set forth in 1999 in its environmental
protection policy. The company’s considerate behavior toward the
environment is producing real, concrete results in the following areas:

CLEAN AIR

The technical parameters of equipment whose purpose is to redice
émissions of pollutants into the air enable CEZ, a. s. to comply with lifmits
set forth by the Cleap Air Act. Since 19923, CEZ, a. 5. has achieved a drastic
reduction in all the principal air pollution categories, thereby helping lo
improve air quality, especially in the Czech Republic.

AIR POLLUTION EMISSIONS IN 1999 COMPARED WITH 1993

Air pollution Unit Solid Sulfur Nitrogen Carbon

pollutants dioxide oxides monoxide !
1993 tons 55,393 719,149 122,212 17,099
1899 tans 2,541 63,460 52,7117 4,017 %
Reduction in % by 854 by 91.2 by 57.0 by 76.5

ANNUAL HEPORT 1999 - 60 — (EZ AND THE ENVIRONMENT



EMISSIONS FROM CEZ SOURCES,
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DESULFURIZATION EQUIPMENT IN OPERATION AT 31 DECEMBER 1999

Power Station Unit No. Capacity In operation Desulfurization
(M) since technique
Poterady 5 6 2% 200 1994 wel limestone serubbing
2.3.4 3% 200 1996 wel limestone serubbing
Prunerov | 3.456 dx 110 1985 wel limestone scrubbing
Ledvice Il 2.3 2x 110 1996 semi-dry method
Prunéfov I| 21,22,73, 24, 25 Gx 210 1996 wet limestone serubbing
Tusimice |l 21,22, 73. 24 4y 200 1997 wet limestone scrubbing
Tisova || 8 1% 100 1997 wet limestone scrubhing
Chvaletice 3,4 2% 200 1897 wel limestone scrubbing
152 2% 200 1998 wel limestone scrubbing
Datmaravice 1,2,3,4 4x 200 1998 wel limestone scrubbing
Melnik Il 9,:04 2x 110 1998 wel limestone scrubbing
Melnik 11l 11 1x b00 1998 wet limestone scrubbing
Total 32 units 5,930

FLUIDIZED-BED BOILERS IN OPERATION AT 31 DECEMBER 1999

Power Station Steam output (t/hour)

Corresponding electricity output (MW)

In operation since

Tisova | 2% 350 172 1996, 1997
Hodonin 2% 170 106 1996, 1997
Porie] 2% 250 110 1996, 1998
Ledvice Il 1x 350 110 1998
Total 1,890 497
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FOSSIL PLANT PHASE-OUT PROGRAM

Fron 1980 to.the end of 1998, as part of the phase-out
progrant, genaration Units and boilgr islands representing
agaregate installed capacity of 1,215 MW were gradually
decommissioned, Another 750 MW of capacity at the
Tugimice | {330 MW), Mélnik I (220 MW) and Ledvice
(200 MW) power stations were decommissioned as of
1 January 1999, bringing the total generation capacity
decommissionad since 1990 to 1,965 WMW.

CLEAN WATER, WATER MANAGEMENT

In the area of water protection-and water use, CEZ, a. 5.
proceeds in accordange with applicable laws, directives
and decisions of water management authorities. Water
use and wastewater discharge are subject to conditions
set forth in decisions of water management authorities.
These decisions also set forth the conditions according to
which CEZ, a. 5. operates its dams and ather waterworks.

BY-PRODUCT MANAGEMENT

In the eourse of electricity and heal generation in 1998,
GEZ, a.'s. produced a total of 7.7 million tons of by-prodiet,
including ash, semi-dry’ desulfurization product, and
industrial gypsum preduced by the wet limestone scrubbing
process: Of the tatal by-products amount, 3.8 million tons
were used as secondary raw materials, The company’s
capacity to use by-products as secondary raw materials in
this manner was increased significantly by the installation
of dry remeval and conveyance technology.

Ash and semi-dry desulfurization product are used in the
racultivation of land affected by coal mining and settling
pits. Several components of ash are also used to produce
cement, concrete mixes, asphalt waterproofing materials,
and masonry materials. Specially processed ash is used to
build waste disposal facilities, where it sarves as structural
and sealing material in place of natural materials.

Industrial gypsum is used in the manufacture of gypsum
drywall by Knauf and Rigips and in the production of
cement as a substitute for natural gypsum.

The remaining 3.9 million tons of unutilized by-products
were disposed at CEZs own disposal facilities in
gocordance with the Waste Act.

GENERATION AND USE OF BY-PRODUCTS IN 1939

Unit Total %

Total mil. tons 7.655 100.00
by-products
of which: used as mil. tons 3,769 49.22

secondary

raw materials

disposed ¢f  mil. tons 3.886 50.78

as waste
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SUPPORT FOR RENEWABLE SOURCES
OF ENERGY

The long-term focus of CEZ's activities In this area has
heen on the use of wind energy and the conversion of
solar power into electricity using photovoltaic cells.

The first CEZ wind power station with 315 kW of eapacity
was put into trial operation in November 1993, It is located
at Dlouhd Louka near Osek in the Krusné Hory mountains;
This facility is the site of long-term testing and
measurament gathering, the goal of which is to optimize
operations and increase the amount of electricity
generated. From its commissioning in 1993 Up until year
end 1999, the facillty has generated a total of
1,039 MWh of electricity. The facility is currently operater
by the Atmospheric Physics Institute of the Czech Academy
of Sciences.

CEZ, . s. also operates a farm of wind power stationis
with a agaregate total capacity of 1,165 kW (220 kW,
315 kW, and 630 kW) at Mravenecnik near Dlouhé
Strané. The complex alsa in¢ludes a 10 kW photovoltaic
solar power plant. From its commissioning (November
1998) lup until the end of 1899, this power complex has
generated 267 MWh of electricity.

The company is also following advances in new
technologies such as fuel cells, enhergy storage and
energy conversion, including biomass combustion.
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“CEZ MUST HAVE APPRECIATION FOR PROFESSIONALS WHO
ARE CAPABLE OF MAKING USE OF NEW AND NON-
STANDARD SOLUTIONS, PARTICULARLY DURING TIMES OF
FAST-PACED CHANGE."

(VAN CELIZNA. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF GEZ. a.s. FOR HUMAN RESOURCES)

WORK FORCE SIZE AND STRUCTURE

The downsizing of CEZ, a. s. continued in 1999 as a managed process
with a further decrease in the number of smployees by 565. The
decrease was most pronounced at Headguarters, which downsized its
staff by BZ.

CEZ/CEPS WORK FORCE SIZE (AS OF 31 DECEMBER), 1993 — 1999
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During the past few years the CEZ wark foree as a whole
has become gradually older. Average employee age has
increased by over three years since 1992, to 42 years:
CEZ WORK FORCE BY AGE GROUP

31. 12, 1992

Employee qualifications, on the ather hand, have showi
overall Improvemant, thanks to the roll-eut of new
technologies.

CEZ WORK FORCE BY EDUCATION

31.12. 1992
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BENEFITS AND SOCIAL PROGRAMS

The amount budgsted for the company's various social programs was nearly CZK 500 million. An amount of CZK 100
million was allocated to the Social Find out of 1998 profits. The primary uses of the Social Fund were the fellowing:

o recreation and health sojourms,

o Mmeal plans, mainly through the company's own cafeteria facilities,

o Supplementary Pension Insurance for nearly 30% of employees participating in the Supplementary Pension Insurance
progra,

health care (above and beyond that paid for by standard health insurance),

partial reimbursement of the cost of temporary accommodations, '

sotial aid,

Retiree's Club activities

As In previous years, employees and retirees received a contribution redeemable towards their electric bill,

Employees were given the opportunity to receive an Interest-free loan for housing purposes or to get thiough a difficult
financial situation. In order to support the commenced sell-off of CEZ residential housing (company apartments), an
amount of CZK 150 million was reserved for company employees.

In accordance with applicable legislation, the company provided op-the-job health cara'and other health-related services

THE COMPANY AND THE LABOR UNIONS

The CEZ unjenized laber force consists of 5,076 member employees (55% of the overall work foree) who are ordanized in
26 independent labor organizations, which in turn are organized inte two labor unions: the Fower Industry Employees
Union (16 member organizations) and the Union of Northwest Czech Energy Employees (9 memberorganizations), with one
labar organization operating as an Independant.

The process of negotiating the 2000 — 2001 Callective Agreement confirmed that relations betwesn social parthers are on
solid footing, In its various provisions, the signed company-wide Callective Agreement sats forth the points of mutual
understanding between the employer and the Unions. The signature.of the Collective Agreement in late 1998 was made
possible by the introduction of @ new wage system effective January 2000,
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NUCLEAR POWER — PROOF OF THE
ADVANCEMENT OF CZECH INDUSTRY.

A SAFE, ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECONOMICAL
SOURCE OF ELECTRICAL ENERGY. A MEANS
TO ACHIEVE THE REPUBLIC'S ENERGY
INDEPENDENCE.







“PRIVATIZATION AND THE LIBERALIZATION OF THE
CZECH POWER SECTOR WILL TEST THE ABILITY OF CEZ TO
INTEGRATE ITSELF INTO EUROPEAN ELECTRICITY
STRUCTURES.”

(PETR VOBORIL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CEZ a. 5. FOR ECONOMICS)

DEVELOPMENT OF THE POWER INDUSTRY
LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

During 1999, work progressed on legislative amendments and the
preparation of entirely new laws governing the power industry, including
the Act on Conditions of Business Activity and State Administration in
the Energy Industries (the “Energy-Act”), the Act on Energy Management
which aiso amends the Act on the State Environmental Fund of the Czech
Republic (the "Energy Management Agt") and the Act on the State
Eneragy Inspection,

Two more laws whose preparation culminated in 1999 can be expected
to-have a further significant impacton business conditions in the energy
sector, The first of these is the Act on Assessment of Environmental
|mpacts, which is to set forth requirements and procedures for assessing
the impacts of business plans and proposed projects on the environment
and repeal the current legislation in this area, which is Act of the Czech
Natianal Council No. 244/1992 Sb. The second piece of legislation is a
law amending Act No. 199/1994 Sb. on Public Procurement, as amended,
which would make electrigity producers and distributors subject fo the
law’s procurement prosedures and requirements in certain cases.

Inithe area of implementing regulations, the following decrees took effect inm 1939

@ Government Directive No. 11/1998 Sb. on Emergency Planning Zones, issued as an implementing regulation to the
“Nuclear Act” — sets forth content requirements for defining Emergency Planning Zones and deals with selected
activities of entities that hold permits to locate, build or operate nuclear facilities or facilities with very large sources
of ionizing radiation;

o Ministry of Industry and Trade Decree No. 34/1999 Sb. amending Ministry of Industry and Trade Decree No. 95/1998 Sh.
which contains the Network Control Rules of the Czech Republic Power System, Among other things, this decree
changes the name of one of the network control entities (in conjunction with the spinoff of the transmission system
from CEZ, a. s.) and extends the existing legislation by adding schedules that set forth procedures for preparing the
anntial power system operation plan and provisions governing the manner in which various classes of generating
sources are activated and deactivated;

@ Decree of the State Nuclear Safety Agency No. 195/1993 Sb. on requirements placed on nuclear facilities to ensure
nuclear safety; radiation protection, and preparedness for emergencies;

® Dacree of the State Nuclear Safety Agency No. 196/1999 Sh. on decommissioning nuclear facilities or facilities with
large of very large sources of ionizing radiation, setting forth in detall the manner and scope of radiation protection
measures required for such facilities Upan decommissioning, the manner in which such decommissiening shall take
place, and the scope, content and form of required documantation;

o Decren of the State Nuclear Safety Agency No. 324/1999 Sh. which stipulates limits on the concentration and amount |
of nuclear material under which nuclear damage provisions shall not apply. This applies to nuclear material that is I‘
exeluded from liability coverage for nuclear damages under [aw during transport or use outside of a nuclear facility.

Several statements of the Minjstry of Foreign Affairs published in the Collection of Laws should also be mentioned:
Statement No. 154/1899 Shi concerning the signing by the Governments of the Czech Republic and the Russian Federation
of an amendment to the Treaty on Cooperation in Nuclear Energy, Statement No. 372/1999 5b. on the signing of an Engrgy
Charter Treaty and Statement No. 373/1999 Sh. on the signing of a Pratocal on Energy Conservation and Related
Environmental Considerations.

BRIEF FORECAST OF POWER INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT FROM THE VANTAGE
POINT OF CEZ, a. s.

1999 was a watershed year in terms of the conditions for deing business in the power industry. Eurapean
Farljament Directive No. 96, relating to common rules for the internal electricity markel, came into force in February.

ANNUAL REPORT 1999 — 7 0 — ENERGY SECTUR (QUTLOOK



European Union member states amended their legislation
to reflect the: principles of the Directive and commenced
realization of the unified electricity market. Countries such
as the Czech Republic which are in accession negotiations
with the EU and harmonizing their legislation with that of
the Europsan Union now need to respect not only the
principles of the unified electricity market, but also real
developments which in a number of countries have moved
faster and farther than originally planned.

Declining economic perfarmance, ongoing changes in the
gconomy's structure, and people’s reaction o a steep rise
in electricity prices in 1998 (including an increase in the
VAT rate applicable to electricity from 5% to 22%) eaused
eleetricity consumption to fall further. Consumption is now
at pre-1995 levels. Actual developments corresponded to
the "pessimistic scenario” forecast in the electricity
consumption prediction prepared last year by the Central
Dispatch Center of the Czech Republic in cooperation with
its members.

Further movement of electricity demand will depend
mostly on the extent and structure of economic recovery,
It can also be substantially influenced by the behavior of
elgetric heat customers as further steps announced by the
Czech Government are faken to do away with pricing
imbalances during the upeoming three-year period.

From the draft Energy Act it s clear that the Czech Republic
will choose for its electricity market the model applied in
practically all EU member states — regulated third party
network access. In order for this model to function
smnathly and effectively, it will be necessary not only, ta
pass the necessary legislation, but also o provide
institiitional and infrastructural support. CEZ, a. s. Is
participating intensively i the preparations for an open
market and endeavoring to accelerate them, sinee it sees the
market as an opportunity to expand its business potential,

The new State Energy Policy was prepared in 1899 and
approved by the Government of the Czech Republic in
January 2000,

The following points concerning the State Energy Folicy
are significant from the vantage point of CEZ, a. s.:

o [t contains a positive assessment of the reliable
operation of the synchronous connection of the Czech
Republic Power System to the UCTE System (renamed
from UCPTE effective July 1983) and the timely
achievement of compliance with Clean Air Agt
eirissions limits by fossjl plants;

® |t prefers useful and economical utiljzation of domestic
energy sources (brown and black coal burned in fossil
plants) without changing the current territorial limits
for brown ceal mining;

® |t sats forth a policy of reliable electricity supply at
a price that is as low as possible while still covering the
costs of generation, transmission and distribution; n
the transition petiad, market regulation shobld focus orr:

— fransparent treatment of electricity supplies from
generation facilities of 50 MW and higher based on
minimurmn variable costs;

— allowing electricity imports only when capacity
imbalances -are detected in the Czech Republic
Power System.

CEZ a. s. is working to meet all of these goals and
strategies and in certain areas they are integrated into
the Chiange Program as well,

From a lang-term perspective, the Czech Republic Energy
Policy treats the future development of nuclear power as ane
of the possible means of mesting electricity needs i the
period after 2015, Both the commissioning of the Temelin
Nuclear Power Station and the extension of the useful life of
the Dukavany Muclear Power Station, the operation of which
will have a major positive impact on decreasing CO,
emissions, are in full accordance with the Policy.

CEZ, a. 5. is to be privatized in 2002 following its
adaptation to the conditions set forth under new
legislation,

The electricity market will be regulated using the accepted
model by an independent requlatory authority enly in those
areas where there is a "natural monopoly”, |.e. transmission,
distribution, system services and supplies to protected
customers. The electricity generation market will be exposed
to competition, something which CEZ, a. s, sees as an
oppartunity to bring to bear its competitive advantages.

ANTICIPATED FINANCIAL SITUATION
OF CEZ, a. s.

In 2000, CEZ, a. 5. expects to see & moderate improvement
in ecopomic performance over 1999.

Electricity sales revenlies are expected to decline primarily
in conjunction with the termination of the company’s
business relationship with Elektrarny Opatovice. This will
also bring lower electricity procurement cests. The
expected further decling in domestic electricity demand is
offset by higher revenues from exporting electricity.

On the cost side, the company foresees a decrease in
production consumption to be achieved by cost savings
measures in repairs and maintenance, services and raw
materials costs, although some of these costs are being
shifted into eleciricity transmission costs (which will be
paid year-round starting in 2000). The company plans to
maintain other cost jtems (labor costs;, taxes and fees,
depreciation charges, financial costs etc.) at no higher than
the previous year's levels:

CEZ, a. 5. plans to spend approximately CZK 24 billion on
capital investments, of which about CZK 10 billion will be
spent on the Temelin Nuclear Power Station and CZK
1 billion will be used to restructure the portfolio of
financial investments,

The company's financing is based principally on the use of
operating funds (approximately CZK 13 hillion) and
drawdowns of long-term credit facilities exceeding
repayments by approximately CZK & billion. The company
financina plan dogs not epvision any new bond issues in
2000. However, bonds may be floated in conjunction with
the early repayment of the Third Domestic Bond lssue:

Cash management will rely on shert-term loans and notes.
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Revenues

FORMATION OF PROFIT (CZK billions)
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DEVELOPMENT OF REVENUE, COSTS
AND PROFIT

The following diagrams present the most important
ecanomic results achieved by CEZ in 1999 and compare
them with the results of 1998 and 1997.

In 1999, CEZ attained tatal revenue of CZK 53.5 billion with
expenses of CZK 47.8 billion. Fre-tax profit dropped by
CZK 8.1 billien (58:4%) to CZK 5.7 billion as a result of
lower revenues (by CZK 1.7 billion) accompanied by higher
aperating expenses (by CZK 0.7 billion) and a change in the
ather expenses (incama] category from other income of
CZK 2.1 billion in 1998'to othier expenses of CZK 3.6 billion
in 1999 {net change of CZK 5.7 billion). The most important
influence on lower pre-tax profit was exerted by currency
exchange losses of CZKK 2.6 billion (1998: net exchange
rate.gain of CZK 2.0 billion in 1998) and a 20% decrease in
operating profit from CZK 11.8 hillion to 9.4 hillion. CEZ
realized a net profitof CZK 5.1 billion in 1989, which is CZK
5.2 billion (50.4%) less than in the previous year. Net
income per shiare (CZK 100 par value] for 1999 drapped to
CZK 8.7, which is apptoximately 50% less compared to
1938 (CZK 17.5).
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"Total revenues” in 1999 decreased by CZK 1.7 billien (3.1%)
compared with 1998, This decrease was the result of lower
revenues from electric power sold (CZK 50.7 billion),
& decrease of CZK 1.4 billion (2.6%), as well as other
revenues lower by CZK 0.3 billion, while revenues from
heat sold were roughly unchanged fram 1998,

® "Revenues from electric power” supplied to Ciech
customers amounted to'CZK 46.4 billion, a decrease of
CZK 1.8 billien (3.7%). Eleetricity sold in the Czech
Hepublic decreased from 43,7 TWh in 1998 to 40.6 TWh
in 1999 (7.2%), the average price rose by 3.8% due to
the fact that transfer prices for electricity betwean (EZ
and the distribution utilities set pursuant to a July
1998 decision of the Ministry of Finance were in effect
for the full year as oppesed to six months ifi 1998,

® “Revenues from exports of alectricity” (CZK 4.3 billjon)
rose by 10.7% (CZK 0.4 billien), which relates to the
growth in the volume of exported electricity (by
28.2%).

o "Revenues from heat” increasad slightly (by 1.6%, i. e.
CZK 0.027 billion} compared to 1998 levels. The amount
of heat sold decreased by 6.6%, accompanied by an
increase in the average price of heat by 8.8%.

"Overall expenses”, including other expenses, rose to
CZK 47.8 billion, which is CZK 3.7 billion (15.4%) frore
than in the previous year.

o “Fuel costs” of CZK 12.9 billion, accounting for 26.9% of
overall expenses, decreased by 2.8% (CZK 04 billion),
while the supply of electricity declined 4.6%.

® “Electricity purchase costs” of CZK 7.4 hillion (15.6%
of overall costs)increased by CZK 0.3 billion (4.9%) due
ta higher electricity proclrement from other producers
as well as higher imports,

@ “Repair and maintenance costs” of CZK 4.2 billion (8.9%
of overall costs) decreased by CZK 0.4 billion (8.7%),

e "Dapreciation and amortization” rose (based on new
fixad assets brought into use in 1998 and 1999) to a level
of CZK 8.7 billion, representing an increase of 7.1%.

® "Parsonnel costs” of CZK 3.6 billion, representing 7.5%
of overall expenses, increased on an annual basis by
CZK 0.18 billlon (5.2%) due malnly to the increased
basic wage and salary tariffs (and the corresponding
increase in social and health insurance] that took
effect 1 January 1999.

® "Nuclear decommissioning and spent nuclear fuel
storage costs" remained at the same level as in 1998
(CZK 1.0 billion).

® "(ther operating expenses” rose from CZK 3.8 billion
to CZK 4.2 billion, i, e. an annual increase of 9.5%
mainly due to costs associated with the termination of
the Tusimiee | retrofit project.

® The "other expenses” item of CZK 3.6 billion changed
from “other income” of CZK 2.1 hillion in 1998, i, e
a year-on-year change of CZK 5.7 billion. The primary
components in this change were provisioning for
unrealized currency losses and gains caused by
a weaker koruria (change ‘of CZK 4.8 billion) and lower
earnings of affiliates (CZK 0.8 billien),




STRUCTURE OF ASSETS

STRUCTURE OF NET ASSETS AS OF
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The development of the asset structure of CEZ in 1999
was characterized by a change in the structure of assets
and Habilities,

"“The total net assets” af the company amounted 1o/ CZK
2071 billion at the end of 1998, up B.1% from year-end
1998.

"Fixed assets” valued at CZK 1946 billion comprise
tangible and intangible assets lincluding investments
under construction and advarce payments) and financial
investments: Fixed assets represent a 94% share in total
assets and were up 6.4% compared to the previous year.
Investments under construction and advance payments
rose-on an annual basis by 12.5 % to CZK 91.5 billion and
their share in total assets increased slightly from 42.5%
at ysar-end 1388 to 44.2% at the end of 1999,

"Current assets” comprised of inventory, receivables and

financial assets reached a net level of CZK 12.4 billien at the

end of 1999, which is an 46.5% increase compared to the
end of 1998, due primarily to an increase irj cash. Individual
items in the current assets category developed as follows:

e “Cash’”, as a result of all activities in 1999, soared from
£ZK 1.0 billion to CZK 4.4 billion, a more than fourfald
increase.

@ At the end of 1999, net “receivables” increased by CZK
0.8 billlon (by 23.0%) on year-end 1998 to a level of
CZK 4.5 billion, which is approximately 36% of the
company's current assets. The increase of receivables
resulted mainly from an increase in the amount owed
the company by the State.

® "Stocks of fossil fuels and material” slightly decreased
from CZK 3.1 billion at the end of 1888 to CZK 3.0 billion,
which represents 23.9% of the company's current assets.

STRUGTURE OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AT 31 DECEMBER (CZK billions)
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"Shareholders” equity”, which consists of the stated capital
and retained earnings, amotnted to CZK 113.9 billion at
the end of 1989, represerting 56.0% of the value of the
company’s capitalization-and liabilities. The capitalization
increased annually by CZK 5.1 billion {by 4.7%) mainly
due to the grawth in retained earnings.

“Stated capital” of the Company as of 31. 12. 1999
remained at the level of CZK 59.2 billion, the same as at
the end:of 1998.

“Long-term liabilities” increased to CZK 76.5 billion during
1999, i. &. by CZK 17.3 billion (29.2%). This was caused
mainly by long term debt net of the amount due within
one year, which was CZK 16.5 billion higher (47.8%),
accompanied by an increased level of deferred income
taxes (by CZK 0.5 billign) and higher amount of
accumulated nuclear provisions (by CZK 0.3 billion).

"Current liabilities” decreased duting 1999 from CZK
23.5 billion to CZK 166 billian, 1. e by CZK 8.9 billion
(29.1%). Short term borrowing increased by CZK 0.1 billion,
but the extraordinarily high short-term portion of lang-term
debt (CZK 10.3 billion) at the end of 1998 dropped to CZK
2.7 hillion, i. e. by 74.2%). This was caused mainly by the
repayment of the Second Domeslic Bond lssue in January
1949 (CZK 4 billion) and the Eurobond redemption in
December 1999 (CZK 4.1 billion).

"Total debt", which at year end 1998 stood al CZK

47.8 billion, rose by CZK 9.0 billiop during the vear. The

tatal amount of “hank loans” (CZK 23.8 billion) increased
by CZK 3.0 billion, “eutstanding bonds” (CZK 23.8 billion)
were up CZK 4.4 billion and there is another new item:
long-term advance payments of CZK 1.6 billion.
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COMPANY FINANCING

Over the course of 1999 cash increased by CZK 3.4 billion,
Operating actjvities provided CZK 16.9 hillion and
financial activities provided CZK 87 hillion. Together
these sources were used to cover the requirements of
investmant activities, which came to CZK 22.3 billion.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS (CZK billions)
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The “total amount of fnvestment maoney spemt” in
eonjunction with acquiring fixed assets in 1998 was CZK
22.3 billion, from which CZK 22.8 billion was uset! for
additions of tangible and intangible assets, while
proceeds from sales of fixed assets were CZK 0.5 hillion.

The most significant items were CZK 11.3 billion (49.6%)
for nuclear power engineering projects, of which £ZK
10.3 billion (46.2%) was for the Temelin Nuclear Power
Station,

“The financial requirements” of the Company were
sepured both from internal and external sources. Funds
provided by operating activities totaling CZK 16.9 billien
were accumulated mainly from the fallowing (tems:

e net income of CZK 5.1 billjon,

e depreciation of fixed assets of CZK 9.5 billion,

= amortization of nuclear fuel of CZK 1.5 billion,

o increased level of nuclear provisions GZK 0.3 billion,

= increase of receivables of CZK -0.7 hillion,

e ifcrease of materials and supplies of CZK -0.5 billion,
= decrease of fossil fuel stacks of CZK 0.5 billion,

e increase of accounts payable CZK 0.4 billion,

o increased accrued and deferred taxes of CZK 0.5 hillion,
e aquity (non-cash) from consolidation CZK -0.3 billion.




As of 27 January 1999, CEZ, a. s. called and repaid its
Second Domestic Bond Issue (CZK 4 billion). This issue
was replaced by the Sixth and Seventh Domestic Bond
Issues denominated in CZK with a total face value of CZK
7 hillion. Both issues were lead arranged by ING Baring
Capital Markets. The sixth issue consists of ter-year
bonds with an aggregate face value of CZK 4.5 billion. As
zerg-coupon bonds, the yield is given by tha difference
between the face value (CZK 4.5 hillion) and the price at
which the bonds were sold upon issue (CZK 1.9 billion).
The seventh issue consists of 15-year bonds with a total
face value of CZK 2.5 billion. An annual 9.22% coupon
will be paid during the first seven years. Starting from the
beginning of the eighth year the bonds will convert to
a variable interest rate of CPI + 4.20%.

In February the two previous issues of CEZ, a, s. shares
[nominal valbes of CZK 1,000 and CZK 1,100) were
merged and split into shares with nominal value CZK 100,

A new note program was agreed on 3 March 1939,
CFZ, a. s. sighed an agreement on issuance of notes with
a consortium made up of Ceska spofitelna, CSOB and
ING Baring. All told, CZK & million in 3-=year notes were
issuet. There isan option to extend the note term.

In the second quarter, the CEZ Board of Directors decided
to purchase shares and voting rights to shares in regional
electric utilities (all except for Praiska energetlka, a. s.
and Stredoteska energetickd, a. s.). To finance the share
purchases, a CZK 1 billion, one-year loan was extended
by Commerzbank AG under advantageous terms.

The Eighth Domestic Bond Issue totaling CZK 3 billion
with a five year maturity and an 8.75% coupon was
floated on 7 June 1999. The bond issue wes managed by
Ceska spofitelna. The proceeds of the jssue will be usad
to repay the honds in the Fourth Domestic Bond lssue,
which carry a 10.9% ecupon.

(On 20 October 1999, in cooperation with CEZ Finance
B. V., the company issued the Third Foreign Bond Issue
(second Eurobond issue] with a total face value of
200 million EUR, lead managed by CS First Baston. This is
a seven-year issue (maturing in 2008) of publicly tradable
bonds with an annual coupon of 7.25%. The jssue
proceeds were used to repay the first CEZ Eurobond isstie
of USD 150 million and to finance other tompany neads.

FINANCING OF WESTINGHOUSE CONTRACTS
FOR THE TEMELIN NUCLEAR POWER STATION

During the year negotiations went forward on extending
the draw-down periods under a loan provided by
a consortium of banks led by London-based Citibank with
a guarantes issued by the U.S. Eximbank (and also
including a Czech government guarantee), The success of
these negotiations both with the creditors and with both
guarantors together with the fulfillment of conditions
precedent in November allowed us in December to
complete the drawdown of loan funds sarmarked for the
purchase of nuclear fuel for Unit No. 1, as well as to
continue (relfinancing payments to Westinghouse during
2000 {for the Unit Na. 1 Control System) and up uritil year-
end 2001 (for the Unit No. 2 Control System and nuclear
fuel). Onee this USD 7 million tranche js drawn down
completely, the amount remaining to be drawn on the
aitire loan facility will be approximately USD 153 million.
In the Belgian part of the contract, the option to draw
down a loan (for the control systems of both units]
provided by a syndicate of banks led by Brussels-based
Generale Bank and insured by OND, a Belgian insurer,
was extended in the first half of 1998, so financing of
supplies went farward smoothly jn 1999, Approximately
USD 17 million remains to be drawn under this facility.
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BANK DEBT AND MATURITIES
LONG-TERM LOANS

Creditor Currency Maximum loan Drawn down Repayment
amount  as of 31, 12. 1999 date
(milliogs) {CZK millions)

Bank Austria AG ATS 271 151 2005

Citibank International uso 317 4465 2001 - 2008

Generale Bank UsD b5 1,204 2008 — 2004

Credit Lyonnais Bank DEM 10 2001

£S0B Usp 4 2002

Die Erste Bank AG ATS 277
European Investment Bank USD 55
European Investment Bank DEM
Furepean Investment Bank EUR
European Investment Bank CZK
ING Bank NLG
International Bank for
Regonstruction and Development UsD
IPB CZK
Nord Investment Bank UsD
Komerénl banka CZK 1998 - 2003
The Sumitomo Bank DEM | 2003
The Sumitomo Bank CZK 2003
Total long-term loans
portion of which due by year-and 2000
Long-term loans

SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Creditor Maximum loan Drawn down
amount as of 31. 12. 1999
(CZK millions) (CZK millions)
Short-term loans
Commerzbank

Total short-term loans

Revolving leans

IPB | i
Partion of long-term

loans due within one year

Current bank debt

Al loan instaliments were pald on time:

77




FINANCIAL INDICATORS

The following table shows the development of financia! indicators, comparing the figures achieved by the end of 1899 with
e those expressing the covenants to be met in several debt contracts (World Bank loan, European Investment Bank loan),
o those from the end of 1998 and 1397,

® values recommended with regard to good company stability.

Profitahility 1998 1999
Return on equily (ROE) gross 13.35 5.6
Return on equity (ROE) nel 8.89 4.61
Return on total assets (ROA) niet 561 2.58
Return on capital employed (ROCE) net .21 3.28
Sales margin 0.25 0.11
Working ratio 59.1 618
maximum level — W8, EIB 60.0 60.0
Indebtedness
Debt to equity ratio 0.44 0.50
Total indebtledness (provisions excludad) % 328 35.2
maximum level — EIB, Eurobonds 50.0 50.0
Long — term indebtedness 19.4 252
Debt service ratio i 2.25 2.28/1.48
minimum leval — W8 2.2 2.2
minimiim level — EIB 1.65 1.85

Liquidity

Current ratie 1 0.36 0.75

Operational cash flow to liabilities ratio % 26.2 18.2

Total agsets turnover 1 0.29 0.26

Cash generation ratio % 46.41  109.85/84 88
minimum level — W8 % 40,0 40.0

Fixed assets

Coverage of fixed assets % 91.8 97.8

Extent of depreciation % 42 45

Capital market

Earnings per CZK 100 share CZK/share 17.5 8.7

Dividend share of profit Yo 0 N/A

Price-garning ratio 1 30 10.2

THE WORLD BANK INDICATORS

"The working ratic” states that the ratio of total operating cash expenses to total operating cash evanues should not exceed
60%. "The debt service ratio” means that the company's-net revenues must excead the debt service by a factor of 2.2. “The cash
generation ratio” states that the company has to.create, from internal sources, funds which exceed 40% of the annual average
of the capital expenditures Incurred.

The loan agreement with the World Bank sets forth, inter alia, the following covenants:

a) A "working ratio”, which may not exceed 80% of the ratio of otal operating cash expenses to total operating cash income.
The actual figure slightly exceeded this covenant amount in 1999, During the World Bank's regular inspection visits, CEZ
requested that it be granted an exception for this covenant for the years 1939 and 2000. The main reasons are end-
consumer electricity price reform that has progressed slower than anticipated (with direct impact on the development of
the prices at which CEZ, a. 5. sells electricity to the regional utilities), slower-than-forecast growth in electricity demand in
the Czech Republic, and the postponement of the Temelin Nuclear Power Station start-up date in comparison with the start-
up date envisioned in the 1992 loan agreement. The World Bank granted CEZ's request in a letter dated 23 Novermber 1999,

b) A “debt service ratio” covenant, under which the company fjust generale net revenues in 1999 of at |east 2.2 times debt.
service. The amount achieved in 1999 is depsndent on the treatment of the extraordinary bond-area program of 1939, in
which three bond issues totaling CZK 11.1 billion were repaid (of which two of the repayments totaling CZK 7 billion were.
made prior to maturity) and at the same time four new bond issues totaling CZK 17.4 hillion were floated, If the total amount
of bond instaliments is nat included in the calculation, the resulting value is 2.28, which is sufficient for compliance.
However, if i conjunction with the debt refinancing. the purpose of which was to lower the average interest rate on




horrowed capital, only regular bond installments are included (and installments paid early are excluded), the resulting value
for debt service ratio is 1,48, i.e. under the limit. In the interests of aveiding any potential misunderstandings, CEZ, a. s
requested that the World Bank grant an exception under this indicator for the years 1999 and 2000, The World Bank granted
the exception in the letter mentionerd above.

¢) A "cash generation ratio” covenant slating that at ieast 40% of average annual capital expenditures incurred (for the
previous, current and following years) must be financed aut of funds generated inside-the company, The two values
given inthe above table relate (similarly to the previous covenant) to the alternative assessments of the bond program
in 1989; CEZ, a. 5. is in compliance with the covenant renardless of which alternative is chosen.

THE EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK INDICATORS

The EIB loan agreement sets forth two of the same indicators as in the World Bank contract — the “working ratio”, which
should not exceed 60% and the “debt service ratio”, which has to be higher than 1.65: The 1994 situation is described above.
In addition, the EIB agreement includes a covenant that the "total indebtedness (provisions excluded)” should not excead
B50%. In 1999 CEZ met this limit.

Profitability

"Return on equity (ROE) gross” (5:16%], I. e. profit before tax to average equity, decreased by 61.3% due to the lower
Income before taxation (by 58.4%), while average equity increased by 7.5%.

“Return on equity (ROE] net” (4.81%), i.e: profit after tax to average equity, dropped by 53.8% due to the lower net income
{by 50.4%), while average equity, as already mentioned, increased.

“Return on total assets (ROA) net” (profit after tax to average total assets), amounted to 2.58%, 54% lower than in 1998
due to the decrease of net income {50.4%), while averaga total assets increased by 7.9%.

“Return on capital employed (ROCE) net” (profit after tax to average sum of total capitalization and long-term debt, net of
amount dug within one year) amounted to 3.29%, 54.3% lower than in 1998 due to the decrease of net income and growth
of average capital employed (by 8.6%).

“Sales margin” (0.11). i. & pre-tax profit to total revenues, decreased by 56.3% due to the degrease of pre-tax profit
(68.4%) and revenueas by 3.1%:

Indebtedness

“Debt to equity ratio” (total debt to total capitalization) of 0.50 increased from 0.44 at the end 1998 due to increase of
total debt (by 18.8%) exceeding that equity (by 4.7%).

“Total indebtedness {provisions excluded)’, i. e. total liabilitiss without provisians to total capitalization and liabilities,
increased from 32.8% to 35.2%, because of increase of long-term debt (including short-term portion) by 19.7%, while total
equity increased by 7,4%.

"Long-term indebtedness”, i. e. long-term debt L¢ total capitalization and liabilities, increased from a level of 19.4% at
the end of 1998 ta 25.2% mainly due to the inerease of long term debt, net of amount due within one year, by 47.8%,
while total capitalization and ljabilities increased by 8,1%.

Liquidity

“Current ratio” (current assets to current liabilities) was 0.75, which is 107% above the level at the end of 1998 (0.36).
There are several reasons for this jump. The first is the increase of current assets from CZK 8.5 billinn to CZK 12.4 billion
{by 46.5%] due to the increase of cash by CZK 3.4 billion, accompanied by a higher |evel of receivables by CZK 0.8 billjen.
The second reason is the decrease of current liabilities due to a drop in the:short-term portion of long-term debt, which
was at an extraerdinarily high level at year-end 1998,

"Operational cash flow to liabilities ratio”, i. e. cash flow from operating activities to total liabilities, decreased from
26.2% to 18:2% due to the lower cash flow from operational activities (by 21.6%). while the total ameunt of liabilities
increased by 12.6%.

“Total assets furnover”, i, e. total revenues to tatal assets, amounted to 0.26, and fell 12.0% from the level achieved in
1988 (0.29) due to revenues decreasing by 3.1% while total assets rose 8.1%.

Fixed assets

“Coverage of fixed assets”, i. e: sum of long-term liabilities and total capitalization to fixed assets, increased from 91.8%
10 97.8%, 1. e. by 6.6%. While fixed assets increased only by 6.:4%, long term liabilities (part of covering amount of funds)
increased by 29.2% and the rest of covering funds (total equity) increased by 4,7%.

"Extent of depreciation”, i. e. accumulated provisions for depreciation to initial value of plant in service, increased from
42% 1o 45%) as a result of lower amount of commissioned new equipment in comparison with the previous year.

Capital marlet

"Earmings per CZK 100 share” dropped 50.4% from their year-end 1998 level (CZK 17.5) to CZK 8.7 as a result of lower net
profit. The CZK 100 par value results from a split that took place in February 1989, Values from previous years are split-
adjusted for comparisan purpeses,

‘Dividend share of profit” is net available for 1989, because it will be the subject of the general mesting scheduled for July 2000,
"Price-garning ratio” {market share price to earnings per share) soared from'3.5 10 10.2, |, e. increased nearly three times
due to the company's higher market capitalization, which increased to CZK 52.477 billion (45.1%) from the level at the end
of 1998 (CZK 36.175 billion), in combination with earnings per share that were 50.4% lower than in the previous year.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board of CEZ, a. s

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GEZ, a. s. (a Czech joint-stock company, “the
Company”) as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, Those Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supparting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consalidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of CEZ, a. s. as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999 in conformity with International Accounting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee.

[P s ot

Arthur Andersen Ceska republika, k.s.
Prague, Czech Republic
March 15, 2000

ANNUAL REPORT 1989 — 8 1 —REPORT (OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCORDING TO
N  INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997

(CEK mitlions)

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment {Note 4}

Plant in service

Lass aceumulatad provision for depreciation
Nel plant in gervice

Nuctear {ual. at amortized cost

Cansteustion work in progress (Note 3 and 17)
Total property, plant and equipment
Investmeants in affiliate (Note 15)

Othar noncirrent dssets, net {Note 5)

Current agsels

Cash (Note 6)

Hecaivablas, net (Note 7)
Muterals and supplies, net
Fossil fuel stocks
Frapayments

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharsholdars” equity (Note §)

Stated capital

Retained earnitigs

Total shareholders’ equity

Long-tarm liabilities

Long-term debit. nat of amount die within gne year (Note )

Accumilfated prowision fan hiclear decommissioning and fuel storage (Note 11
Deferred meome taxes (Note 14]

Total long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Gurrant Habilites:

Short-tarm tpins (Note 12)

Long-term debt due within gne yeal (Note 9)
Accaunt payabla

Acerued Habilities (Notk 13)

Total current liabilities

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1999 1998 1997
164,973 156,592 143,267
73.083 BB, 175 88,721
70,890 80,417 84,486
4914 4519 4,500
91,460 81,337 74,860
186,364 176,273 163,965
5,351 4893
2811 1,619 1,787
4,357 1,007 4,007
4,497 3,653 4,495
2172 1,796 1,681
197 17264 1,207
B16 741 570
12,433 8,487 12,020
207,058 191,472 177.722
59,209 59,200 59,185
54,735 40,600 30,250
113,904 108,809 98,145
51,084 34 561 90,689
16,272 15,974 15,664
9,134 8,674 6,280
76,490 59,209 51,633
2.004 2,704 3,204
2 65 10,330 3,502
4,552 4,046 4,796
6,604 6,371 6,142
16,625 23,45 17,644
207,059 191,472 177,122

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997

(CZK mitlions)

Revenues:

Sales of electricity

Heat sales and other roveEnies
Total revenues

Expenses:

Fuel

Purchased power

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation and amartization

Salaries and wages

Muclaar decommissioning and fuel starage
liaterials-and supplies

(ther expenses

Total expenses

Income before other expense (income) and income taxes
Other expenses (income):

Interest on debt net of capitalized interest (Notes 2 ad 9)
lterest income

Exvhange rate lnsses (nains), net

Dthet expenses, net

Equity in earmings of affiliate

Income before income faxes

Income taxes (Moti 14)

Net income

Average number of shares outstanding (000s] (Note 8]

Net income per share, basic and lully diluted (CZK per shurg)

1999 1998 1997
50,678 52,041 51,254
2,864 3.201 a3
53,502 55,202 54,991
12,056 13,220 13,228
7,444 7,095 7419
4,203 4,604 3,869
8,740 8.162 .43
3,504 3407 3250
I.a14 1,008 1,768
2.087 2,135 1962
4,108 3.823 AN
14,146 43,484 42,150
9,396 11,758 12,801
967 & 776
(157) (108) (155
2,608 {2,010] 2,162
708 485 563

1476 (1.275)
5,750 13,831 9,475
615 3,481 4,219
5135 10,350 5,266
592,080 592,019 591,753
8.7 1.5 &9_

The accompanying notes aré an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY FOR THE YEARS
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997

Mumber of Shares with Face Value

Stated Capital

Retainad Earnings

Total Equity

CZK 1,100 CZK 1,000 CZK 100
Pes: Pes Pes. 000 CZK mil. CZK mil. CZK mil,
December 31, 1996 51,731.16) 2.251.410 59,156 __ 33954 53150
Additional paid-m capital - 1947 39,255 39 19
Net Income — 1987 6,256 5,258
December 31, 1997 51,731,181 2,290,665 59,195 39,250 98,445
Additional paid-in capital - 1998 13,904 14 14
Net Ingome. — 1998 10,350 10,350
December 31, 1998 51,731,161 2,304,569 59,209 4%50 108,804
Split of Shares (51,731,161)  (2,304,569) 592,088
Nat Ingome— 1999 5.135 5135
December 31, 1999 h82.088 59,209 54,735 113.944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS

ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997
(CZK millions)

Operating activities:
Net incame

Adjustments to reconcile net income o net cash providad by operating activities:
Depraciation and amortization

Amortization of nuelear fuel

Gain/Luss in fixed assets ratirtements

Pravision tor nuclear decommissioning and fuel storage

Provisions for doubtful aceounts, enviromental claims and other adjustmants
Equity in eatmings of alfiliste, net of cash dividands

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Recevables

Materials and supplies

Fossi fuel stocks

Prepayments

Accounts payable

Accrued and deferred taxas
Acorued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and aquipment and other non current assets
Proceads from sales of fixed assets

Total cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:
Proeeeds from borrawings
Payments of horrawings

Total cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash at beginning of period
Cash at end of period

Supplementary eash flow information
Cash paid for
Interpst
Income taxes
Interest recelved
Divirends racejved

1998 1998 1997
5,135 10,350 5,256
9542 8,271 7,108
1487 1,453 1,353
97 |78} (18)
299 310 1,508
120 (24) 273
{325) 1,173)

(674) 842 7,261
476) (169} {252}
ag7 (57) 1303)
116 (177) Han

439 (750} 501
513 7,368 7,158
206 394 (1,039)
16,946 21,620 19,001
(22.843) (25.973) 123.585)
533 B0 232
(22,310) {25,913) (23,353)
42,894 16,239 19,730
{34,280) (15,036) {13,503)
8,714 1,208 6,227
3,350 {3,090) 1,875
1,007 4,097 2222
4,357 1,007 4,097
4,650 4164 3,624
701 569 1,643
153 107 155
133 136 19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999

1. THE COMPANY

CEZ, a.s. ("CEZ” or "the Company”) is a Czech Republic joint-stock company, which was established as of April 30, 1992.
At December 31, 1999 the Czech Republic National Property Fund owned 67.6% of the Company. The refmaining shares of
the Company are publicly held. The address of the Company's registered office is Jungmannova 29, Praha 1, 111 48,
Czech Republic, The average number of employees of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries was 10,087 and
10,600 for the year 1999 and 1998, respectively.

CEZ is an electricity generation and transmission company, which produced approximately 70% of the electricity and
a minor portion of the district heating in the Czech Republic in 1999. The Company sells substantially all of its electricity
to eight distribution companies ("REAS”) in the Czech Republic (see Mote 15). The Company operates ten fossil fuel
plants, thirteen hydroelectric plants and one nuclear plant, The Company also has one nuclear plant under construction
{see Note 3). In July 1999 the Company contributed property of its transmission division into a wholly owned subsidiary,
CEPS, a. s. (see Note 16).

On January 1, 1895 The Act on Conditions of Business Activity and State Administration in the Energy Industries and on
State Power Inspection (the "Energy Law”) became effective. The Energy Law, which applies fo the electricity, gas and
heatindustries in the Czech Republic, grants the Ministry of Industry and Trade extensive regulatory powers with respect
to the business of CEZ, including monitoring certain new investments by the Company in electricity generating equipment
and power lines. The Energy Law also designates the Ministry of Industry and Trade as the sole authorized body for
submitting proposals for changes in the price of electricity, aas and heat to the Ministry of Finance. The Ministry of
Finance establishes retail electricity prices pursuant to the Act on Prices.

As provided in the Energy Law, an independent Central Energy Dispatching association was established in April 1997.
The Ministry of Industry and Trade, CEZ, independent power producers and the REAS have 20%, 20%, 20% and 40%
interests, respectively, in Central Energy Dispatching. Pursuant to the Energy Law and ils arficles of association, Central
Energy Dispatching is responsible for balancing the demand and supply capacity of electricity on a long-term basis.
CEPS, a. s. provides short-term to real-time dispatch control. [n 1998, the Ministry of Industry and Trade issued decrees
pertaining to the central dispatching function.

In January 2000, the Czech Cabinet approved an energy bill which it is expected to become law by the end of 2001, The
new bill provides for the main energy regulatory functions to be assumed by a new Energy Regulation Office (the
"Office”), which s to issue licenses for generation, transmission, distribution and trading in electricity. The Office will
also regulate prices and monitor the operations of the system. The Ministry of Industry and Trade will have a new role
of deciding whether to allow the construction of new power stations or transmission/distribution networks. Third-party
access is ta be introduced gradually between 2002 and 2007 at which time every customer will be able to purchase
electricity from any distributor, eligible generator, or trader.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Company is required to maintain its books and records in accordance with accounting principles and practices
mandated by the Czech Law on Accounting. The accompanying financial statements reflect certain adjustments and
reclassifications not recorded in the accounting records of the Company in order to conform the Czech statutory
balances to financial statements prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Committee. The adjustments are summarized in Note 18,
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Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of CEZ are prepared in conformity with Statements of International
Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee and include the accounts of CEZ, its
wholly owned subsidiary CEZ Finance B.V. (see Note 9) incarporated under law of The Netherlands and its wholly owned
transmission subsidiary CEPS, a. s. (see Note 16) incorporated under law of the Czech Republic. All significant
intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consalidation. The Company has an investment in
Severoteske doly, a. s. (see Note 15), which is accounted for using the equity methad.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with international accounting standards requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenues

The Company bills for services rendered through the end of each month based on meter readings.

Approximately 91% of the Company’s total electricity sales, 99% of domestic sales, are to eight regional electric
distribution companies (see Note 1).

Fuel costs

Fuel costs are expensed as fuel is consumed. Fuel expense includes the amortization of the cost of nuclear fuel,
Amortization of nuclear fuel charged to fuel expense was CZK 1,467, 1,453 and 1,353 million for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively,

Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs, amounting to CZK 96, 0 and 72 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, are expensed as incurred.

Interest

Under International Accounting Standards, all interest costs incurred in connection with a construction program that
theoretically could have been avoided if expenditures for the assets had not been made are capitalized. Such capitalized
interest costs amounted to CZK 3,643, 3,334 and 3,026 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical original cost. Original cost of plant in service includes materials,
labor, payroll-refated costs and the cost of debt financing used during construction. Government grants received for
construction of certain environmental installations decrease acquisition cost of respective items of property, plant and
equipment. The cost of maintenance, repairs, and replacement of minor items of property is charged to maintenance
expense. Renewals and betterment are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of property, plant and equipment, the cost
and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts. Any resulting gains or losses are included in
the determination of net income.

Depreciation
The Company depreciates the original cost of property, plant and equipment by using the straight-line method over the
estimated economic lives, The depreciable lives used for property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Lives
Buildings and structures 2550
Machinery and equipient 4-20
Furpiture and fixtures i}
Motar vehicles 4-20
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Average depreciable lives based on the functional use of property are as follows:

Average Life

Hydro plants
Buildings and structures ah
Machinery and equipmant 20

Fassil fuel plants
Bulldings and structures
Machinery and aquipment 10
Ash storage faoilities §
Nuelear power plant

Buildings and structures 30
Machipery and equipment 12
Transmission lines 30
Transformer stations 16

Depreciation of plant in service was CZK 8,593, 8,026 and 6,970 million for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and
1997, which was equivalent to a composite depreciation rate of 5.5%, 5.5% and 5.3%, respectively.

Investments

Investments (see Note 5) consist of majority and minority shareholdings in operationally related companies and minor
interests in shares and share rights of the Company's electric distribution company customers (see Note 1). Investments
are stated at their acquisition cost. Provisions for diminution in value are created on the basis of the expected realizable
value of the investments.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand, current accounts with banks and short-term bank notes with maturity of three months or
less (see Note 6). Foreign currency deposits are translated at December 31, 1999 and 1998 exchange rates, respectively.

Nuclear Fuel
Nuclear fuel is stated at original cost, net of accumulated amortization. Amortization of fuel in the reactor is based on
the amount of power generated.

Fossil Fuel Stocks
Fossil fuel stocks are stated at weighted average cost, which approximates actual cost,

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are principally composed of power plant maintenance materials and spare parts. Cosl is
determined by using weighted average cost, which approximates actual cost, These materials are recorded in inventory
when purchased and then expensed or capitalized to plant, as appropriate, when installed. The Company records
a provision for obsolete inventory as such items are identified. A provision of CZK 132 and 31 million was created against
inventory for absolete stocks as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively,

Income Taxes

The provision for corporate tax is calculated in accordance with Czech tax requlations and is based on the income or
loss reported under Czech accounting regulations, adjusted for appropriate permanent and temporary differences from
Czech taxable income. Inthe Czech Republic income taxes are caleulated on an individual company basis as the tax laws
do not permit consolidated tax returns. Clirrent income taxes are provided at a rate of 35%, 35% and 39%, for the years
ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, after adjustments for certain items which are not deductible for taxation
purposes.

Certain items of income and expense are recognized in different periods for tax and financial accounting purposes.
Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences in financial statement and taxable income at the
subsequent years tax rate using the liability method. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Income tax rates are published the year preceding their
effectiveness and for 2000 the rate will be 31% (see Note 14).
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Receivables, Payables and Accruals
Receivables are reported at net realizable value. Payables are recorded at invoiced values and accruals are reported at
expected settlement values.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Assets whose acquisition or construction costs were denominated in foreign currencies were translated to Czech
crowns al the exchange rates prevailing at the date of each acquisition or at the date on which the related items were
imcludetd in assets.

Foreign currency on hand, bank accounts, receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated
to Czech crowns at the exchange rates existing at the transaction date and are adjusted at year-end to the exchange
rates at that date as published by the Czech National Bank.

Exchange rate differences arising on settlement of transactions or on reporting foreign currency transactions al rates
different from those at which they were originally recorded are included i the Statement of Income as they oceur,

Repairs and Maintenance Accrual

Through 1999 the Company has acerued a provision for the estimated cost of major overhauls of its power plants. Such
estimated costs were accrued on a straight-line basis for planned future overhauls over three years. When major
overhaul costs were incurred the costs were charged against the accumulated overhaul provision. Minar repair and
maintenance costs have been and will continue ta be expensed when incurred. In 2000, however, pursuant to I1AS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets”, the Company will no longer accrue such costs but will charge
them to expense as incurred. The effect of this accounting change will not have a material effect on either the
Company’s linancial position or its results of operations (see Note 13),

3. TEMELIN NUCLEAR POWER PLANT

The Company is currently constructing a nuclear power plant near Temelin, in the Czech Republic. The plant will consist
of two Soviet-designed PWR 981 MW units with modifications to upgrade safety and operating systems.

Construction of the Temelin nuclear power plant commenced in 1986 but was delayed in 1990, In March 1993 the

government of the Czech Republic approved the completion of two out of an originally planned four units and at the same-

time ardered a fundamental change in the design of the reactor, primarily to enhance operational safety of the nuclear
power plant. This change consisted of adapting the already built Soviet plant technology to function with Western
instrumentation and control systems. At this time the budgeted cost was CZK 69 billion with estimated fuel loading
scheduled for the fall of 1995.

The adaptation of Western technology to the original Soviet plant construction at Temalin is the first such adaptation of
its kind and, accordingly, has posed difficult and unprecedented technical challenges beyond what had been anticipated
in 1993, As a result of extensive design and construction changes, the estimated completion date for Temelin has been
delayed several times.

The investment in the Temelin nuclear power plant at December 31, 1999 and the budgeted cost to complete copstruction
is as follows (in CZIK billions):

Unit No. 1 Unit No. 2 Jaint Facilities Total

Inyestment kAl 28 21 80
Budgat 2000 b 2 2 10
2001 1 7

2002 2 2
Budgeted cost to complate [ 11 2 18
Total budgeted cost k) 39 23 99
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In addition to the total budgeted cost of CZK 99 billion, the Company will capitalize approximately CZK 10 billion of interest
pursuant to its |AS interest capitalization policy.

Actual Temelin construction expenditures totaled CZK 10 billion, CZK 8 billion and CZK & hillion for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

The Company expects that the first unit of the Temelin nuclear power plant will begin fuel loading and related testing in
the summer of 2000 and will be fully operational from eight to ten months later. The second unit is expected to go into
service from twelve to eighteen months after unit one. Based on the current status of the plants construction, the
Company does not expect further construction delays or cost increases. However, as a result of past experience and due
to the fact that implementing the design modifications al Temelin has no historical precedent, there can be no assurance
that further delays and ensuing increases in investment costs will not oceur.

Before Temelin can begin its test period, CEZ must abtain various approvals fram State Nuclear Safety Agency which are
expected to be recelved before fuel loading. As a part of procedures to obtain final approvals, CEZ has prepared several
studies of the impact of certain parts of the nuclear power plant on the environment. The Ministry of Environment has
raised concerns in the past about potential adverse epvironmental effects. The current opinion of the Ministry is
unknown at this time. Environmental groups can also potentially attack approvals by legal actions.

Continuing environmental and other opposition to the plant could result in delay of the construction, fuel loading and
related testing and/or injtial operation of Temelin due to events beyond the control of management.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows (in CZK millions):

Buildings Plant and Land and Accumulated Net Plant
Equipment Other Depreciation in Seryice

Decomber 31, 1997 51,619 85,086 6,502 {58,721) 84,486
Plant additions 2,961 10,195 1,108 14,264
Retirements (75) (574) (82} 713 {18)
Change in provisions (23) (125) (148)
Depreciation (B,167] {8,167
Dacember 31, 1998 54,482 94,582 1,520 {66,175) gn.417
Plant additions 3,269 4,659 879 6,821
Retirements (596) (874) {173} 1,627 (16)
Change in provisions 112 85 197
Depraciation (8,435) (9,435)
December 31, 1999 57,287 98,452 8239 {73,963) 9,990

Depreciation in 1999 includes CZK 842 million charged to other operating expenses in the consolidated statements of
income for assets sold.

None of the Company's property, plant and equipment is pledged as security for liabilities.

5. OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

Other noncurrent assets at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consist of the following (in CZK millions):

1999 1998
Investments i electric distribution companies (see Note 15) 811
ther shareholdings (see Note 2) 1.633 1,378
Long-term receivables 12 42
Intangible assets 857 fitil,
Less amortization (462) {302
Total 291 1,819
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6. CASH

Tha composition of eash at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows (in CZK millions):

1999 1998
Cash on hand and current accounts with banks 493 308
Short-term hank notes 3548 500
Term deposils 316 202
Total 4,357 1,007

At December 31, 1999 and 1998; the current accounts with banks included foreign currency deposits of CZK 2,885 and
207 million, respectively.

The weighted average interest rate on short-term bank notes at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was 5.2% and 9.1%,
respectively. For the years 1989, 1998 and 1997 the weighted average interest rate was 5.9%, 9.0% and 10.3%,
respectively.

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The composition of accounts receivable at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows (in CZK millions):

1999 1998
Trade receivables 3522 3184
Relundable income taxes 957 412
Other 230 289
Less allowance for doubtiul accounts (217 (232)
Total 4,492 3,653
8. STATED CAPITAL
The Company's stated capital as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows:

Number of Shares Value per Share (CZK) Total (CZK millions)

1999
Registered shaires §91.949,421 10 59,195
Approved shares 139,040 100 14
Total 592,080,461 59,209

1998
Saries A 61,731,161 1,100 56,904
Saries B 2,304,569 1,000 2306
Total 54,035,730 59,209

Series A shares were Initially issued at a nominal value of CZK 1,000 per share. Subsequently, the nominal value of the
Series A shares was increased from CZK 1,000 to CZK 1,100. The Series B wete issued in 1994 for the second wave of
voucher privatization in exchange for certain Series A shares owned by the National Property Furd.

The Company’s stated capital was increased by CZK 14 million (13,904 series B shares) in 1998 and hy CZK 39 million
(39,255 series B shares) in 1997, resulting fram privatized property contributed to CEZ by the National Property Fund. The
1998 capital increase has not been registered as of December 31, 1999.

In February 1999, the Series A and Series B shares were split into 591,949,421 shares having a nominal value of CZK 100
per share, The 139,040 shares relating to the 1998 capital increase had not been issued and registered at that date.
Shares used in the calculation of earnings per share as shown on the Statements of Income reflect the effect of the
share split and include the unissued shares.
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT

l.ong-term debt at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows (in CZK millions):

1999 1948
1125% Notes, due 2007 [8) 6,200 5,707
7.25% Eurpbonds, due 2006 (b) 7,354
8.75% Debentures, due 2004 3,000
8.875% Eurobonds, due 1999 4,137
9.22%, Debentures, due 2014 (c) 2500
10.9% Debentures, repaid in 1999 3,000
11.0625% Debentires due 2008 3,000 3,000
11.3% Debentures, due 2008 4,000 4,000
14,375% Debentures, repaid in 1998 4,000
Zero coupon Debeptures, diie 2008 (c) 2,105
Non-callateralizad lana-term bank loans:
less thart 6.00%, due 2003 10 2013 (d, &) 4,875 9412
6.00% 10 6.99%, due 2003 to 2013 {d, f. g) 16,743 548
7.00% 10/7.99%, due 2000 1o 2013 (&) 1,121 4,665
8.00% and more, due 2001 to 2013 e, h) 2,851 5,425
Total long-tarm debt (CZIC 16,041 million of which is repayable in foreign currency) 53,749 44,894
Less: Current portion (2,665} 110,333)
Long-term debt, net of carrent portion 51,084 34,561

The future maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in CZK millions):

2000 2,665
2001 3,954
2002 4,609
2003 4113
2004 4,813
Thereatter 35,595
Total long-term debt 53,749

a) In July 1997, CEZ Finance B.V. (CEZ F.B.\.) sold USD 200 million 7.125% notes, quaranteed by CEZ, on the American
Stock Exchange. On the same date, CEZ borrowed USD 200 million from CEZ FEB.V. and simultaneously entered into
a swap transaction to exchange its USD 200 million liability to 359 million DM and the fixed interest rate was changed
to a floating rate depending on the DM-LIBOR. The interest rate may float within a range of 5.095% - 7.85%. The swap
was designed to minimize currency exchange risks and to reduce interest costs. The outstanding liability balance at
December 31, 1999, after 1998 a retirement of USD 22 million notes, was DM 320 million.
In March and Jupe 1999, CEZ entered into three swap transactions designed to eliminate currency devaluation risk
by exchanging its DM liability to CZK. In consideration for the exchange, CEZ will pay interest at a rate equivalent to
9.44%, 9.76% and PRIBOR plus 1.25% on the DM 100 million, 100 million and 120 million portion of the liahility,
respectively.

b) In October 1999, CEZ FB.V. sold EUR 200 million 7.25% notes which were guaranteed by CEZ On the same date, CEZ
borrowed EUR 200 million from CEZ FB.V. In Octaber 1999 CEZ entered into six swap transactions to exchange
175 million of its EUR liahility to CZK and into four interest rate swap transactions designed to decrease interest rates.
As a result of the swap transactions, CEZ will pay interest rate ranging from 3.78% below EURIBOR to EURIBOR on the
175 million portion of its EUR liability.

¢) In January 1994, the Company issued two domestic bonds. One issue was for CZK 2,500 million due in 2014 with

interest for the pertod from 1999 through 2005 of 9.22% and from 2008 with interest of CPI plus 4.2%. The other jssue
was for CZK 4,500 million zero-coupon bonds due in 2009 sold al 41.4% of the nominal value.
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d) The Company has entered into a loan agreement with the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development

for a USD 246 million loan to be drawn on through June 1999, In June 1998, the credit facility was split into USD
169.2 million, which is the amount committed as of June 10, 1998 and the unwithdrawn portion, which was converted
to a DM 135.6 million credit facility.

As of December 31, 1999 USD 167.9 million and DM 59.1 million have been drawn under the agreement. The agreement
contains financial covenants relating to capital expenditure coverage, cash flow coverage and debt service
coverage. The Company obtained a waiver of the covenants for the years 1999 and 2000 for the debt service ratio and
waorking ratio.

e) In July 1996, CEZ signed an agreement with a consortium of twelve foreign banks, which provided a guarantee for

N

g

h}

a European Investment Bank loan to CEZ in the amount of, or equivalent to, EUR 100 million. As of December 31, 1999
DM 320 million with an interest rate of 6.33%, USD 55 million with an interest rate of 7.05%, EUR 29.5 million with an
interest rate of 5.17% and CZK 382.6 million with an interest rate 0.15% below PRIBOR have been borrowed.

In September 1998, CEZ entered into swap transaction designed to eliminate currency devaluation risk by exchanging
21.1 out of its USD 55 million liabjlity to CZK. In consideration for the exchange, CEZ will pay interest at a rate
equivalent to 10.2% from March 15, 1999 through September 15, 2005, the period covered by the syap agreement.

In January 1999, CEZ entered into swap transactions, which exchanged 6.9 out of its DM 30 million and 6.8 out of its
EUR 29.5 million liabilities to CZK. In consideration for the exchange, CEZ will pay interest at a rate equivalent to 7.08%
and 5.8% on the DM and EUR portion, respectively, for the period from March 15, 1999 through September 15, 2003,
the period cavered by the swap agreements.

In September 1999, floating interest rate on a CZK 382.6 million liability was hedged for the period from December 15,
1998 through December 17, 2001, by three interest options to a maximum of 7.695% if PRIBOR is below 8.5%. If PRIBOR
is above B.5%, CEZ will pay an interest rate of 0.805% below PRIBOR,

In December 1996, the Company entered inlo two syndicated credil facility agreements to secure financial resources
for the completion of the Temelin nuclear power plant (see Note 3). The first facility is for USD 317 million, with an
interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.3% and a maturity date in Dctoher 2008, and is guaranteed by the Export Import Bank of
the United States (EXIM) and by the Czech Republic. There were USD 129.1 million outstanding on this facility as of
December 31, 1999, The second facility is for USD 55 million, with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.5% and a maturity
date in November 2008, and is guaranteed by Belgium Office National du Ducroi and by the Czech Republic; There
were USD 34.7 million outstanding on this facility as of December 31, 1999.

In December 1998, the Company entered into three swap transactions to exchange USD 62.7 and 6.6 million of the
two credit facilities, respectively to CZK. The amount represents six repayments of the principal for both facilities.
The swap was designed to eliminate currency exchange risks for those USD liabilities.

In November 1998, the Company entered into a syndicated credit facility agreement with a consortium of thirtean
banks. The credit facility was drawn In two tranches. The first tranche is a multicurrency term loan facility in an
aggregate amount of DM 102 million, with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.5%. The second tranche is a CZK term loan
facility in an aggregate amount of CZK 3,115 million, with an interest rate of PRIBOR plus 0.5%. There were DM
102 million and CZK 3,115 million withdrawn on this facility as of December 31, 1998,

In January 1999, CEZ entered into a swap transaction to exchange its DM liability to CZK. In consideration for the
exchange, CEZ will pay interest at a rate equivalent to PRIBOR plus 0.595%.

In September 1998, CEZ entered into a swap transaction designed to eliminate currency devaluation risk by
exchanging its DM 60.2 million loan drawn from G508 for desulphurization program to CZK. In consideration for the
exchange, CEZ will pay interest at a rate equivalent to approximately 15.6% for the period covered by the swap
agreement, i.e. from September 25, 1998 through June 29, 2004. The balance of the liability oulstanding as of
December 31, 1999 was CZK 47.4 million.

During the first quarter of 2000, the Czech crown devaluate against US dollar, Had the foreign currency debt been
calculated at March 15, 2000 rather than December 31, 1999, the CZK 5.1 billion profit for the year ended December 31,
1999 would have been reduced by CZK 222 million.
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In the nofmal course of business, the financial position of the Company is routinely subjected to a variety of risks,
including market risk associated with jnterest rate movements and currency rate movements on non-Czech crown
denominated liabilities. The Company regularly assesses these risks and has established policies and business practices
to help protect against the adverse effects of these and other potential exposures.

In 1999 the Company incurred an exchange rate loss of CZK 2,609 million and in 1998 the Company had an exchange rate
gain of CZK 2,010 million. The actual exchange rate losses/gains were partially mitigated as a result of currency swap
agreements, as described ahove.

The 1999 exchange rate loss reduced net income by 33.7% and the 1998 exchange rate gain increased net income by
16.5%. Had the Company not partially hedged its currency rate movement exposure through currency swap agreements,
the 1999 exchange rate loss and the 1998 exchange rate gain would have been 35.4% and 15.8% of net income,
respectively.

As currency rate movements expose the Company to significant risk, the Company uses sensitivity analysis to determine
the impacts that market risk exposures may have on the fair values of the Company's financial instruments. To perform
sensitivity analysis, the Company assesses the risk of loss in fair values from the impact of hypothetical changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates on market sensitive instruments and considers the costs and
expected benefits of various hedging techniques.

In 1999 CEZ began hedging against foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations affecting its expenses of operations by
using an aption strategy (zero cost premium). Management believes this is the most effective strategy in situations
where it is not possible to accurately predict the amount and maturity of expenses.

With respect to changes in interest rates, the Company's sensitivity analysis indicates that a 10% decrease or a 10%
increase in the levels of interest rates, with all other variables constant, would not have materially affected the
Company's earnings for the years ended in December 31, 1999, 1998 or 1997.

The Company will continue to explore cost-effective possibilities to reduce its current exchange rate movement and
other market risks.

10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amount of cash, receivables and accounts payable approximates fair value. The estimated fair value of the
Company's long-term debt, including current maturities, was CZK 53,846 million and CZK 45,015 million at December 31,

1999 and 1998, respectively, compared to the carrying amounts of CZK 53,749 million and CZK 44,894 million at December 31,
1999 and 1998, respectively.
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11. NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING, RADIOACTIVE WASTE AND SPENT FUEL DISPOSAL

CEZ's operating nuclear plant, Dukovany, consists of four 440 MW units which were placed into service from 1985 to 1987.
CEZ is also constructing a second nuclear power plant, Temelin (see note 3), The Czech government has enacted an
Atomic Act (“Act”) which came into full force as of July 1, 1997. The Atomic Act defines certain ohligations
for the decontamination and dismantling (“decommissioning”) of the Company's nuclear power plants and the final
disposal of radioactive waste and spent fuel (“disposal”). The Act requires that all nuclear parts of plant and equipment
be decommissioned at the end of the plant's operating life, 2018 for Dukovany. A 1997 Dukovany decommissioning cost
study estimates that the nuclear decommissioning will cost CZK 12.5 billion. According to the Act an update of the study
is required every five years.

Estimated decommissioning of the NPP Dukovany, and disposal for Dukovany, have heen calculated in several technical
studies performed by the Company based on estimates from various western nuclear facilities. A provision for
decommissioning and disposal costs has been recorded from the initial operations of Dukovany. CEZ has updated and
reviewed, as of the July 1, 1997 effective date of the Act, its previous estimates for decommissioning and disposal, and
adjusted its annual accruals on a prospective basis from that date.

Pursuant to the Act, the Ministry of Industry and Trade established, in May 1997, the Radioactive Waste Repository
Authority ("RAWRA") as the central organizer and operator of facilities for the final disposal of radioactive waste and
spent fuel, The RAWRA centrally organizes, supervises and is responsible for all disposal facilities and for disposal of
radioactive waste and spent fuel therein. The activities of the RAWRA are financed through a “nuclear account” funded
by the originators of radioactive waste (such as the Company). Contribution to the nuclear account was stated by
a government resolution on August 13, 1997, as 50 CZK/MWh produced at nuclear power plants. Since October 1, 1997,
CEZ has made reqular payments to the nuclear account based on average nuclear MWh generated during last § years.
The originator of radioactive waste directly covers all costs associated with interim storage of radioactive waste and
spent fuel, CEZ continues to accrue for the cost of the interim storage of spent fuel. Actual costs incurred are charged
against the accumulated provision for spent luel storage,

The actual decommissioning and dispesal costs may vary from the above estimates because of regulatory requirements,
changes in technology, and increased costs of labor, materials, and equipment. Further, purstant to a new IAS
statement, No. 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, in 2000 CEZ will change its accounting for
nuclear decommissioning from accruing the decommissioning liability over the estimated life of the plant to recording its
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present decommissioning obligation at the date of the balance
sheet. The cost of the nuclear plants will be increased by the same amount. CEZ is currently determining the amount of
the liability to record for Dukovany and for Temelin which is scheduled to begin testing in 2000 (see Note 3).

The amounts accrued at December 31, 1999 and 1998 are as follows (in CZK millions);

1999 1998
Decommissioning 6,793 6,457
Spent fuel storage 9,479 9517
Total 16,272 15974
The current year expenses are as follows (in CZK millions);
19499 1998 19487
Decommissioning 346 332 62
Spent fusl:
Sturage acerual a0 A 929
Payment to nuclear account 638 32 157
Total .14 1,008 1,768

The Company charged CZK 78, 66 and 102 million against the spent fuel provision in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

ANNUAL BEPORT 1959 9 5 — MOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



12. SHORT-TERM LOANS

Short-term loans at December 31, 1999 and 1998 are as follows {in CZK millions):

1999 14980
Revolving cradit agreements 1,804 2,504
Loans 1,060 200
Total 2,804 2,700
CEZ has in place the following revolving credit facilities:
Agresment Balance Balance Credit Agreement Term

December 31, 1989 December 31, 1998 Limit (CZK millions)

Domestic 408 500 609 3 years: to 2002
Domestic 1,395 1.995 2,585 Byears: to 2004

Total 1,804 2,504

Interest on these loans is variable. The weighted average interest rate was 10.3% and 13.6% at December 31, 1999 and
1998, respectively. For the years 1999, 1998 and 1997 the weighted average interest rate was 9.9%, 14.2% and 11.3%,

respectively,

13. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consist of following (in CZK millions);

1999 19498
Repairs and maintenance accrual (Note 2) 3,147 3,130
Unbilled goods and services 584 an
Aceorued interest 1,445 1,603
Estimated envirenmental claims (Nota 17) 530 8§57
Sacial and bonus funds 366 403
(ther accrued liahilities 528 A7

6,604 6,311
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14. INCOME TAXES

Income Tax Lagislation
Corporate income tax is calculated in accordance with the Czech tax regulations at the rate of 35% in 1999 and 1998,
respectively. The corporate income tax rate for 2000 will be 31%.

The Czech Republic currently has a number of laws related to various taxes imposed by governmental authorities,
Applicable taxes include value-added tax, corporate tax, and payroll (social) taxes, together with others. In addition,
laws related to these taxes have not been in force for significant periods, in contrast to more developed market
economies; therefore, implementing regulations are often unclear or nonexistent. Accordingly, few precedents with
regard to issues have heen established. Often, differing opinions regarding legal interpretations exist both among and
within government ministries and organizations; thus, creating uncertainties and areas of conflict. Tax declarations,
together with other legal compliance areas (as examples, customs and currency control matters) are subject to review
and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose extremely severe fines, penalties and
interest charges. These facts create tax risks in the Czech Republic substantially more significant than typically found in
countries with more developed tax systems. Management believes that it has adequately provided for tax liabilities in
the accompanying financial statements; however, the risk remains those relevant authorities could take differing
positions with regard to interpretive issues and the effect could be significant,

The tax authorities have audited income tax returns of the Company through 1994.

Income Tax Provision
The components of the income tax provision are as follows (in CZK millians):

1999 1998 1997
Current income taxes 158 1,087 2122
Defarred income taxes 1,537 2,535 1,730
Change of valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (1,077) (141) 367
Total 615 3481 4,219

A reconciliation of “expected” income tax expense to the actual tax expense is as follows (in CZK millions):

1999 1998 1997

fncome before income taxes 6,750 13,831 5475
Statutory incoma tax rate 35% 35% 39%
"Expected” income tax expense 2,012 4,801 3,695
Add (deduct) tax effect of:

Czech/IAS accounting differences {115) (123} 89

Non deductible nuclear provisions 26 28 429

Unrpalized foreign exchange {544} "

Other non deductible provisions, nat (330) {21} (114)

Investment tax relief (44) {252) (480)

Other non deduetible (nontaxable) items, net 13 78 484
Tax cradits {22) (1)
Additional tax assessments (tax refunds) 156 (5) 51
Effect of application af IAS 12 (revised 1996) (499)
Difference resulting from using subsequent year tax rate for the calculation of deferred taxes {1,221) (735)
Income taxes 615 348 4,219
Effective tax rate (Note 2) 1M% 26% 5%,
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Deferred Taxes, Nel
Deferred income taxes at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consist of the following (in CZK millions):

1999 1998
Accumulated provision for ruclear decommissioning and spent uel storage 4,541 5,249
Tax loss carryforward 85
Foraign exchange 585
Other provisions 305 369
Total deferred tax assels 5516 5618
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 14,501) {5,618)
Delerred tax assets, nal 975
Tax depraciation in excess of financial statement depreciation 5437 4,480
Capitalized interest 4,208 3,682
ncome from affiliate A6 410
Foreign exchange i)
Deferred tax liabilities 10,109 8,674
Total deferred tax liahilities, net 9,134 8.674

15. RELATED PARTIES

The Company purchases products from related parties in the ordinary course of business. Approximately 70% of the
fossil fuel consumption is supplied by Severoéeské doly, a.s., a company in which CEZ holds a 38% share. In 1999, 1998
and 1997, coal purchases from Severodeske doly, a.s., amounted to 5,951, 5,836, and 5,656 million CZK, respectively.
Receivables from Severoceske doly, a.s. amounted to 14 and 6 million CZK as of December 31, 1999 and 1998,
respectively, Payables to Severoceske doly, a.s. amounted to 562 and 310 million CZK as of December 31, 1999 and 1998,
respectively, The prices of fossil fuel supplies from Severogeské doly, a.s. do not differ significantly from market prices.

Skoda Praha, a. s. is the Company's general supplier of technology and equipment for the Temelin nuclear power plant (see
Note 3) and is 55% owned by the Mational Property Fund (see Note 1). In January 1999, the CEO of Skoda Praha, a. s. was
appointed by the Ministry of Industry and Trade as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors and in December 1999 gave
up the CEO position at Skoda Praha, a. s. to become the CEO of CEZ. In February and July 1999, the Company purchased
166,122 shares of Skada Praha, &, s., which represents a 30% interest in the company. The Company's purchases from Skoda
Praha, a. s., mainly for Temelin (see Note 3), amounted to CZK 8,271, 6,746 and 5,261 million in 1998, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

In'1999 the Company acquired minority interests ranging from 0.01% to 2.95% in six out of eight of REAS, the Company’s major
customers [see Note 1). The interest were purchased at the direction of Ministry of Industry and Trade so the National
Property Fund (see Note 1) together with the Company, to regain majority interests for the government in the REAS.

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Until 1999 CEZ had operated as an integrated generation and fransmission company. As directed by the Ministry of
Industry and Trade at the Company's June 1998 General Meeting, in late 1998 the Company established a wholly owned
transmission subsidiary, CEPS a. s., (CEPS) with basic capital of CZK 1 million. Following an appraisal to value
transmission assets at their fairvalue, CEZ contributed such assets totaling CZK 16.8 billion to CEPS. Since August 1999
generation and transmission activities have been accounted for as separate businesses. The following summarizes
segment information fram the period from August through December 1999 and as of 31 December 1999 (in CZK millions):

Power Production Transmission Combined Elimination Consolidated
Sales Other than Intersegment Sales 53,528 14 53,542 53,542
Intersegment Sales 437 1,428 1,866 (1,865)
Total Revenues 53,965 1,442 55,407 (1,865) 53,502
Operating Income 9,363 {283) 9,080 316 9,396
Identifiable Assels 179,518 16,860 196,378 (10,014) 186,364
Identifiable Liabilities 84,195 5,561 89,746 {5,765) 83,981

The power generation segment sells the major part of its electricity generated to eight regional distribution companies
{see Note 1). The power generation segment charges the cost of power losses in the transmission grid to the
transmission segment.

In 19989 the transmission segment sells transmission and dispatch services mainly to the power generation segment,
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17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction Program

The Company is engaged in a continuous construction pragram, currently estimated as of December 31, 1999 to total CZK
82.8 billion over the next five years, as follows lin CZK billions): 24.2 in 2000, 20.0 in 2001, 14.4 in 2002, 12.3 in 2003 and
11.9in 2004. Pursuant to its IAS interest capitalization policy (see Note 2), the CZK 82.8 billion includes approximately CZK
11.4 billion interest in excess of interest capitalized under Czech accounting principles. Such additional capitalized
interest results in an increase in the Company’s net income and construction expenditures, but does not elfect either its
cash requirements or its cash flow. The construetion programs are subject to periodic reviews and actual construction
may vary fram the above estimates. The estimated investments include CZK 35.1 billion for nuclear (including the Temelin
nuclear power plant, see Note 3). At December 31, 1999 significant purchase commitments were outstanding in
connection with the construction program.

The Company is actively pursuing various financing opportunities to fund the future costs of its construction program.
In connection therewith, the Company has obtained the following credit ratings - from Moody's Investors Service; Baal
and Standard & Poor's: BBB+ with stable outlook. It is the opinion of management that the Company will be able to obtain
all necessary financing to complete the construction programs.

Environmental Matters

The Czech Republic has adopted a series of environmental acts and laws and regulations (“the Acts") including
a timetable for the reduction of atmospheric emissions in the period from 1992 through December 31, 1998. As of
December 31, 1998, all plants operated by the Company had been upgraded to meet the enviranmental requirements of
the Acts.

The Company is also liable under the Acts for past environmental damage, in 1999, 1998 apd 1997, payments made to state
farms, individual farms, cooperatives, other agricultural firms and forests totaled 53, 162 and 187, respectively. Based on
current estimates of its probable future obligations, the Company provided CZK 25 million in 1999, CZK 20 million in 1998
and CZK 94 million in 1997, respectively, for pollution damages. Although uncertainties exist due to interpretations of
applicable |aws, management does not believe, based upon the information available at this time, that the ultimate
outcame of these matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Insurance Matters

The Nuclear Act (see Note 11) sets liabilities for nuclear damages by the operator of nuclear installations/licensees. The
Nuclear Act provides that operators of nuclear facilities are liable for up to CZK 1.5 hillion per incident and that the state
is liable for the remainder up to CZK 6 billion, The Nuclear Act also requires an operator/licensee to insure its liability
connected with operation of a nuclear power plant up to a minimum of CZK 1.5 billion and up to a minimum of CZK 200
million for other activities (such as transportation). CEZ has a nuclear third party liability policy for damages connected
with the operation of the Temelin nuclear power plant. The policy will come into force at the time of nuclear fuel loading.
Two separate insurance policies for Temelin cover risk connected with transportation and storage of nuclear fuel
according to the requirements of the Nuclear Act. CEZ has a nuclear third party liability policy for damages connected
with the operation of nuclear power plant Dukovany, a policy covering transport of nuclear fuel to Dukovany and
a property insurance policy for Dukovany covering damages up to CZK 3 billion.

CEZ and CEPS have various insurance coverage, including Directors and Officers Liability, a property policy to cover “all
risks" associated with the operation of CEZ's fossil and hydro power plants, general third party liability insurance and
risks connected with CEPS® property and liability of the transmission business.
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18. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the basis of International Accounting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Committee. Certain accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic
do not conform to International Accounting Standards used in preparing the accompanying financial statements,
A description of the significant adjustments required to conform the Company's statutory balances to financial
statements prepared in accordance with Interpational Accounting Standards is set forth in the following tables.

The effect on retained earnings of differences in IAS and CAS at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows (in CZK millions):

December 31 1999 1998
Balance per CAS 43,133 41,919
Accumulated provision for nuclear decommissioning and spent ftiel storage (Note 11) (6,715} (7,142)
Interest capitalized net of deferred tax provision 10,466 1,674
Depreciation of intargst capitalizad net of deferred tax provision (584) (324)
Fareign exchange, net of deferrad tax provision 585 731
Other depreciation differances, net of deferred tax provision (515) {511)
Deferred tax on tax loss carryforward 5

Delerred tax on other provisions 305 :
Deferred tax on negative goodwill write-off {410}
Reclassification of reserve fund to retained amings 1,975 7,657
Balance per IAS 54,735 49,600

There are no dividend payment restrictions on the amount of retained earnings recorded pursuant to CAS,

The effect on net income of differences in 1AS and CAS is as follows (in CZK millions):

Year endeid December 31 1999 1998 1987

Net income per CAS 1,624 1,531 3,367

Nuclear decommissioning and spent fuel slorage costs (Note 11) 427 421 {83)
[nterest vapitalized, net of deferred tax provision 2,792 2,0m 2,166

Depreciation of interest capitalized net of deferred tax provision (260) (163) {111}
Forelgn exchange rate differenpes, net of deferred tax provision {153) 512 31

Dther depreciation differences, nel of deferred tax provision i 3 18

Effect of application of IAS 12 {revised 1996) 499

Deferrad tax on tax lass carryforward a5

Deferred tax on other provisions 305

Defarred tax provision on negative goodwill write-off 410 (410}

Reclassification of items from retainad garnings. net (99) (70 (131}
Net income per IAS 5,135 10,350 5,256
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CZECH
N ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997 (CZK thousands)

1999 1998 1997
TOTAL ASSETS 197,803,444 181,450,358 171,810,038
Fixed assets 173,684,496 165,817,885 151,007,156
Intangible assets 355,181 358,849 361,391
Tangible assets 165,421,854 159,105,785 149,270,230
Financial investment 2,515,506 1,459,970 1,375,535
Investmint in affiliate 5.351.350 4,898,281
Current assels 19,425,415 14,906,711 18,641,382
Inventory 10,364,727 9,829,107 4,686,266
Lang-tarm receivables 74,860 139,898 129,289
Short-term receivebles 4,628,872 3,930,474 4,728,924
Finaricial accounts 4,356,956 1,007,232 4,086,904
Other assels — lemporary accounis 4,693,533 725,762 2,161,500
TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 197,803,444 101,450,358 171,810,038
Capital 110,683,425 109,187,543 101,406,863
Statad capital 59,208,846 59,208,846 59,194,942
Capital funds 1,661,594 1,660,612 1,300,235
Funds from net profit B.341.110 8,059,688 71.936,678
Raetained earnings 38,677,660 32,731,641 29,607,194
Consolidated net income 1,623,835 7,536,750 3,367,214
Net income _ 1,238,580 7,206,167 3.367,214
Equity in earnings of affiliate 385,255 331,583
Consolidation reserve fund 1,170,480
Liabilities 85,001,274 69,437,796 08,280,655
Reserves 15,427,186 13,196,416 13,673,889
l.ang-term liablities 17,678,958 15,707 402 25,074,035
Short-tarm ligbilities 11,083,772 12,780,607 8,211,824
Bank loans and shorl-term notes 26,801 968 27,753,471 21,320,907
Other liabilities — temporary accounts 2,118,745 2,025,019 2,122,520
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997
(CZK thousands)

1999 1998 1997
Revenues from goods sold 5,582 3,866 3424
Cost of goods sold 3861 2,961 2,635
Sales margin 173 925 689
Production 63,852,617 55,317,708 56,152,587
Consumption from production 29,691,981 29,737,158 29,563,953
Value added 20,162,367 25,581,475 25,609,323
Personnel expenses 3,566,143 3,353,055 3,237,131
Amartization nf intangibles and depreciation of tangibles 8,593,483 8,062,064 6,968,293
Reversal of operating reserves and adjustments 2,553,651 2,549,017 3,126,377
Creation of operating reserves and adjustmenis 3,340,422 3,767,049 4,077,783
Other operational revenues 1,402,147 1,184,332 1,026,789
Other operational expenses. 2,846,129 2,726,068 2,491,323
Consolidated operating income 9,711,908 11,306,598 12,996,959
Financial revenues 1,023,605 2,546,722 657,218
Finaneial expenses 8,986,719 7,651,272 10,274,980
Consalidated loss from linancial activilies (7,963,114) (6,104,550) {9,617,762)
Consolidated net income from normal activities 1,808,874 6,282,048 3379,191
Extraordinary revenues 46,675 30,747 28,904
Extraordinary expenses 709,382 50,592 40,887
Settlement of consolidation difference 92413 942,964
Consolidated extraordinary income (loss) (570,294) 923.119 (11,983)
Consolidated net income, net of equity in earings of affiliate 1,238,580 1,205,167 3,367,214
Equity in earnings of affiliate 385,255 331,583
Consolidated net income 1,623.835 7,536,750 3,367,214

Nole:

fn 1999, the company for the first time calculated deferred tax lability from the difference between the valuation of its equity share in its affiliate
lor accountifig purposes and 1he valuation for consolidation purposes (based on the size of the equity stake). This deferred tax, totalling
(7K 464,444 thousand, was included as an expense in the 19499 income statement. If this method had been used in 19498, a substantial portion of
this deferred tax expense (CZK 410,410 thousand) would have influenced 1998 consolidated income. which would fiave amourited to CZK 7,126,340
thousand, and the 1999 tonsolidated income would have bean reported as CZK 2,034,245 thousand,
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BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997 (CZK thousands)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CZECH
& ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

ASSETS 1939 1998 1997
row gross  adjusiments net net it
TOTAL ASSETS o1 264,898,739 (68,388,779) 196,509,960 180,277,757 171,810,038
A Stock subscrilitions receivahle 002
B. Fixed assets 003 235497773 (68,040,743) 162,457,030 164,645,284 151,007,156
B. I Intangihle assets 004 817,845 (426 546) 391 299 358,049 361,391
B. I 1. Expenses of foundation and organization 005
2. Research and development 006
3, Sofltware 007 642,343 (420 4954) 271,434 264,013 287,795
4. Patents, rights ant royalties ong 20.078 [6.587) 14491 10,486 1478
5. Other intangibles 009
6. Intangibles in progress 010 40,552 90,652 83,949 65,248
7. Advances for intangibles 011 14.822 14,822 a01 #70
B. IL Tangible assets 012 226,171,087 (67,595,297) 158,575,800 159,105,785 149,270,230
B. Il. 1. Land 013 639,082 638, (182 649,356 645,132
2. Buildings, halls and constructions 014 h1,287.303  (21,758.481) 28,538,412 31,129,248 30,165,609
3. Separate movable items and groups
‘of movable items 015 90,708,022 {45,802541) 41,905,461 54,165,762 50,086,301
4. Parmanent growth 016
b Livestock 017
6. Dther tangible assets 018 47874 (34,1499 13,675 12,743 12,060
7. Tangibles in progress 018 74,013,969 4,013,969 57,340,764 51,931,464
B Advances for tangibles 020 15,464,495 15,464,495 15,807,708 16,429,453
9. Adjustment tn acquired property 02} 267 (76) 186 200 221
B. il Financial investment 022 8,508,831 {18,900 1,489,931 5,180,650 1,375,535
B. Il 1. Majarity shargholdings and participating
interests (shareholdings > 50%) (123 3,051,607 3.061.607 847,337 764,830
2. Substantial shareholdings and participating
interests (shareholdings of 20%-50%) 024 4,573,806 {6,000) 4,567,886 4,240,373 523,474
3. Other securities anf deppsits 125 87,524 B7.524 11,210 11,460
4. Intergroup loans 026
5. Other financial Investments 027 79b.814 (12,900) 182,914 81,730 1571
C. Current assets 028 24,570,764 (348,036) 24,222,728 14,906,711 18,641,382
c L Inventory 029 10,427,681 (131,525) 10,296,156 9,829,107 9,686,265
C. L 1. Materials 030 10,372,757 (1:31,525) 10.241,232 9,727,088 8,819,566
2. Work in progress and semi-finished produgtion 031 253
3. Finished products 032
4. Livestock 033
5. Gaads 034 26,748 26,748 158
6. Advances for inventory 035 28,176 28,176 102,018 B66,268
C. IL Long-term receivables 036 3,515,581 3.515,581 139,898 129,289
C. 1L 1. Trade receivables 03r 42,344 42 348 117,014 92,294
2 Receivables from paniners and assoeiations 038
3. Receivables from related companies
(shareholdings > 50%) 034 3,448,560 3,448,560 14,624
4. Receivables from relatad companies
(shareholdings of 20%-50%) {140
5. DOthar receivables 041 24 613 24 673 22,879 22,367
C. 1. Short-term receivables 042 6,583,836 {216,511) 6,367,325 3,930,474 4,728,924
C. 1L 1 Trade recejvibles 043 3,870,998 (166,077 3,704,861 3,367,540 3,066,621
2. Receivahles fram partners and associations (a4
3. Receivables from social security 045
4. Receivables from taxes N46 466,376 5ih. 376 414,068 1,596,277
5 Belerred tax assets na7
. Receivables from related companies
(shareholdings > 50%) 048 1628781 1.628.781 14,624
1. Recewables from related companies
(sharetinldings of 20%-50%)
4. Other recejvables 040 2 (50,.034) B7,307 134,252 66,026
C. IV Financial accounts 051 4,043,666 4,043,666 1,007,232 4,096,900
C. IV. 1. GCash 152 3,712 N2 17,084 23,800
2. ‘Bank accounts 53 482,414 492,414 489 587 4,072,596
3. Short-term financial assets 054 3,647 540 1,547 540 500,561 508
D. Other assels - temporary accounlts 055 4,830,202 4,830,202 725,762 2,161,500
DL Temporary accounts of assets 056 4,759,255 1,759,265 667,022 213,979
D. L 1. Prepaid expenses 057 2,695,379 2,695,379 169,737 21,1490
2. Unbilled revenues (158 146,634 146,634 1,123 hh
3. Exchange rate lnsses (59 1.917.242 197,242 46,162 2,092,218
D. Ik Contingencies 0G0 70,947 70,947 58,740 47,526
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BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997 (CZK thousands)

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 15999 19498 1997
row
TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 061 196,509,960 180,277,757 171,810,038
A. Capital 062 110,048,990 108,014,942 101,406,863
Al Stated capital 063 59,208,846 69,208,006 59,194,942
A | 1. Stated capital 064 59,208 845 59,208,846 59,194,942
2. Own shares 0165
AL Capital funds 066 1,661,594 1,650,612 1,300,235
A, |l. 1. Share premium 067
2. Other capital funds 068 1,661,504 1,650,612 1,300,235
3. Revaluation of assets 064
4. Revaluation of capital participation 070
A TIE Funds from net profit an 8,341,110 8,059,688 7,936,678
A Il 1. Legal reserve fund 072 7.6974.818 7,666,611 7,488,250
2. Indivisible fupd 073
3. Statutory and other funds 074 366,292 403,077 448,428
ATV Retained earnings 075 38,677,589 32,731,647 29,607,794
A IV, 1. Retained earnings of previous years 076 38,677,589 32,731,647 29,607,794
2. Retained losses of previous years 077
A. V. Profit / loss ol current accounting period 078 2,159,861 6,364,199 3,367,214
B. Liabilities 079 84,344,001 69,437,796 68,200,655
B. | Reserves 080 15,427,006 13,196,416 13,673,869
B. I 1. Legdl reserves 081 4,986,767 4,225,742 3,087,012
2. Raeserve for exchange rate losses 082 1,867,087 555,817 2,110,842
3. Other reseryes 083 8,553,192 8,414,857 8,476,035
B, 1L Long-term liahilities 084 31,678,358 15,707,402 25,074,035
B. Il 1. Long-term payables to related companies (shareholdings > 50%) 085 13,553,867 5,707,402 11,074,035
2. Long-term payables o related companies (sharsholdings of 20%-60%) 086
3. Lang-term deposits received 087 1,124,491
4. Bonds payable 068 17,000,000 10,000,000 14,000,000
5. Long-term hotes payable 089
6. Other long-term payahles 080
B. L Short-term liabilities 081 10,436,639 12,780,507 8211824
B. Il 1. Trade payables 092 4,967,554 3,605,266 A/539 128
2. Payahles to partners and associations 093
3. Payables to employees 094 3842 7.5 14,572
4. Social security payables 095 100,006 107,589 97,112
5. Taxes payable and subsidies 096 138,509 113,918 137,806
6. Deferred tax liabilities 097 5,029,759 4,483,860 3,278,369
7. Payables to relaled coimpanies (shareholdings > 50%) 098 4,136,996
. Payables to related companies (shareholdings of 20%-50%) 094
. Other payables 100 176.969 325,347 144,237
B. V. Bank loans and shori-term notes 10 26,801,958 27,753.41 21,320,907
B. IV. 1. Long=term bank loans 102 21,801,310 18,853,379 14,615,006
2. Shortderm bank loans 103 5,000,648 4,800,082 6,648,701
3, Short-term notes 104 4,000,000 57,200
C. Other liahilities - temporary accounts 105 2,116,969 2,825,019 2,122,520
C. I Accruals 106 1,256,839 2,225,645 1,437,503
C. | 1. Acocruals 107 1,010,503 1,274,914 1,311,540
2. Deferred ingome 108 55,181 114,780 78,050
3. Exchange rate gains 108 10,185 35,981 47,9138
c. I Contingencies 110 860,130 599,334 685,017
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT STATEMENTS FOR TWELVE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997 (CZK thousands)

1999 1998 1997
rowy
. Revenues Irom goods sold 01 L1 3,886 3,324
A Costs of goods sold 02 69,380 2,961 2,635
& Sales margin 03 1.3 925 689
L. Production 04 4,218,385 55,317,708 55,152,587
I, 1. Revenues from finished products and services 05 53,887,883 54,963,621 54,806,449
2. Chanages in Inventory of own production 06 (253} 253
3. Capitalization (of own work) 07 330,502 354,340 345,885
B. Consumption from production 0a 30,579,781 29,737,158 29,543,953
B, 1. Consumption of material and energy 09 22.278, 15 22,449,296 22,609,341
B 2. ‘Services 10 H,303.036 1,287,862 6,934,612
+ Value added 1 23,640,335 25,581,475 25,609,323
C. Personnel expenses 12 3,482,141 3,393,055 3231131
G I. Wages and salarjes 13 2477,692 2,420,801 2,314,022
L. 2. Benuses to board members 14 0,807 8,121 14,042
C. 3. Socialinsurance 16 868,462 863,293 823,314
g. 4. Other social expenses 16 109,180 102,760 85,753
. Taxes and fees 17 1,034,347 1,186,727 1,058,904
E. Amortization of iftangibles and depreciation of tangibles 18 8,338,395 8,052,054 6,953,293
1 Revenues from intangibles, tangibles and material sold 19 1,328,707 981,613 878,674
i Net book value of intungibles, tangibles and materal sold 20 1,420,674 991,718 903,881
IV. Reversal of reserves and prepaid expenses 21 2,253,612 2,472,344 2,981,955
G. Creation of reserves and prepaid expenses 22 3,152,972 3,549,901 3,820,681
' Reversal of adjustments 23 300,039 16,668 144,422
H. Creation of adjustments 24 187,450 217,148 257,152
vl Other oparational revenues 25 70,481 212,118 148,116
[y Other operational expenses 26 378,934 547,623 534,538
Vi, Transfer of operational revenues 2
J. Transfer of operational expenses 28
2l Net operating results 29 9,592,261 11,386,598 12,996,959
Vi Revenues from sale of secyrities and deposits 30 15,967 3,395 27,050
K. Sold securities and deposits 31 13,816 108 17,950
IX. Revenues from linancial invesiments 32 133,625 135,887 19,653
IX. 1. Revepues from securities and deposits in group 33 128,033 135,042 17,121
2. Hevenues from other securities and deposits 34 4,726 1,687
3. Revenues from other financial investments b 867 845 845
X Revenues from short-term finaneial assets 36
XL Reversal of financial reserves ar 56,817 2,110,842 82,702
I Creation of financiyl reselves a8 1,887,087 555,817 2,110,842
X1l Revarsal of adjustments 38 22,132
. Creation of adjystments 10 18,900 22,132
X Interest revenles 41 331,426 107,500 156,119
N. Interest expenses 42 4,328,682 3,914,096 3,724,507
Xiv. Other linancial revenues 43 310,633 208,912 372,694
0. Other financial experises LE 1,163,953 885,287 929,469
XV. Transfer of financial revenues 45
P Transfer of linancial expenses 46
* ‘Met resulls from financial activities 47 {6,064,970) (2,706,940) (6,147,682)
R. Income taxes on normal activity qaa 702,195 2,295,664 3,470,000
R 1. -Due 49 156,286 1,080,173 2121113
2. - Deferred 50 545,899 1,205,491 1,342,967
51
bab Net resulis alter taxes lrom normal activity 52 2,825,096 6,363,994 3,379,197
XVl Extraordinary revenues 53 44,130 30,747 28,904
s Extraordinary expenses 54 709,375 53,458 46,101
T Income tax on extraordinary activity 55 (2.866) (5,214)
T 1. ~Due 56 (2,866) (5214}
2. ~Deferrad 57
" Net rasults from extraordinary activity 58 (665,245) {19,845) {11,983)
1. Income distribution to partnars 59
iy Net profit (loss) for the nling period {i{1] 2,159,851 6,364,149 3,367,214
Profit (loss) before income taxes 61 2,862,046 8,656,947 6,832,080
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR TWELVE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998 AND 1997

(CZK thousands)
1999 1998 1997

P, Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ol period 1,007,232 4,096,900 2,221,

Operating activities
Z Pre-tax profit from normal activity 3,527,291 8,679,658 6,848,277
Al Adjustments by non-cash transactions 12,657,053 13,630,971 10,656,171
A1 Depreciation, amortization and writing-off 6,361,788 8,104,142 6,974,136
A1 Depreciation end amortization of fixed assets 8,339,413 8,057,704 6,969,022
A2 Receivables Writing-off 22,375 46,438 5114
A2, Change in adjustments, reserves and temparary aceounts 197,876 1,742,500 129,785
A1.2.1. Change in adjustments (93,707) 118,330 134,824
A1.2.2, Charige in reserves 2,230,630 (477,473) 2,866,836
A.1.2.3. Change in temporary aceounts of assets and liahilitips (1,939,047) 2,101,643 (2,871,875)
A1.3. Gain/Loss on fixed assets retirements 100,133 (22,267) {17,738)
A4 Interest expenses and reventes 3,997,256 3,806,596 3,569,388
A14.1 Interest expenses 4,328,682 3,914,096 3,724,507
A42. Interest revenues (331,426) (107,500) (155,118)
A" Net cash provided by operating activities before taxes,

changes in working capital and extraordinary items 16,184,344 22,310,629 17,505,448
AZ  Changein working capital 1,008,431 (223,227) 1,928,252
A.2.1.  Change in receivables from aperational activities 76,6356 176,161 2,523,314
A.2.2.  Change in short-term payables from operational activities 1,580,733 (252,657) 292,790
A.23. Changein invertory (657,837) (146,731) (887.912)
A% Net cash provided by operating activities hefore laxes

and extraordinary items 17,193,775 22,087,402 19,433,700
A3, Interest paid, excl. capitalized interest (4,386,817) (3,808,959} {3,561,715)
A4 Interest received 189,634 108,987 156,048
AL, Income taxes paid (700.214) {669,047) {1.643,011)
A, Revenues and expenses related to extraordinary items (17.417) (22,643) (17,197
A% Net cash provided hy operating activities 12,278,961 17,693,740 14,376,825

Investing activities
B.1.  Fixed assels acquisition (17,638,894) (22,320,520) (19,218,768)
B.1.1.  Additions ta tangible fixed assals {15,617,328) (17,953,420 (18,800,714}
B.1.2.  Additions to intangible fixed assets (160,277) {117,168} (94,349)
B.1.3. Change in linancial investment (1,561,135) (3,760,755} (134,143)
B.14. Change in payables from investing activity (264,733) (521,147) (133,975}
B.1.5 Change in payables from investing activity (emerging from

exchange rate defferencies) (36,421) 31,970 (55,587)
B.2.  Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 280,616 107,943 223,795,
B.21. Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 516,632 56,859 204,925
B.2.2. Proceeds from sales of jntangible fixed assels
B.2.3.  Procegds from sales of financial investment 15,967 3,395 21,050
B.2.4, Change in receivables lrom sales of fixed assets (252,083) 47,689 (8,180
B.**  Total cash used in investing activities (17,359,378) (22,212,577) (18,894,973)

Financing activities
(1 Change in long-term llabilines and shori-term loans 8,245,352 1,202,927 6,630,861
C.1.1.  Change it long-term hank loans 2,947,931 4,238,373 4,450,302
C.1.2. Change in short-term bank loans and notes {B,036,440) 6,331,187 (4,509,777)
C.1.3. Change in long-term bonds payable 4,362,905 (4,000,000}
C.1.4. Change in other long-term liabilities 8,970,956 {5,366,633) 6,690,336
€:2.  Impact of changes in aquity by cash {128,501 226,238 (137,520)
C.2.1.  Monetary donations and subsidies to equity 0,284 346,589 N
C.22 Direct payments dehiled to funds {136,785) (120,351) (135,186)
C.2.3.  Paid-out dividends and profit shares (2,365)
C.**=  Nel cash from linancing activities 8,116,851 1,429,165 6,493,301
F Net increase/decrease in cash 3,036,434 (3,089,672) 1,875,193
R Cash and cash equivalents at ead of period 1,043,666 1,007,232 4,096,904
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BASIC ORGANIZATION AND FUNCTION CHART OF CEZ, a. s. AS OF 1 MAY 2000

GENERAL MEETING

Theodor Dvofak
Chairmari

Frantisek Hezouthy
First Vice Chairman

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

0120
|mternal Audit 1000
Section CEQ's
2000 3000
Production Economics
Jan Krenk Petr Vabofil
1100 2100 3100

IT Section

1300
Communications Section

1500

Strategic Planning Section

Satety and Quahty Section

1900

Legal Section

Production Section

| 2200
Technology Settion

2300
Bperations and Environmental
Contral Section

2600
Fuel Cycles Section

| 2900
Telecommunications Section

Financing Section

| 3200
Accounting Section

3400
Planning Section

lemalin Nuclear Power Station
Construction Division
L Frantisek Hezoutky

fydro Plants

Ledvice Power Station

Melnik Fower Station

_ TuSimice Power Stations
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BODIES

SUPERVISORY BOARD
Stanislav Svoboda Zdandk Vorlitak Frantisek Brozik, Vaclav Krejei, Viadimir Lastivka,
' Michal Prochazka, Jiff Tresak, Jan Sevr,
Karel| Spacek, Jifi Svamberk, Lubios Zika
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
__4000 5000 6000 7000
Human Resources Sales Development Property Management
Ivan Celizna Ivan Batka Jifl Richrer and Procurement
Theodor Dvorak
| A0 5100 6200 7100
Personnel Section Electricity and Invastment Section Property Managemen!
Heat Trade Section Seetion
4200 5200 | 6500 | 7200
Human Hesourees Electricity Balance Section Engingering Seclion Frocurament Sechion
Deyelopment Section
| 7300
Gouds and Services

Procurement Planning Section

HEADQUARTERS

| Tisova Power Statiof

Pocerady Power Station

Fofiei Fower Stations

Dukavany Niclear
Power Station

Détmarovice Power Station

Hodenin Power Station

ORGANIZATIONAL UNITS

Chvalelice Power Station

Prunerov Power Siations




HEADQUARTERS

EEZ, a.s.
Jungmannaova 29
111 48 Praha 1

Tel.: +420/ 2/ 2408 1111
Fax: +420/ 2 / 2408 2440

DUKOVANY NUCLEAR POWER STATION

Ales John, Director of Technology

Josef Sedlak, Director of Finance and Property
Management

CEZ, a. s.
Jaderna elektrarna Dukovany
675 50 Dukovany

Tel.: 4420 /618 /81 1111
Fax: +420 / 618 / 86 6360

TEMELIN NUCLEAR POWER STATION
Frantisek Hezoutky, Executive Director Temelin Muclear
Power Station Construction Division

CEZ, a. 8.
Jadernd elektrarna Temelin
373 05 Temelin — elektrarna

Tel.: +420/ 334/ 78 1111
Fax: +420 / 334 / 78 2708

Electricily Consulting Center
Viadimir Zeleny

EEZ. o 8,
Jungmannova 29
11148 Praha 1

Tel.: +420/ 2/ 2408 2778
Fax: +420 / 2/ 2408 2422

Opening Hours: Monday through Thursday 10:00 - 17:00,
excepting state holidays.

Information Center
Rudolf Vybiral

CEZ a.s.

Jadernd elektrarna Dukovany
Informacni centrum

675 50 Dukovany

Tel.: +420 [ 618/ 81 5518
Fax: +420// 618/ 86 6380

Opening Hours: 9:00 — 16:00 seven days a week,
excepting state holidays, closed on first Monday of every
month.

Information Center
Mitan Malik

CEZ, a. s,

Jaderna elektrarna Temelin
Informacni eentrum

373 05 Temelin— elektrarna

Tel.: +420 / 334/ 78 2634
Fax: +4201/ 334 / 78 4900

Opening Hours: by telephone appointment only until
30 June 2000, starting on 1 July 2000 9:00 - 16:00 seven
days a week, excepting state holidays.
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HYDRO POWER STATIONS
Jifi Cerny, Director
CEZ, 8. s.

Vodni elelktrarny
252 07 Stéchovice

Tel.: +420/ 2/ 994 1088 — 90
Fax: +420 / 2 / 994 1308

Information Centers

Stéchovice run-of-river and pumped
storage hydro power station

CEZ & s

Vodni elektrarny
Informacni centrum
252 07 Stechovice

Tel.: +420/ 603 / 769 197 — appointments Jan Frouz

Dlouhé Strané pumped storage hydre power station

Tours arranged hy:
Energotis, s. 1. 0.
Rejhotice 75

788 12 Loutna nad Desnou

Tel.: +420 /649 / 23 5091 — appointments Veleslav Trnetka
Fax; +420 / 649/ 23 5094

Dalesice pumped storage hydro power station

Tours-arranged by:
Energotis, s. r. 0.
Rejhotice 75

768 12 Louéna nad Desnou

Tel: +420 / 509 / 652 221 — appointments Blanka Masinova
Fax: +420 / 509 / 65 2224

Opening Hours: May 1 — August 31; Fridays, 14:00 — 16:00;
Saturdays and Sundays, 10:00 — 15:30; other days and during
off-season, by appointment (closed on state holidays),

Opening Hours: April 1 — August 31: Monday through Friday,
8:00 - 15:00, Saturday — Sunday, 8:00 — 12:00 (by appointment
only). During off-seasan by appointment only (closed on
state holidays).

Opening Hours: May 1 — September 30: Monday through
Friday, 9:00 — 16:00. During off-season by appointment only
(closed on state holidays),
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MELNIK POWER STATION
Karel Sik, Director

CEZ a, s,
Elektrarna Melnik
277 03 Hornl Potaply

Tel.: +420/ 206 / 61 1111
Fax: +420 / 206 / 62 6840

TISOVA POWER STATION
Vladimir Sykora, Director

CEZ, a. s.

Elektrédrna Tisova
postovni piihradka 98
356 69 Sokoloy 1

Tel.: +420./ 168 /65 1111
Fax: +420/ 168 / 62 4035

PORICI POWER STATIONS
Jifl Pfihoda, Director

CEZ a5, _
Elektrarny Pofici
541 37 Trutnov

Tel.: +420/ 439 / 806 111
Fax: +420 / 439 / 806 199

DETMAROVICE POWER STATION
Jan Mikulka, Director

CEZ, a. s.

Elektrarna Détmarovice

735 71 Détmarovice

Tel.: +420 /69 / 658 211)
Fax: +420 / 69 / 655 0326

CHVALETICE POWER STATION
Bediich Jezek, Director

CEZ, a. s
Elektrdrna Chvaletice
533 12 Chvaletice

Tel.: +420/ 40 /683 1111
Fax: +420 / 40 / 683 3600 (3604)

LEDVICE POWER STATION
Ladistav Poupa, Director
CEZ, a.s.

Elektrarna Ledvice

418 48 Bilina

Tel.: +420 / 417/ 80 1111
Fax: +420 /417 / 80 1501

TUSIMICE POWER STATIONS
Frantisek Tengler, Director

CEZ, a.s.
Elektrarny Tusimice
432 01 Kadani

Tel.: 4420/ 398 /32 1111
Fax: +420 / 398 / 32 3880

POCERADY POWER STATION
Josef Kaspar(, Director

CEZ, a.s.
Elektrarna Pocerady
439 44 Pocerady

Tel.: +420 /397 /75 1111
Fax: +420 / 397 / 79 2040

HODONIN POWER STATION
Ludvik Travnik, Director
CEZ a.s.

Elektrarna Hodanin

U elektrarny 1

695 23 Hodaonin

Tel.: +420 /628 / 300 111
Fax: +420 /628 /23 814

PRUNEROV POWER STATIONS
Pavel Klika, Directar

GEZ a. s.
Elektrarny Prunéfov
432 01 Kadan

Tel.; +420 / 398 / 30 1111
Fax: +420 / 398 / 33 2697
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GLOSSARY OF POWER INDUSTRY TERMS

Term or Abbreviation

Delinition

Alternative sources Power plants using renewable sources of energy such as solar
energy, wind energy, etc.

Black start Ability to stari-up a power station generating unit without external
qrid voltage

CENTREL Regional association of Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Polish electric
utilities

cPl Consumer Price Index, a measure of inflation

Cross-border transit

Transmission of electricity among States across Czech Republie borders

Czech Nuclear Pool

Consortium of insurance companies insuring nuclear power facilities

Czech Republic Power System

Term covering all equipment necessary to generate and transmit
electricity

Electricity demand

Total electricity generated by domestic sources less electricity
consumed by power stations |less network losses |ess electricity used
for pumping at pumped-starage hydro power stations plus balance of
foreign electricity trade

Electricity supply

Overall production of electricity less GEZ’s own consumption and
losses associated with generation processes

Eligible customer

Customer having the right to choose its electricity supplier - entity
licensed to generate or distribute electricity - or purchase electricity
directly on an organized electrigity market

Emission limits

Highest allowed cancentrations of pollution released into the
atmosphere

End user

Customer who consumes all electricity purchased; dogs not act as an
intermediary

EURELECTRIC

Until December 1999, the European association of electric wtility
companies; in December 1998 merged with the UNIPEDE association,
creating a new organization retaining the name EURELECTRIC (Union of
the Electricity Industry), which combines the activities of both original
organizations

European Parliament Directive No, 96

Directive No, 96/92 of the European Parliament and the European
Union Council

Fluidized-bed boiler

Boiler in which coal combustion takes place ina rising column of air.
Flue gas desulfurization takes place by adding ground limestone to the
fuel. This renders unnecessary the desulfurization equipment used
with mare common powder-coal bollers.

High-volume electricily customer

Customer supplied through the medium- and high-voltage networks

Installed capacity

Sum of generator name-plate capacities

Network Control Failure Rate

Rate of failures that affect activation generating of sources to meet
current needs of the Czech Republic Power System

NORDEL

North European interconnected electricity networlk

Peak load

Highest network load measured during a given period

Production of electricity

Overall electricity production measured at generator terminals

Regional distribution utilities

(Czech abbreviation is REAS) Eight regional electric utility companies
that distribute electricity to end users

Regulated Third Party Network Access

Up until now, end customers have been served by the owners and
operators of the networks to which they are connected. Since they are
not allowed to enter into electricity supply agreements directly with
producers or traders, end customers stand outside the producer-
network operator relationship, as a so-called "third party”. Under the
Regulated Third Party Networlk Access model, access to transmission
and distribution networks is open not only to producers and electricity
merchants, but alse to so-called "eligible customers”. All of these
market players are free to sign contracts with one another. Network
access is regulated by a regulatory agency that publishes binding
prices. A network operator may refuse grid-access, i.e. refuse lo
convey electricity, only in cases of demonstrable lack of capacity
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Term or Abbreviation

Definition

Retrofit Overhaul and upgrade of equipment. For example, the retrofit of
Tusimice | included desulfurization
SDH Synchronous Digital Hierarchy transmission system

Transmission System

That portion nf_the Czech Republic Power System used to transmit
electricity at 400 kV and 220 kV as well as those 110 kV lines used to
convey electricity out of power stations

UNIPEDE

International Union of Producers and Distributors of Electrical
Enerqgy

UCPTE

Until 30 June 1999 - Union for the Coordination of Production and
Transmission of Energy (West European interconnected electricity
network, including producers and transmission companies)

UCTE

Since 1 July 1999 — Unien for the Coordination of Transmission of
Electricity (West European interconnected network of electrieity
transmission companies)

EXPLANATION OF UNITS USED IN THIS DOCUMENT

Unit Explanation
kV kV =10V, V = unit of electrical potential (voltage)
MW MW = 10" W = 10° kW, W = unit of capaeity
GWh GWh = 10" Wh = 10° MWh = 10° kWh, Wh = 3 600 WSs,
Td TJd=10"d=10"Gd = 10" MJ, J = Ws = unit of work {energy)
Hz Unit of frequency.

Neminal frequency of Czech power system is 50 Hz
S0, Sulfur dioxide
NOy Oxide(s) of nitrogen
co Carbon monoxide
Cco, Carbon dioxide
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ACTS OF PARLIAMENT, DIRECTIVES AND GOVERNMENT RESOLUTIONS
REFERRED TO IN THIS DOCUMENT

Official title Referred to in text as:
Act No. 40/1964 Sh. The Civil Code, Civil Code
as amended
Act No. 110/1964 Sb, On Telecommunications, Telecommunications Act
as amended
Act No. 65/1965 Sh. The Lahor Code, Labor Code
as amended

Act No. 50/1976 Sh.

On Zoning and the
Building Code, as amended
(full text published under 197/1998 Sb.)

Construction Act

Act No. 63/1991 Sh,

On the Pratection of Economic
Compstition, as amended

Act on Protection of Economic Campetition

Act No. 309/1991 Sh.

On Protection of Air Against
Pollutive Materials (Clean Air Act),
as amended (full text published
under 211/1994 Sh.)

Clean Air Act

Act No. 513/1991 Sh.

The Commercial Code, as amended

Commercial Code

Act No. 563/1931 Sb.

On Accounting,
as amended

Accounting Act

Act No. 244/1992 Sh

Act of the Czech Mational Council
on Assessing Environmental Impacts

Act an Assessing Environmental Impacts

Act No. 586/1992 Sh.

On Income Taxes,
as amended

Income Tax Act

Act No. 593/1992 Sb.

On Provisions far Determining Income
Tax Base, as amended

Act on Provisions

Act No. 199/1994 Sh.

On Public Procurement, as amended

Act on Public Procurement

Act No. 18/1997 Sb. On Peaceful Use of Nuclear Energy Nuclear Act
and lonizing Radiation and the
Amendment of Certain Laws,
as amended by Act No. 83/1998 Sb.

Act No. 125/1997 Sh. On Waste, Waste Act

as amended by Act No, 167/1998 Sb.

Act No. 148/1998 Sb.

On Protection of State Secrets
and the Amendment of Certain Laws,
as amended by Act No. 164/1999 Sh.

State Secrets Act

Directive No. 11/1999 Sb.

Gzech Government Directive
on Accident Planning Zone

Accident Planning Zong Directive

Resolution No. 334/1999

Czech Government Resolution on

a proposal for approval of purposes
for which state enterprises and
corporations with majority state
ownership may provide sponsorship
donations during the relevant year

Government Resolution on Sponsorship
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Official title Referred to in text as:

Decree No. 34/1999 Sh.  Which Amends Decree of the Netwaork Control Rules
Ministry of Industry and Trade
MNo. 95/1998 Sb. Which Stipulates
the Cantrol Rules of the Czech
Electrical Power Network
Decree No. 195/1999 8b. Decree of the State Nuclear Decree on Nuclear Facility Requirements
Safety Agency setting forth
requirements on nuclear facilities
to ensure nuclear safety, radiation
protection, and accident preparedness
Decree No. 196/1999 Sh. Decree of the State Nuclear Safety Decree on Nuclear Facility Decommissioning
Agency on decommissioning nuclear
facilities or facilities with large or
very large sources of jonizing radiation
Decree No. 324/1999 §h. Decree of the State Nuelear Safety Decree on Nuclear Material Limits
Agency setting limits on
concentrations and amounts of
nuclear material to which nuclear
damage provisions shall not apply

NAMES OF GOVERNMENTAL BODIES APPEARING IN TEXT

Name used in text Full name

Academy of Sciences Academy of Sciences of the Czech Republic
National Property Fund Fund of National Property of the Czech Republic
Ministry of Finance Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic

Ministry of Industry and Trade Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic
Ministry of the Environment Ministry of the Environment of the Czech Republic
Chamber of Deputies Chamber of Deputies of the Czech Parliament
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CEZ, a.s
Jungmannova 29
111 48 Praha 1

Year establhished: 1992

Legal form: joint-stock company
Orgamzation 10 No.: 452 74 649
Tax 10 No.: D01 - 452 74 649

Bank aceount
KB Praha 1

account number; 71504 — 011/0100

phone: #4201/ 2 /2408 1111
+4200 ) 2/ 2408 2440
internet: hitp:/fwwwe.c

e-mail: info@

Consulting, design and prodigtion
© B.I.G. Prague

Intarmation Group)
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